308 171. The Trial of Patiick Hurly 777 Irelalld,Paﬁ 13W.I l

Courts Mr. Hirrly, you fhall make the beft Ufe
of it you can; when the Man tells you on his
Qath, that he cannot tell; and we can’t make a
Man fwear more than he can {wear: He fays, it
was in g9, and before the Robbery, Was 1t 1n
Winter, or Summer?

Capt. Lynch. In the Winter, as I do reaily re-
member 1t.

Mr. Hurly. My Lord, I humbly offer this
This Gentleman fays, he met me at Harry Bar-
gery’s Houfein Loughreas and, that Iopen’d my
Portmanteau for him to take out a Bag,

Gourt. No, he fays you open’d the Portmuan-
teau to take out fome Linnen; and you took out
a Bag, and you look’d into it.

Mr. Hurly, Was this half a Year before the
Robbery ?

Capt. Lyiuch. 1do not know.

Mr Hurly. My Lord, 1 will prove I was not
there, at Loughrea, the laft time 1 went home,
And, my Lord, my Father held fome Land from
him : There came fome Difference, and he told
his Brother, that if I did not give up the Land,
he would give me a Lift.

Mr. Bernard. Was there any one in the Room
then with you?

Capt. Lynch. No body but Mr. Hurly and 1.

Mr., Hurly, Pray, Sir, what fort of Portman-
teau was 1¢7

Capt. Lynch. It was a Cloth Wallet, blue and
red.

Mr. Attor, Gen. 'The next Evidence we pro-
duce, is one Charles Caffidys he was thought a fit
Man for the Service, and was follicited to be
Commander in chief of this Robbery.,

Charles Caflidy fiworn.

Court. Give an Account what youknow of any
Robbery of Mr, Hurly.

Caffidy. My Lord, I wasa Practitioner in Sur-
aery 5 and Mr. Iurly's Father fell fick, and I was
fent for to attend him three Weeks or a Month;
and thenone Dr, Brady, a Relation of Mr. Hurly'’s
was fent for :  And as we were going up to fee
other Patients, the faid Dr. Bradyand I, fays the
Dottor, If you will take upon you a Bufinefs,
you (hall have Twenty Guineas, What is it to
do, fays I? Itis to head a Party, fays he, to rob
Hurly, and then he will raile Money on the Coun-
ty. And after this, when he came back, the
Do&or told him whathe had offer’d me,  Hurly
faid, I will give him Forty Guineas; and faid,
he would get People himfelf: And he faid, I
have four Perfons, cthat Iwill truft with you, &e.
but I went away, and never came near him
fince,

Court. When was this !

Caffidy. It was thirteen or fourteen Months be-
forc he was robbd. — - I ferv’d in the Houfe
from before Chriftmas to Eafler.

Court. Mr. Hurly, hefwears thus; Thathewas
imploy’d to attend your Father, that was fick at
that time; and, thac after fome Attendance you
took Oceafion to fend for Dr, Brady, a Relation
of yours : And going with the Doctor abroad to

-vifit other Patients, he told him, You get little
Fees from Mr, Hurly; but, fays he, if you will
heada Party for a pretended Robbery on Mr. Hurly,

he will get Monej of the County, and you fhyy
have Twenty Gnincas.  He faid, he did not ¢y,
to meddle with it, for his Relations would fyff,
by it; but he faid, It would be but little thqe
every one would pay: Then, faid he, I don’t ¢y,
if [ do. And when he came home, the Dog,
told before your Face what he had done, Yg,
{aid, What!
give him Forty Guineas. And after, whep he
went home, he thought not fit to do it; for I
told you, his Face was very remarkable, and knoy,
in the County, and, that he fhould be difcoveg
Oh! Sir, faid you, I'll help you to another Fag.
You told him, he fhould have onc Donogh O- B;-_;:-:
Daniel Hicky, and Calaban Carty to affilt him, ’

Mr. Soll, Ger. Has not Donogh O-Brien anote
Name?

Caffidy. I know, my Lord, it is Daoucgh O-Byy,..
Andrews’s Son,

Conrt. You have beenacquainted fince Chriffng;
was two Years; When was it that chis was figd
to you by Dr. Brady ?

Caffidy. 1t was the February after,

Mr. Robbins, How long atter this Difccurfe of
Dr. Brady and Mr. Hurly did you fpeak of ;2

Cafidy. My Lord, I did not fpeak of it; and
the Night it was to be tranfacled I ran avay

from my own Houfe, for fear of being fu-
fpected.

give him Twenty Guineas! Py

Er far aaaw

A i i L

Mr. Robbins. Did you go before a Juftice of
Peace vouuntatily ? or, Were you call’d to give .

that Examination ?

Caffidy. I kept it to my felf till Iaft Suuday;
being at Church, and alter dining at Mr. Hit-
man’s, they were talking of Hurly's Bufinefs, |
faid, There isa Man 1n this Country that can
do Mr. Hurly more Miichief, in relation to this
Robbery, than any other, Who 1s that? fud
he. I, being afraid to bring my felf into Trou-
ble, faid nomore, Says the Minifter, You oughit
to be punifh’d, if you don’t do your beft for to
fave your Country from Ruin.  And, upon thi,
after I came home, I recollected my felf, and!
went to a Juftice of Peace, and fwore it ; and
after I had given my Teftimony, he bound m:
over to proiecute.

Mr, Soll. Gen. He has done like an honel
Man,

Mr, Foffer. How came you to conceal it for
Two Years palt? Did you never tell it to an
Man before?

Caffidy. But to one young Man, that I thougl:
would joyn with me,

Court, What young Man is that ?

Caffidy. ’Tis one Conner., When 1 was &
Mr. Hurly's Houfe, I often play’d a Game &
Tables with him: When he had not then Mo-
ney to fend for a Bottle of Wine, he got me ©
fend my Note for twelve Bottles of Wine o
Ennis.

Mr. Attor. Gen. The Perfons concern’d in the
Robbery had Vizards: We fhall fhew you, that
when Mr. Hurly was in Dublin laft, what Shop b¢
was at, and what fort of Commodities he bougl.
There was 2 Mafque to be acted.

Danicl Kiefe fworn,

Mr. Attor. Gen, Pray, where do youlive:
Kicfe.
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Kige. In Town, my Lord, with Counfellor

Turier. )
A, A, Gen. I your Lordfhips pleafe to afk

him, Whether he knows Mr. Hurly ?

Kiefe. 1knew Mr. Hurly thefe many Years.

Mr. At Gen, Pray give an Account what you
obierved when Mr. Hurly was going into the
Country ; What Shops you met him 1n, and what
Commoditics he was buying,

Kigfe. In February, 1699, he came into Mr,
#a’s Shop, and afked for Malks to wear at
1 M'ﬂi}ucmdu: e rold him he fold none, but
Qere were fome in Chrift’s Chureb-Jard 3 and he
went in at the Gate towards the Yard ; and
when he was gone, I faid, Mr. Bently, 1 wonder
what he deligns to do with them, [ fear *us for
no good Dehgu,

Mr. it Gen, Pray where did he go when My,
Baily told him they were to be had in ChrifP’s
Church-Tard ¢

Kife. He went ftreight into the Yard.

Mr. st Geno What Time was it ?

Kisfe. It was in February, 99, the latter Endof
the Term,

Jofeph Bently fecora.,

Mr. Ait. Gen, Pray, my Lord, that Mr. Bently
may give an Account whether he knows Hurly.

Beiily. Yes, my Lord, I do—— And Iremem-
ber he came into our Shop to afk for Mafquera-
ding Mafks or Vizards. And I think 1t
was about Fannary or Febrisary —— 1 told him
we had none. Pray, fays he, can you tell me
where I can get any ? — [ faid, I cannot tell,
unlefs you get them in the Yard: And he went
thro' the Shop into the Yard,

Mr. zlt. Geir. ' When was this ?

Bently. It was fanuary or February, 99,

Mr. Fofter. Did you cver f{ee him before that
Time?

Batly, Yes, feveral times J1e bought
feveral Things in our Shop.

Mr, Iofter. But no Maiks ?

Bertly,  No, bur alked for Maiquerading
Mafls or  Vizaras,

Mr. Aft, Gen, My Lord, the Reafon why we
have been the more particular in this, is, that
i has made a great Rumour and Noife, that it
would bz of grear Difadvantage to Mr. Hurly; and
thercfore we go to thefe Particulars, thatnoMan
may pretend but the Martter 15 made plain againft
him, We fhall produce fome few Evidences
more,

Mr. Recorder. Hurly has lazely publifhed a Li-
bl againtt the Gentlemen of the County.

Mr. Geary fworn.

Niv, Butler. Had you any Difcourfe with Mr.
Hurly 2 And what?

Mr, A1t Gen. Pray give the Court and Jury
nAccount, Whether youknow Ms. Hurly, and
his Circumftances, and any great Qilantity of
Money that he had ? *

Mr. Geary. Mr. Hurly, in Febrnary laft was
Twelve-month, told me his Protection was out;
nd he defired me to get a Lodging for him.
Ldefired him to come to my own Lodging in
Capel-ftreet, When he went out of Town I went
With him as far as Jfland-Bridge: He faid, he had

\ :
no Money : And a Day ortwo after he writ-me
a Letter, and defired me to raife his Wife fome

Money on a Bond of Capt. Mac-Domnel’s. I f{ent
to Mr, Connor, and got him to endorfe a Bill to

Mr. Lum, and the Money was fupplied: And af-
ter he came to Town again, I went to his
Lodging, to Mr, Rafeow’s in Capel-flrect 3 there
were two Soldiers that would not let me in: I
fpoke to the Sheriff, Mr. Cufack ; fo I went into
him, and told him, I was forry for him. He
faid, it was for profecuting Sir Donat O-Brien.
Suys he, you know Sir Richard Nagle’s Hand, and
Sir Donat O-Brien’ss there are Letters to King
Fames 3 and, faid he, you and I muft live, and
we may get Money by it.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Now, my Lord, we call this
Gentleman to thew, that at the Time of his
fending this Money, Mr. Hurly was in an indi-
gent Condition, When was it?

Mr, Geary. It was in Michaelmas Term, 1699,

Mr. Hurly, By Virtue of your Oath, Have you
no Gratification for coming here?

Mr. Geary. No, by Virtue of my Oath, I have

not.
Thomas Connor ficorn.

M. Sol. Gen. What do you know of Mr. Hurly,
about Money ?

Thomas Connor.  'That Gentleman, Mr, Geary,
came to me, and told me, it would be an Obli-
gation on him to get twenty Pounds for Mr.
Hurly's Lady: Upon that Idrewa Bill of Ex-
change; fo they had the Money, but what tiiey
did with it, I do not know.

M. Hurly. Was not the Money paid again?

Comnor. Yes, 1t was paid, |

Mr. Hurly, Then did 1 want Money, when
you drew the Bill, and the Money was paid?

Mr. Att, Gen. My Lord, Mr. Hurly was not
able to pay this Bill ; and we fhall give you an
Account who paid it

Capt, Mac-Donnel fworn.

Mr. Butler. You heard the Evidence of Mr.
Geary ?

Capt. Mac-Donnel, Yes.

Mr. Butler, What doyou know of the Matter?

Capt, Mac-Donnel, 1did owe fome Money by
Bond to Mr, Hurly, and he writ to me to pay
thirty Pounds: Idon’t know what the Sum was
that Mr. Geary had advanced ; but I wric him
word, I would not pay him any fuch Sum ;’bl_lt
I bid him fend my Bond to Capt. Gardiner’s 1n
Limerick, and the Money fhould be paid there ;
and it was fent accordingly, and the Money was
paid : It was fomething lefsthan 50/, *

Mr. Att. Gen. Pray, when this Robbery was
talked of, did any body apply to you to take
you off, that you fhould not oppofe the Prefent-
ment, but fuffer itcogoon.

Capt. Mac-Donnel. Mr. Hurly {poke to me 20
be his Friend. I was always his Friend: And
Capt. Bourk {poke to me to fpeak toa Gentle-
man of the Grand-Jury, that lay with me, (that
was much againft him) to defire him, that he
would not appear againft him ; and that he and
his Tenants fhould be freed from paying any
Part of the Money.

Mz, Bere
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Mr. Bernard.” My Lord, T am Councif for the
Traverfer. The Queftion is, Whether he be
Guilty of Perjury in an Information, fworn be-
fore Mr, Blood. ——— If your Lordfhips will hear
the Proofs, we fhall turn the Table, and prove
Mr. Hurly was a Man that came with a good
Fund of Money into this Kingdom, and left a
cood Fund in France, and that he drew Bills of
Exchange upon his Correfpondentin France 5 that
his Correfpondent gave him an Account, that
Mr. Arthur difcovered where all his Effelts lay,
and all was feized ; and the Bills came back pro-
tefted. Then he comes and advifes with Sir
William Hardcock, who advifed to an Accommo-
dation with Mr. Arthur: And o we did, and a-
ereed to give him what he demanded ;5 and ac-
cordingly, we gave him Bonds.  And in 169g,
we brought a Billin Chancery. We met Mr, Ar-
thus*s Brother in Dublin ; he faid, we fhould not be
diflurbed at the Affizes at Eanis,. We went down
accordingly, and carried our Money along with
us, and we did go another Way, and not by
Loughrea.  And we fhall fhew your Lordfhips
further, that there was a Quarrel between Mr.
Hurly and Siwc Donagh O-Brien: Sir Donagh had
fuch great Intereft in the Country, prevailed
withthe Jury, tor fome Reafons, that the Prefent-
ment was not found for us at the Aflizes; but
four Men were taken up for the Robbery, and
laid in Irons; and they were told, there wasa
Commiflion of Oyer and Terminer coming down,
and that they fhould be Arraigned——-Fere 1s
Life or Dcath propoled: If you confefs the
Matter, and place it upon Hurdly, you fhall have
your Lives; but, if youdo not, as foon as the
Commiflion comes down, you fhall ftretch for
it. The Perlons were fenfible, that thofe who
threatened them could effe€t it, and they were
kept clofe from all others but thefe Perfons, and
they {ollicited them, until they got them to give
in Examinations againft Mr, Hurly, But they
came afterwards to Mr, Herly, and told him, 1t
was the Threats and Dangers they were in,
made them do what they had done, and thac
they were troubled for it.  And after that,
they went before my Iord Chief- Juftice Pyne, and
they forlwore all,  After this the Contrivance of
the Counters, that muft be managed ; and a Bag
of Counters 15 brought down to Hicky’s Wife,
and fhe muft hide it where 1t may be found
by this Huoxin. My Lord, we fhall thew your
lordfhip all thefe Matters. I apprehend they
are Men of Credit that will fwear the Matters
in my Brief, that Mr. Hurly was really and tru-
ly Robb’d, and that thefe Profecutions have been
carried on by Bribery, and fuch-like Pratices in
the Country.

Mr. Fofter. We'll thew you, that Mr. Hurly had
2000 [, and that he carried a Part of it into the
Country to pay off Arhur. We fhall fhew
where we had the Money, and that he brought

it down.

Charles Fitz-Symmons, Merchait, called, did
- 7oL appear.

Jobir Hurly {worn,

Mr, Foffer. Pray give an Account to the
Court and the Jury, whether you were employ’d

to receive Money for Mr. Hurly, and of whop

Jobn Hurly. I was employed in 1646, and 1
recerved of Mr, Feremiah Donovan, 200 ], gpq
Col. Levet paid me 490 /. for 500 Lonis £y

Court. In what Year did vou receive it ff;J'Hl
Col. Lovet ¢

Fobn Hurly. Tt wasin 96 or g7,

Mr. Foffer. And how much more ?

Jobn Hurly. From Mr, Fiiz-§ ymmois, 206 |
10 5. in 1697.——And I received a Bill' in 7,
merick, of 200/,

Mr., Foffer. What did he bid you do with the
Money ? '

jobn Hurly. He fent me this Money our of
Hollaud, and bid me fecure it for him.

Mr. Fyffer, Did your Brother lay out any M.
ney for a Mortgage.

Fobi Hurly, Not any at all,

Mr. Hurly, I appeal to the Gentlemen of the
Country, whether I did purchafe any Thing,

Mr. Recorder. You are not accufed for a Py
chafer, Sir,

Court. Did you pay him that Money again ?

Jobun Hurly. Yes, my Lord.

Court. Was 1t before he was Robb’d?

Jobn Hurly. Yes, it was,

Coxrt. Pray what Dilfcourfe had your Brother
with you concerning any Money he had by
him ?

Fobu Hurly, He told me all along, that he could
pay rthury and that he had a Fund to pay ir,
And I tell you, Sir, before this Robbery, I came
to his Houfe, and his Wife told me, My Bro-
ther will do very well, for that he has brought
Money to pay oft Arthur,——How doyou know
that, faid I? Saysfhe, I faw a Bagof Gold
with him.

Conrt. Were you there after the Robbery ?

Jobn Hurly. Icame next Morning, and [ found
the Trunks broken open, and all the Houfe in
Diforder.

Mr. Ffter. Do you know Capt. Lyich?

Fobit Hurly, Yes.

Court. Do you take this Lyach to be a fair ho-
neft Man?

Fobn Hurly. 1 will tell you what T know.
About Chriftmas lalt, T came to the County of
Gallway to Mr. Lynch. .There were fome
Land that my Father held from him; and he
fet the Reverfion of the Land. I told him, that
it was ill done, that we fhould not have the
Preference of the Land; and I told him, my Bro
ther would keep him out two Years. -The
Servant that was with me, told me, that he prof
fer’d him Twenty Pounds to fivear the Robbery
upon my Brother. When he came back, |
afked him about it, and he faid, he feared he
would prove him not to be within the Articles
of Gallway 3 and, fatd he, if he will give mequict
Poffeflion of my Lands, *tis well 3 if not, ['ll give
him a Lift,

Mr. Fyfter. Do you know of any Jewels thit
belong to Mr. Hurly, befides the Money.

Yobu Hurly, He gave me a Diamond Ring fot
my Wife, and fhewed me a Ring he faid was
worth 100/

Mr, Fofter. Do you know of any Rewards prof-
fered to fwear againft Hurly?

Yobn Hurly. One Hicky thewed me a Note uf

eer Mr, Hickman's Hand, and Mr Cufack’s I',II'a}r]ld[
;
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That Hickman and Gafact promifed to intercede
wirh the Government for Pardon for him and
ochers, if they proved the Robbery on Patrick
Harly. - .~ And that they fhould be found with
wood Meat, Drink, Wathing and Lodgtng, and
difcharged without Fees, ——— He fhewed me this
Note within 2 Week or fome fhort Time after he
was difcharged.

Court. You fay, That this Note was no more,
han that My, Hickman and Mr. Cufack promifed
they would intercede to the Government, if {o be
he would tell the Truth @

Yobi Hurly. Yes. — In proving a Robbery
apon Patitck Hurly.

Mr. Fyler. Were you at Einis @

Fobn Hurly. Yes, I was.

Me Fafler. Who was there examined on QOath
to prove this Robbery ¢

Foom Hurly, There was Dorothy hemp, and
o Hurly, and this Margarer Gomneene, and fhe
was examined at Home.

Wr. Fefler, Was Mr. Ronane examined ?

Fobir Hurly, Yes, and his Man too.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Now, Sir, Pl afk the Witnefs
2 Queltion. Pray what Credit did the
Jury give to it 7 Was you dcfired by your bro-
ther, before the Robbery, or at the Time of the
Robbery, to join with one Cafey, to be bound
with him for the Money ?

Yobn Hurly, 1 was defired to join with Cafey.
My Brother pretended I owed him Money, 1
wld him it was an unreafonable Thing, for I had
mv Rent to pay.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Did you pafs a Bond to Cafey,
Mr, Hurly

Fobn Hurly, I did, Sir; 1 told you before.

Mr. 84, Gen. 'Who was bound in that Bond?

Yobir Hurly. None but my {elf.

M, Sol. Gen. Who did you give the Bond to?

Yobit Hurly. 1 gave 1t to Cafey.

Mr. Sof. Gen. My Lord, about Chriftmas laft
was Twelve-month, he comes to this Gentleman,
his Brother, and defired he would get him Iifty
Pounds, and he told him, he craved yet the Mo-
ney, if he would pafs his Bond for it to one Cafey,
which he accordingly did: This Bond comes into
Patrick Hurly's Hand, and he enters up the Judg-
ment, and an Execution upon it, againit his Bro-
ther’s Goods, for his own Ufe. Sir, had you
any Money from Cafey ¢

Fobn Hurly. No, 1 had none,

Mr. Sol. Gen. W ho took the Execution out, and
who took your Goods upon that Execution ?

Yobin Hurly. Charles Mac-Donogh did it 5 I paid
hint the Money.

Mr. Sol. Genr. Who had the Money for Chardes
Mac-Donogh 2

Yobu Hurly. 1 had ity Sir.——1 will unriddle
this Matter. I was very unwilling to go to
Law, —— I came to Cafey, and defired him to
pretend to lend me 50/, and my Brother would
give him his Bond tor it.——He will pay you,
Lid 1, but will not pay it me.

Cours, Did you owe your Brother 50/

Fobn Hurly, 1 did owe him near 1t, only he
took fome Cattle of mine.

Mr. Att. Gen. Pray, Sir, are you in Cuftody of
the Marfhalfea, at your Brother’s Suit?

" Jobn Hurly, Yes, Tam; and likewife at Mr,
O-Briei's and Mr. Fitz-Simow's Suit, The Money

VoL. V,

that I received from Mr. Fitz- Simons, and paid
my Brother the fame Day, I am now in Cuftody
for 1t fince April laft,

Mr. Recorder. You fay, that you received feveral
Sums of Money for your Brother, and you faid,
there was a Balance betweeh you and your Bro-
ther : How much was that Balance? And whar
became of it? IHow much Money had your Bro-
ther 1n 97, 98, and g9 ?

Jebn Hurly, When my Brother went into the
Country, I difcounted with nim.,

Mr. Att. Gen. You fay, you received feveral
Sums; that you paid 200/, to Mr, Gardier, and
fome other Sums : How much did you pay back
1n Specie to your Brother ?

Jebin Hurly, The Money Mr. Fitz Simons cave
;Tfe, I came to my Brother’s Lodging, and paid ic
1m,

Court, This 1s a Matter that has been tranf-
acted within the Compafs of three or {four Years,
and this cannot flip out of your Memory,  You
(ay, all the Money you received of Fitz-Simons you
paid your Brother again, What more did
you pay him?

Hurly, 1 paid him the 200/, W Limerick,——
I pari him 190/, or thercabouts, more.

Court, When was that ?

Hurly, 1 paid it him in the Year 1697, in the
begininng of g8.

Mr. Sol. Geir. You fay, you pard Mr, Burtois
200/, -—~ Did you pay any others?

Hurly, 1 paid him no more, bat what I paid
him for the Farm — I gave him Bullocks, 20
old Bullocks, at 46 5. a-ptece, and the reft came
o 30/. more,

Mr. Sol. Gen, There was a Sum of 200/ paid,
and the reft drawn out 1n {mall Sums from
Time to Time, as he had Occalion to call for’t e
How much was Brien’s Money ¢

Hurly, It was about 40/, and I gave him a
Bond of Capt, Lynch’s, of about 6/ 105, and I
aave him a Bond on a Brother-in-Law of mine,
and a Bond on Lyuch.

Mr, A, Gen, How much of the Money that
you reccived for Patrick Hurly, did you lend
out, and to whom ?—Did it amount to 200/, 2

Hurly. Yes, 1t did,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did it amount to 300 L 2

Hurly. No, 1t did not.

Mr. Att. Gen. Was this Money paid back a-
oain to Mr, Iitz-Simons 2

Hurly. T havea Bill in Chaicery againit him,

Mr. Recorder. 1 defire to know, wiether Mr.
Fitz-Simous had the 300 /. back agam:?

Hurly. My Brother told me he paid him e-
very Farthing, and faid, he had a Diicharge from

him.
Mr., Recorder. Pray how much of this Money

had M. Arthur? |
Hurly, T don’t know of any Dealing with Mr.

Arthur.

Mr. At Gen. 1 did hear, that he afligned a
Bond of Capt. Chriflopbsr O-Brien’s to him.

Hurly. That 00/, my Brother owed me; and
the Bond my Brother gave for it, I gave Mr. Fit2-
Simons the Bond, and he arrelted him on It

My. A, Gen, Pray, Sir, did you fend any Hol-
land Sheets, after this pretended Robbery, to any
Place?

Hurly, Yes,

I did, to Capt. O-Brier's.
Fff Mr. Ait.
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Mr. At Gen. Whete did you find them ?
Hurly, 1will tell you, my Lord. ——We were
* told, that oneHalloway was coming to myFather’s,
at the Suit of one Neylan, to take all away, —
My Father fent for me, and defired me to come
to him, for Hallsway was coming to ranfack the
Houfe.

Mr. A, Gen. How long was this after the
Robbery ?

Hurly. It was a Month afterwards. I
came there, and one of the Maids told me there
was 2 Portmanteau in the Turi-ftack. - I
took it Home that Night, and I was order’d by
her to deliver it to Capt. Chriffopher O-Briei,
1 fent for him to a Friend’s Houfe, and openced
it before Capt. O- Brien, and took an Inventory of
what was in it.——There were five or fix Pan
of Holland Sheets,——This was a Month or two
after the Robbery.

Mr. Recorder. Another Man {wore, 1t was the
beginning of May, or the latter end of April.

M. Fofter. We had this Money, and will fhew
you how we loft this Moncy, and fhall prove
the Robbery.,

Dorothy Kemp {worn.

Mr, Fgfter, Pray Mrs. Kemp, where did you
dwell in gg?

Mrs. Remp. 1 dwelt in Mougbua in the County
of Clare, within a quarter of a Mile where Mr.
Hurly lived.

Court. Wheredid you live at the Time that he
was robbed ? Were you in the Houfe when the
Robbery was committed ?

Mrs., Kemp. Yes, 1 was,

Court. Pray give an Account what you know
of that Robbery.
~ Mrs, Kemp. My Lord, There was Counfellor
Ronane three Days waiting for Mr, 4rthur to
pay him fome Money., My Miftrefs went out of
Town upon Saturday before, and took fome
Gold out of lLer Chelt, and fhewd fome of 1it,
and put it in again; and fhe did not come Home
till Moiday Morning after the Robbery was
committed. 1 went to the Trunk, to get fome
Table-Linnen, and I laid my Hand on the Bag
were the Gold was. My Mafter came in the
mean time, and faid, What do you do there?
I fuid, I wanted fome Table-Linnen; and my
Mafter took away the Bag, and put 1t mto the
Clofet.

Court. And {o you concluded, that was the Bag;
of Gold:?

Mrs. Kemp, Yes, I did,

Conrt, Did you know any of the People that
were at the Robbery ?

Mrs. Kemp. No, my Lord, I did not,

Court. How many Robbers werce there ?

Mrs. Kemp, As I underftand, there were feven
of them.

Court. Did you fee them all ?

Mts. Kemp. Juft after Supper, Counfellor Ko-
sane got up to go to Bed, and went out of the
Door, and then the Robbers got in, We went
up to lay down the Bed, and my Mafter’s Man
came running and crying, my Malter 1s mur-
dered ; fo we got open the Door, and there was
five came up with Swords and Piftols;

Conrt. Had they any Mafks or Vizards ?

Mrs, Kemp. I cannot tell.  They commanged
us into the Room, where my Mafter’s Fathey 1,
Bed-ridden thefe three Years paft. !

Conrt, How many did you fee there at tly
Time?

Mrs., Kenip, 1{aw five come up, and there wy
two more 1 the Parlour,

Court, Pray Miftrefs, by Virtue of your Qazh,
what Arms was there ?

Mrs, Kemp. My Lord, we kept Arms juft by
the Door, a Carbine and Fuzee, becaufe he wgs
fomething in Debt.

Conrt. Were thofe the fame Arms your Maftey
had before ?

Mrs. Kemp, 1 cannot tell 5 but they took hi
Piftols, and put Gravel into them.

Mr. Aut. Gen. Who put the Gravel nto the
Piftols ?

Mrs. Kemp. The Tories.

Mr. Bernard. Was there any Offers made to
her to put Counters into Hicky's Houfe?

Mrs. Kemp., My Lord, 1 was promifed Ten
Pounds, to put Counters into my Mafter's
Houfe,

Court. She fays, the was defired by one M-
rongh O-Brien, to lay Counters m her Mafter's
Houfe, or Hicky’'s Houfe 3 a Bribe of Ten
Pounds was offered her, and fhe refufed i
But that he lent to Dawiel Hicky’s Wile twenty
times; and fhe has fome of the Letters he
writ.

Court, By whom were thefc Letters wrir
ten ?

Mrs. Kemp. By Mureugh Obricny for his M
brought them,

Conrt. Pray when was this, that you were offer-
ed Ten Pounds to hide Counters in your Matter’s
IHoufe, or Hicky's

Mrs. Kemp, It was before the Affizes a pretiy
while,

Mv. Sol. Gein. My Lord, here 1s Donsshr 0-
Brien,

Court, Where was it he offered you this Mo-
ney.
3lf\’Irs. Kemp. It was at Sheingge, a quarter of a
Mile from where he hves,

Mr. Recorder. And he was to give you Tes
Pounds to bury Counters in Hicky’s Houle,

Mr. Butler. When the Rogues came in, how
did they ufe your Maiter ?

Mus. Kemp. They ty’d him, and Counfello:
Ronane,

Mr, £ofter. You know Murough O- Brieiny Pray
how often did you fee him with Mrs, Hicky ?

Mrs. Kemp. 1 {aw him often with her. Said
he, Mrs. Hicky, Mr3Hicky is calt down, and hes
not worth a Farthing, he is ty’d Neck and
Heels.

Court. Did you hear this?

Mrs, Kemp. She told me fo.

Mr. Foffer. We only offer it as far as it wil
00,
Mr. Att. Gen, It will not go at all,

Mr. Sol. Gen. 1 am told, that Murough O-Brics
is in Court; fhe fpeaks of fome Words and Let-
ters between her and him and Mrs. Hicky.

Mr. Fuoffer. What Linnen was taken away by
the Robbers ¢ ’

I\II'S. Kf?ﬂ:'
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Virs. Kemp. My Lord, I partly can fivear, that
{ wal’d twenty Pair of Holland Sheets s there
wis thirty Pair, I wafh’d twenty Pair my felf.

G, How many was left ?

Mrs. Kemp. There was bue five Par.

Court. Hlow came they to leave them behind ?

Mrs. Kemp. They did not flay to take them

avay-

Murough O-Bricu {worn,

Court. Pray had you any Difcourfe with this
{Voman concerning Counters ¢

0-Brica. By Virtue of the Oath I have taken,
[ never had.

Court. Did you never offer her 10/, to lay
Counters in Mrs, Hicky’s Houle?

0-Brien. By Virtue of my Oath, I did not.

Mrs. Kemp. By Virtwe of my Oath, you did.,

Court. Did you fend any Letters o Hicky or
his Wife ?

0.Brien. Yes, 1 did write to Hicky, and to
l1i5 ".Vifﬂ.

G2, Upon what Occafion did you write ?

O-Brien. Hicky's Wife came to me, and told
me, that if I could get a Protection for her Hul-
band, from Sir Donough O-Brien, he would make
it plain, that this was a Sham-Robbery : And
Hicky's Wife faid, fhe could produce thofe very
Counters.  Charles Mac-Donogh was by when fhe
fid, If we would procure a Pardon for her Huf-
band, they would produce the Counters, and
and make the Matter plain.

Mr. Soil. Gen. This Woman fays, that Murongh

O-Brizn came to Hicky's Wife, and faid foand fo,

and writ Letters to Hicky’s Wife. Murougo O-Brienr
comes now and fays, that Hicky's Wite came to
him, and told him, that ber Hufband could make
out the Sham-Robbery, if he could get a Pro-
tedtion for him. M. O-Brien, this Woman fays,
tht you did fend to Hicky’s Wife, and that you
did tamper with her.

O-Brien. It’s a very improbable Thing, if I
hid a mind to tamper wich her, that I would
umper with Hurly's Whore — My Lord, if
wou'd have come on fuch a Bufinefs, would any
oue believe that I fhould employ this Woman,
that has had a Baftard or two by Mr. Hurly?

Murough O-Brien’s Letter to Hicky read.

Mrs. Hicky,

““ I pray do me the Favour to come hither as
“ {oon as poflible ; for I have fome Bufinefls to
““ talk with you, which chiefly concerns yourdelt:
“ And leaft you may apprehend any evil Defign
“ againft you, I do here promife you, that you
““ thall be as fafe as your Heart can with, whilit

“ you are in the Company of *’
Muroush O-Brien.

A Second Letter read.

Mrs, Hicky,

“ When I {ent for you on Saturday was Seven-
“night, I thought I fhould fee you at Mafs,
“but T miffed that Opportunity ¢ I defire you

Vor. V,

““ will ftep hither To-morrow, and meet me in
“ fome convenient Place, where we may talk
“ without Cenfure or Sufpicion : I have no other
“ Defign, but to ferve you and your Hufband.
“ Be fure you don’t fail to come to me, if you
““ ever expect any Friendfhip from” -
Mac-B.

Daiizel Mac-Cay {worn,

Mr. Fofter. Where did you live in Mareb, gg?

Mac-Cay. 1lived with Patrick Hurly.
b Co;:rt. Where were you the Time of the Rob-

ery :

Mac-Cay, I was in his Houfe, my Lord ; Lwas
there on Sunday the 3d of Murch, and there was
Fehn Ronane and himfelf, and they were juft go-
ing to Bed, and Fobn Rowawe was going out of
the Door, and there came five Perfons with na-
ked Swords, and rufhed in; they were difgyifed
and disfigured : My Lord, when they came in,
they fel’d him down on his Face, and gave him
fome Strokes ; and I was there, and they purfued
me and Gillian Hurly, and we ran up, and they
locked the Door after us; they made a Shot be-
low ; then Iwas aflured it was fome Bailifs that
came to take my Maiter; fome of the Family
was in Bed, and {fome up. -

Mr. Recorder. Your Mafter was upon his keep-
ing then? |

Mac-Cay. And when we heard the Noife be-
Jow, we got fome Sticks, and broke open the
Door, and perceived two Fellows at the Door;
they made a couple of Shots at us, but did us no
Harm ; and then came three or four, and one of
them purfued me, and made a Shot after me,
but did me no Harm. We did'not go out till
thefe Fellows went out, and then we broke open
the Door, and we found my Mafler tied faft o
his own Bed-fide, and Counfellor Ronane ; and
all the Trunks were broke. My Mafter bid me
oo to the next Village, and raife the Neighlous-
hood; fo I did.

Court. Pray, Friend, How many did you fee of

the Robbers? |
Mac-Cay. 1 faw five, my Lord, and two with-

out at the Window.

Conrt. The Woman faid there were five in her
Malter’s Parlour, and two at the Door.  Siry did
you know any of the Parties that robbed him,
upon your Oath? What Diiguifes had they ?
Were they black, or had they Vizards ¢

Mauc-Cay. 1 cannot tell, my Lord.

Court. Did you take any Notice of any of the
Arms, whether thofe Arms belonged to your
Matter ? Take Care, upon your Oath, you {peck
nothing but Truth.

Mac-Cay. My Lord, we had Arms of my Ma-
fter, which they feized on, and we found them
abroad next Mornir.g,

Court. Did the Bullets hic any Part of the
Houfe ?

Mae-Cay. No, my Lord, I did not ciblerve -
that. ,

Court. Pray, Friend, was there any morc than
one Shot made ¢

Mac-Cay. There was, my Lord. |
Court. Was there any Mark of any Bullet to

be {een?
Ffifz2 Mac-Cay.
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Mac-Cay. 1 dia not fee any.

Mr. Forfler. You fay, they came m with Fire-
Armsand Swords; Had your Mafter any Swords?

Mac-Cay. There was none but one; and they
had five naked Swords.

Mr. Forfler. They had no Fire-Arms but your
Matfter’s ¢

Mac-Cay. We found them abroad next Morn-
ing 1n the Street.

Mr. Foffer. What Road did your Mafter I7urly
travel when he went from this Town, the lafl
Time he was in Dublin before the Robbery ?

Mac-Cay. He went through the County of
Gallway, through Mount-Talbot.

Mr. Foffer. Do you know Capt, Lyich ?

Mac-Cay. Yes, he lives in Capperquin,

Mr., Fofter. Were you with your Mafter all the
Way home ? '

Mac-Cay. Yes, I was.

Court. Mr, Lynch faid (I muft do him nght)
that he did not remember what Company was
with him, but that he drank a Bottle of Wine
with him at Loughrea, and there faw the Counters;;
and it is much about the Time this Man
{wears,

Mr. Recorder. Exaltly, my Lord.

Mr. Fofter. Were you with your Mafter when
he was in Dublin? Did you fee any Quantity of
Money with him ?

Mac-Cay. Yes, I did.

Court, Pray, did you fee any Counters with
him ?

Mac-Cay. No, my Lord: I was offer’d to have
my Fortune raifed for ever if Iwould fwear, that
he bought the Counters, and breught themto the
County of Clare.

Conrt, You faw Money with your Mafter :
‘Where was it he receiv’d the Money ?

Mac-Cay. I do not know 3 but he fhew'd it
me, and faid, It was a fad Thing to pay away {o
much Money : And he put his Hand in his Poc-
ket and pull’d out fome Gold, fome Broad-Pieces
and a Gold Cob; and he fatd, he would keep the
Purfe, and not take any Thing out until he got
home to pay Mr. Arthui off.

Carty, Was 1t 1n the Portmanteau ?

Mac-Cay. Ycs, 1t was,

Mr, Recorder., Was this the Time that your
Mafter was in Loughrea ¢

Mac-Cay, No, this was in February, and it was
before Chriftimas he was at Loughrea.

Court, Upon what Occafion was it that your
Mafter fhew’d you the Gold ? _

Mac-Cay. He told me, at his own Lodging in
Warbur-firect, Is it not a fad Thing to pay fo
much Money to that Rogue Arthur, that had
ferv’d him fuch a Trick?

Court. Did you take notice of it your felf ?

Mac-Cay, Yes: It was not Counters; no, I
know Gold from Counters.

Court, Were they Guincas or Louis d’Ors?

Mac-Cay. They were Louts d’Ors,

Mr, Butler, Pray, whenyou went the laft time
with your Malter from Dublin; what Way did
you go to Mount-Talbor 2 At what Place did you
crofs the Shannon ?

Mac-Cay. 1do not know the Place 3 T do not
know the Name of the Place at all.

Mr. Butler, ‘Did you {wim over, or go over a
Bridge ? '

Mac-Cay. 1 think we went over a Brid

Mr, Butler, \Whart Bridge ?

Mac-Cay. 1 do not know the Name of It

Court. Did you go thro’ Athlone ?

Mac-Cay. Yes, we went thro® Zillone,

Conrt. It I had fud Lancfborongh, he vioul] hava
faid {o too.

Mr. Butler., You are pofitive, that in the laft
Journey before the Robbery, you no ).G*m_
Mafter were not at Loughrea?

Mac-Cay. 1 am pofitive,

Mr. Butler. Where did your Mafter lie ¢
Night before you came to Traquin ? ”

Mac-Cay. It was at Ballihoy,

Mr, Butler. Pray, Sir, what Way did yoy gq
from Athlone to Eyres-Conit or Ballihe )y ? °

Mac-Cay. T do not know the Names of ¢l
‘Towns.

Mr. Butler. Pray how far is it from Z7sguiy 1,
Loyres-Conrt ?

Mac Cay. I do not know.

Mr, Butler. What Way did you come to 3.7
boy back again, for that is on this fide the Shyp;,
and many Miles on this lide of . 4:blone ?

Mac Cay. My Mafter had hrs Brother-in-Lay,
M. Terry, along with him, and when he came
Balliboy he would fee his Sifter, and {o he wep;
to Tiaquin,

Court. How could you go from Athloie to pi.
liboy? Did you lic at Athlone that Night ?

Mac-Cay. No, my Lord, we did lie beyond jt,
at a Place where there 15 a Bridge.

Court. Where is that Bridge ?

Mac-Cay, It 1s on the Shanion, on this fide
Aghrinm,

Mr. Butler. If you pleafe, Sir, did you carry
the Portmanteau to Tiaquin 2

Mac-Cay, Yes, Ldid.

Mr, Batier. And was it not left at any other
Place behind you?

Mac-Cay, No, 1t was not,

M. Butler. You are pofitive you carried it to
Tiaguin 2

Mac-Cay. Yes, I did carry 1t to Tiagnin.

Mr. Butler. Was it left at Gort- Infbigory before
you went to Tiaquin, or after?

Mac-Cay, My Mafter hired a Horfe, and he
was lame 3 and he defir'd me to go on Saswrany,
before he came himfelf, or Capt. Boxrk, and his
Father-in-Law kept him.

Mr. Butler. Was the Gold in the Portmantea
at that Time?

Mac-Cay. Yes, 1t was.

Court. And you carricd the Portmanteau (0
Gort from Tiaquin ?

Mac-Cay. Yes; I came from my Mafter from
Tiaquin 1o Gort 3 he fent me on Saturday, and he
came on Suuday Night,

Mr. Butler. My Lord, I will make 1t appear,
by three or four Men of undoubted Credit, that
Mr. Hurly did {wear, at the Aflizes of Eruis, that
he was at Longbrea before he went to Traguin, and,
that he left the Portmanteau there, and did not
carry it to a Traquin.

Mr. Butler. Did your Mafter pay for the Horlt
he hired ? or, Did you hear he gave a Bond for
it ?

Mac-Cay. 1 do not know,

Court. Do you know of any Bond givcnwl])}‘
g

3
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My, Hurly, to pay the Hire t:.:f the Horfe ?
A4uc-Cay. I do not know indeed, my Lord.
Mr. Recorder. He faid, his Mafter fhew’d him

e Money 1n Town, and fl'iifl 1t was a Shame to

iy it 10 Artbur, Now, did your Mafter pay

v Money £
Aar-Cay. He told me, that Artbur promis’d to

come to his IHoufe in che County of Clare ; and,

[h.i.[ he WULIH make lli!]l [Zl]{(f i[ on CZIﬁL‘I‘ TCI'H]S

dun if he fhould pay it in Dublin.

Court. If he had cthe Money, why did he not
pay it hun'e | '

Aac Cav, He faid, he hoped to compound with
At calier than to give him all that he de-
manded.

Mr. Bernard. My Client tells me, that this
Mae Cay is @ material Witnefs, as to Calaghan
Corty: Do you know Calaghan Carty ?

Mac-Cay. Yes, very well,

Coxrt. Ilow long have you known him ¢

M Cay. Thele two Years,

Court. Were you with him before my Lord
Chict-Juftice Pyne 2

Aac Cay. Yes, I wass he made an Afhdavi,
and fwore before my Lord Chief-Juftice Pywe.

Courf. What was the Subftance of 1e¢

Alic-Cay. That he knew nothing of the Rob-
bery s and, that he was much concern’d he had
fvorn againft Mr. Hurly. They lodg’d at the
Black-Bull \n Chaureh-Strect.

Court, Are you confident, that this Calaghas
Cartv twore before my Lord Chief- Juftice Pyne?

Mac-Cay. Yes, he did.

Mr. Butlei. Where did you lie the Night be-
forc you went thro’ Athlone ?

Mic-Cay. T am not fure of the Name of any
Place where we did lie fince we left Daublin,

Mr, Butler. You are pofitive you did lic Ina
Place that had a Bridge upon a River ¢

Airc-Cay. Yes, 1am,

Csurt, Pray, one Queflien more: You fay,
you have gone with Mr. Hurly feveral times to
the Country ; How often did he go Conanght
Way?

Mac-Cay, He went always Conaught Way.

Court. How often has he gone, that you can
recollect your felf?

Mac-Cay, We came from the County of Clase
the Summer after I came to him, to Loughrea,
and Eyres-Conrt, and over Basiagher-Bridge, and
o to Muifter-Ewin.

Cﬂff;'t. Which is the Way you ufed always
10 oo !

Muc-Cay. That Way ; but that Time he wenc
[0 1’] I b.;‘:' Hf x

Chriftopher O-Brien fizorn,

r Mr. Butler, Pray, Sir, by Virtue of your Oath,
iid you offer any Money to that Man ?

O Brien. No, upon my Oath.

.I}'Ir. Butler. Did you offer him Money, or pro-
mie to raife his Fortune, if e would give Evi-
dence about Counters ?

O-Brien. Never, my Lord; he came to me
i told me, there was fome came to his Malfter,

aid would fwear, that
i iy,

Court. Did you ever make him any Promife,
wany Ofter at all ?

were come from

O-Brien. Never in my Life, my Lord.

Mac-Cay, Did not you, at the Swan-Tavern,
when I carried a Letter to Capt. Bonrk ?

Court. How long ago was this ?

Mac-Cay. Before the Term, I think.

Court, Was it before Chriftmas?

Mac-Cay. No, my Lord, it was after Chriffmas,

Court. Mr. Hurly, you know the Contrary o
this your felf: If you’ll have me, Il fend for
the Examination fworn by your felf concerning
this Matter,

Pat. Hurly. He fpeaks to him more than
once.

Mr. Recorder. Had you any Difcourfe with
Mr, O-Brien about the Counters ?

Mac-Cay. Yes, once or twice.

Mr, Recorder. Had you any Difcourfe about
them more than once?

Mac-Cay. He never {poke to me about the
Counters, but once at the Swan-Tavern.

Court. That of Mr. O Brien’s tampering with
this Man; Mr. Hurly, you are complain’d of be-
fore Chriftmas laft,  Ide faid, he was once with a
Letter at the Swan-Tavern; and, that Mr. O-
Bricir dhd there talk to him about tampering with
other Witnefles 5 but it was before that, that you
faid Mr. O-Brien tamper’d with himfelf about the
Counters.

Conrt. W here was it ?

Mac-Cay, At the Tavern.

Court. At what Tavern?

Mac-Cay. The Swan.

Court. When was this ?

Mac-Cay, Before Chriftmas, or a little before
the laft Term,

Court, He fays, it was the Time of his deli-
vering of a Letter.

Mac-Cay. My Lord, 1 deliver’d a Letter to
Capt. Bourk at the Swan-Tavern, and, I think, it
was before Chriftmas.

Court. So that you deliver’d more Letters than
onc?

Mac-Cay. 1 deliver’d feveral to him,

Conrt, This Gentleman is accus’d by this
Mac-Cay 3 and how far that will weigh with any
Man, muft be left to the Jury.

Mr. Butler. 'This Mr, Mac-Cay was very pofi-
tive, that the Portmanteau was carried to Tiaguin,
and, that it was not left behind. I am ready to
prove, by two or three credible Evidences, that
Mr. Hurly did fwear at the Aflizes, that it was lefc
behind at Longbrea, and, that it was not carried
to Tiaquin,

M. Bernard. My Lord, I defire we may firft
preduce another Witnefs to the Subornation ;
Yobu Crips, a Perfon fuborn’d to {wear agamit
my Client.

John Crips fwors.
(Per Interpreler.)

Conrt. Where does he live? and, Withwhom?¢

Interp. He lives at Moughna, in the County of
Clare,

Court. Afk him, what he can fay of any tam-
pering with him to {wear againft Mr. Hurly,

Interp. He fays, one Halloway and Walter Ney-
Jan tamper’d with him : That Halleway {ent for
him three Weeks after Mr, Hurly was taken to

Emnis, and he ran into a Rabbet-hole, for he was
- afraid

L )
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afraid of him, and fent his Wife to know what
he would have of him,

Tuterp. And, my Lord, he is telling a long
Story of this Halloway being a troublefome Man
and, that the whole Country would joyn with
him, to give an ill Character ¢f bim, 1f 1t were
not for the Perfons he appears againft,——And,
he fays, he was always inclin’d to do Ewvil, and
every body was afraid of him.

Court, Afk him, Was there any Offer made
to him !

Tnterp. He fays, that Neylan and Halloway
offered him Fifty Pounds to fwear againft Mr,
Hurly, that he contriv’d the Robbery agamft
himlelf,

Court, Were they both together? or, Did
they fpeak to him feverally ?

Jnterp. They fpoke to him feverally.

Conrt. Afk him, Where was it that Halleway
propos’d this to him:?

Interp. About three Weeks after Mr. Hurly
was puc into Goal, he fays, Halloway firlt fpoke
to him

Court. Did Halloway fpeak to him any morc
than once ¢

Tnterp. He fays, He defir’d him to go with
him before Mr. O-Brien; and he offer’d him Six
Guineas to go and prove the Matter, and, that
he would give him the reft afterwards,

Conrt. Was any body by?

interp. He fays, No body.

Court.  Where was it that Neylan offer’d him
the Money ?

Interp. He fays, my Lord, that Halloway ufed
feveral threatening Words, if he did not comply
with what he defi'd him to do; and, that he
would {end him to Goal at Ennis, where he fhould

not fee the Light any more.
Court. Can he remember the Day that this

was?
futerp. About Six Weeks after Hurly was

taken.
Court. Where was it that Neylan proffer’d him
any Reward, and what it was he offer'd him ?

[ At this the Fellow fplutter’d, and made a fer-
rible voife in Irifh.]

Interp. My Lord, he will not aniwer to the
dire&t Queftion. He fays, my Lord, that /.allo-
way threaten’d him, and broke open his Doors,
and came there with Arms, and brought a dif-
banded Soldier, and took him by the Hair of the
Head, and threaten’d him, becaufe he did not
come to him at the Time appointed.

Conrt, Did he complain to any Juftice?

Interp. He fays, He complain’d to Mr, Filz-
Gerald,

Court. Pray afk him, what Neylan faid to him,

Iuterp, He fays, He offer’d him the grazing of
Six Collops free, and an Houf= and Garden du-
ring his Life, to fwear againft Patrick Hurly,

Mr. Butler. What Time was it that Neylan
made him this Offer ? and, in what Place?

Interp. - My Lord, the Arifwer he rade to that
is, That Halloway, dfter he had taken him out of
his Bed, and drage’d him by the -Hair of the

o

Head, that then they and Neylan met.
Conrt, Where was it he met Neylan 2

Interp. At Bally-Ryan, in a Houfe there,

Court., What Time?

&ﬁf!frp. About a Month before ﬂffc‘lmdmm
laft.

Court. Pray afk him, where 1t was thar 3,
Neylan did tell him he would give him ),
Six Collops grazing, to fwear againft Pay;:)
Hurly ? -

Inlerp. He fays, he will recollect it : He fuy
laft Summer. ’

Mr. Recorder. 1 am inform’d, my Lord, thy
while this Man was afk’d the Queftion, iy
faid, lalt Michaclmas. Mr. Huily, 1 ne.
ver faw any Man, fo far prefum’d to be a Cii.
minal, behave himfelf with {o much Impudence
before.

Court. Mr, Hurly, if you don’t give over throw.-
ing out Words to your Wimefles, we muft pu;
you into the Dock. Afk himy Interpreter, Do
he know Calaghan Cariy, that was Witnefs hege
to day ?

Interp. He has known him fince he was a i,
Boy, and his Father, Mother, and Family,

Court. W hat does he know of that Carty’s Sweyy.
ing before my Lord Chief- Juttice Py ?

Interp. He fays, my Lord, that he did Swear
before my Lord Chief- Juftice Pyse, and there was
a great Lady and a young Man by.

Mr. Bernard, Now, as to Mr. Lyich, whether
he made any Propofal or Oficr, or had any Dif-
courfe with him on May-Day laft?

Interp. He fays, He faw him the Day before
May-Day 3 and, that he was very civil to him:
There was fome Controverly between him and
Mr, Harly, about the Land of Moughna ; and he
faid to me, Now Patrick Hurly 1s gone to Goul,
and fo is Fobn too, and they are both in Irons,
and they will never retrieve it, and you had beft
come and live with me in Conanght. He rold him,
That neither his Wife, nor his Mother-in-Law,
would confent to go to Conanght. Says he |
have fer the Land from the Hurly's to the B! s,
and Iurly fhall never have any thing to fay o &
more.

Court, Did he ever perfuade him to takea fuile
Oath againft Mr. Hurly?

Interp. He faid, That in his Agreement with
the Bloods, he referv’d theGrazing of four Collops,
which he fhould have, if he would fwear, that
he was one of the Robbers himfelf, and prove
the Robbery upon Hurly: And he made aniwer
to Lynch, Why fhould I do that, that will hang
me? And then Lyich feem’d forry that he h
propos’d it to him,

Mr Recorder. Afk him, Who was with hin
when Calaghai Carty fwore an Examination before
my Lord Chief-Jultice Pyne ?

Interp. Daniel Hicky, Danzel Mac-Carly, Dyicegh
O.Brien Andrews, and himfelf,

Mr. Recorder. How came he to go along with
thefe Perfons?

Interp. He fays, That he came there to pre-
vent being perfuaded to take a falfe Oath.

Mr. Recorder. Does he know what Calaghis
Carty fwore ?

Interp. He does not know.

Mr. Recorder. Who writ the Examinatioi of

Calaghan Garty ¢
Interp. He does not know.

Mr.

2
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 Mr. Butler. Was it written at my Loid Chief-
juﬂice Pyue’s? or, Had he 1t written before ?

Juterp. He brought it written to my Lord
Chief- Juftice Pyne. |

Mr. Butler. My Lord, this Man does not {feem
o be @ Man of any Credit.  Neylan and Lynch
are fworn, pray let them attend.

Court. I two Witnefles fpeak direétly contrary
one to the other, muft not it be left to the Jury
ohich they will believe? 'What does the Witnels
Crips fay ?

Tnterp.

s Perfon.

He defires a Guard, for the Safety of

Mr. Lynch flaids vp azain,

Curt. Mr, Lyneh, had you ever any Difcourfe
with this Man concerning, Mr. Patrick Hurly and
Mr., Jobu Hurly's being in Goal ?

Lyich. Yes, [had, my Lord : I faid to him,
that I heard he has been lately in Dublin, and,
that he has been an Evidence for Hurly,  No real-
ly, fays he, I'was not 3 I am weary of him, and
it T could get thefe People, that you {et the Land
o, to let me be herc a Year, I would not live any
longer with him,

Cart. Did you offer him the grazing of four
Collops ?

Lysich. 1 never did, my Lord.

Mr. Butler. The Credit of this Gentleman, and
of that Fellow, 1s left to the Jury.,

Lyuch. This Difcourfe was about this Time
Twelvemonth, at the Fair of Monghna, and Ki-
chard Hurly, Patrick’s Uncle, declar’d to me, that
it was a Sham-Robbery.

Walter Nevlan flands up again.

Conrt. Mr. Neylarz, had you any Difcourfe with
this Man about Mr, Hurly?

Neylan, T never had any Difcourfe with him,
or faw the Man, till this Day, never fince he
was born.

Court, What Time was it, he fays, that lie had
this Ditcourfe with Neylan ?

Mr. Butler. In the Place where he fays he had
the Difcourfe with Neylar in a Houfe 5 there
never was a Houfe, nor fo much as a Hute
there.

Neylan, No, my Lord, there never was a Houfe
there in my Memory.

Court. Mr, Neylan, how far is this Aenghna
from you ?

Neylan., Three Miles,

Mr, Bernard, And you not know this Man !

Mr Wakeham, my Lord Chicf-Fuftice Pynes
Clerk, fwora,

Court. Mr Wakebam, Sir, pray do you know
my Perfon that came to {wear Examinations
before my Lord Chief-Juftice Pyie, concern-

Er}g the Robbery of Mr, /Hurly in the County of
are ?

Mr. Wakebam. My Lord, there came four
Men, but I was bufy; the Gentleman rcad the
Examinations,

Court. Do you know the Perfons?

Mr. Wakebam. 1 do not know ’em ; they were
ordinarilly clad; there was a Gentleman, one
Mr, Zerry, that brought ’em,

Daniel Hicky fiorn.

Mr. Bernard, Pray give my Lord an Account
of any Offers that were made you, or Threats ufed
to you, to make you {wear againft Mr, Hurly ?
 Daniel Hicky. Itold it twice before, my I.ord,
In Auguft laft. My Lord, I was taken by #illiam
Halleway and Thoinas Bourk ; they took me to Goal,
and they bolted me; and there was Mr. Neylai in
the Goal, and he fpoke to me about the Robbe-
ry that was committed on Mr. Hurly. 1 faid, 1
knew nothing of it at all : And he told me, I
would be hang’d, for it was fworn againft me :

And T was brought before My, Hickman and Cu-

Jack, and they told me, That there was one Carty

had fworn that I was at the robbing of Mr. Hurly,
by his own Confent; and, that if I did not de-
clare r, I fhould be hang’d ; and faid, That Mr,
Hurly will hang us if we fay we robb’d him.
Never heed him, faid they, it will be no Harm
to any Man that fwears againt him.

Court. How long did you remain in Goal ?

Hicky. 1 was kept in Goal till Auguft, from the
26th of Mareb.

Conrt, Was any body with you?

Hicky. Calaghan Carty and Daniel Carty.

Conrt. What had you a Day?

Hicky. We had Twelve Pence a Day 3 and Mr.
Neylan brought red Coats, and would have us
fwear we had thofe Coars on when we rebb’d
Mr. Hurly. And they carried us before Mr.Butler,
and we would not fwear; and then we got but
Nine Pence a Day,

Court. Did you fwear, that Mr. Hurly was not
robb’d ?

Hicky. 1 did fwear; that T was not dt the rob-
bing of him my felf. |

Court. But were you examin’d about this Rob-
bery before Mr, Hickman and Mr. Cufack ¢

Hicky, They defir’d me to fwear, that I wasat
the robbing of Mr. Hurly with Dariel Carty 5 and
they told me, I fhould be hang’d if I did not
fwear 1t

Court, Did you {wear 1t ¢

Hicky. Yes, I did. | ;

M. Bernard. Aftet you fatisfied thefe Gentle-
mens Importunity, how long was it befare you
were difcharg’d cut of Prifone

Hicky: I was kept in Prifon till dfter the Af-
fizes. *

Court. Who did you fivear was with you at the
Robbery ? |

Hicky. Calaghan Carty, Donsgh O-Brien, and
Dauiel Carty. |

Court, Has he any other Name but Donogh Q-
Brien 2

Hicky. Yes, he generally goes by the Name of
Donogh O-Brien Andrews ; fome call him fo : His
Name 15 Doungh O-Brien. ‘

Court, How came you to get your Dilcharge
out ot Prifon ¢ _ _

Hicky. My Lord, when my Lord Chicf- Juftice
Pyne came, we were carried to the Bar. When
I was at the Bar, I was told I muft take the Af-

fidavit againft Mr, Hurly, and if Twould nor, 1
fhould
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thould return to Goal again. The Goaler
would let no body come near the Bar; for we
faid, We will tell the Truth, and would not
tell 2 Lye againft Mr. Hurly. And he went our,
and came In again, and took us back to the
Goal.

My, Bernard, Flow long after this were you
difcharg’d 2

Hicky. We petition’d my Lord Chief. Jullice,
and fent after him to Limerick, but got no An-
fwer; and then they fent a Mittimus to keep us
in Goal. They faid, If we got Bail, they would
cenlarge us : So Donggh O-Briew’s Friends were
bound for him, and I got a Friend to be bound
for me; and I was bound for another of the Pri-
foners.

Court. Did you ever make an Aflfidavit before
my Lord Chief-Juftice?

Hicky. Yes, we came to Town, and made an
Affidavit before him.

Conrt. Who was with you?

Hicky. Calaghan Carty, Dongglh O-Brien, Da-
niel Carty, and Crips.

Mr. Fofler. After you gave in that A
and went home, what did you do then?

Hicky, We went home then ; and we heard that
they had a Warrant againit us. ’

Court. You fay,you fwore before the Lord Chief-
Tuftice, and, that Calaghan Carty, Crips,and Donggh
O-Brien were there : And you are very fure that
Calagban Carty was onc?

Hicky. Yes, he knows me, and L know him 3 he
1s my Relation.

Conrt. Mr, Neylan, you are upon your Qath
Did you fec this Perfon in the Goal at Ennts ?
Pray give an Account of what pafs'd there, and
what Fine was put upon him, to make him difco-
ver.

Neylan, My Lord, when he came to Goal, he
fought for me, and I told him that one had dif-
cover’d : And he afk’d me, what I would adwvife
him todo? and I faid, I'd advife him todifcharge
a good Conlcience.

M. Juftice Coote. 1am not a Judge of the Fadl,
but the Jury is. Hicky, you were brought before
me; and when I examin’d you, you went back-
ward and forward, and I committed you that
Night to the Goaler’s Care 3 and when you were
brought into the Court, you faid, You would ftand
by the Examination you fwore before my Lord
Chief-Juftice Pyue.

Mr, Soll. Gen. What did Mz, Hickman perfuade
you to do when, he tamper’d with you?

Hicky. When Walter Neylan went from me, 1
was brought to Mr, Hickman and Cufack 5 and they
told me, there was an Examination of Mr. Danzel
Carty. It is in vain for you, faid they, to deny
the Fact 3 but you muft fay what we will have you
to fay, or elfe you fhall be hang’d; for Carty has
fworn, That you and he were at the robbing of
Hurly; That you left all the Gold and Linnen in
his Barn tor him.,

M. Attor. Gen.  And did Mr., Cufack fay fo
too ?

Hicky. Yes, he did fay fo.

My, Soll, Gen. What fhould be the Seducement
of Mr. Hickmair, or Cufack, to have you forfwear

your felf ?

idavit,

Hicky. ‘There was a Contrivance betyee,
Halloway, Hickman, and Carty, to {wear,

Mr. Soll. Gen. But why fhould Mr. Hickmay ¢
this? What End could he have in it ? o

Hicky. 1 cannot tell.

Mr.dttor. Gen. You Hicky, 18 Mr. Hiclyp; .
Papitt, or Mr. Cufack ? o

Hicky. No, Sir.

Mr. Atior. Gen.  For what Purpofe flioy:
they come to you, to have you forfiwear v,
felf ? o

Hicky. They did do it.

Mr. Dean. What became of that Note 3
Hickman and Cufack gave you ?

Hicky, Calaghan had 1t, and brought it 4
Town,

Mr. Butler, Hicky, you were examin’d at th;;
Bar before : Did not you {wear the fame Thige
aoaintt Mr. Cufack 2 And after, when he cap,
into Court, and you faw him, did not yoy re.
tract in open Court what you {wore before? i
you? or, Did you noi ?

Hicky. I cannot tell what I did ¢ T told hip
that he gave me the Note,

Mr. J. Coote. Then I’ tell you what you dig
Mr.Cufack, to the beft of my remembrance, came
to the Side-Bar there. Mr. Hurly, you wepe
there ; and after Mr. Cufack came n, this Per.
fon was afked the Queftion, Whether that Mr,
Cufack tamper’d with him ¢ And he faid, No,
that he only defired him to fwear nothing bu

the Truth.
Mr, Huilh foors.
Mr. J. Coote, Pl afk Mr. Hutfh a Queltion o

two; for fuch a Fellow as this is not to be en-
dured. Mr. Huifh, was not you prefent when
this Man was brought before me?

Mr. Hyifh, I was, my Lord.

Court. I only afk, what happened 1n my Houk,
as to the Behaviour of this Man ¢

Mr. Huifb, When I came firft, the Book wis
put into his Hand, and he was fworn: But, on
Examination, he feemed to be {fullen, and would
not anfwer ; But he owned, that the Examm:-
tion he gave in the Goal was falfe, and the Exa-
mination he gave before my Lord Chief-Jultice
was true,  And when you fat down to reduce
what he faid into Writing, he began to retract.
When it was written, that he [aid, that before
my Lord Chief- Juftice was true, and the other
falfe, he began 1o fall off and faulter, and fuid,
Did I fay fo? You examined him alone thit
time, and gave him Encouragement to {peak the
Truth. And after it was afked, Had you rather
be examined before the Judge alone, or before
all the People here? Then he was for being ex-
amined before the Judge alone. So I went ou,
and left him and this Daniel Hicky together for
ncar three Quarters of an IHour : Then your
Lordfhip called us 1n, and faid, this Fellow 13
fullen, and will not give any Account,

Mr. J. Coote. 1 did prefs this Man to tell the
Truth 3 did Hickman or any of thofe People en-
tice him to fwear any falfe Oath? and one Time
he faid, They did not; and another Time he fud,
They did,

Mr. Fulter
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Mr, Fyfter. Did he at any Time defire that his
Byamination fhould be deferr’d, until he came to

Court the next Day?
Mr. Huifh. Truly, I don’t remember that Par-

ticular, _ ' |
Nr, Fofler. Ilicky, W l:.mt was the Meaning,
hat when you were examined before Mr, Juftice
oo that you faid, Did I fay 12 or did I not
iy 102 _
flicky. T was afraid fome of them would fwear
orinit me: They were following me all Day —
\ir. O-Bric’s Man was after me: And Mr.
1onin cane and told me, 1 fhould be hang’d if
[ did 1t not.

Donogh O-Brien Andrews fior,

Mr. [yfer, My Lord, if it pleafe your Lord-
tip, I defire he may give an Account of tlis
alaver.

0 Bricit. - — My Lord, T was then Prifoner
by Tissmeats Bonrk, and they would fhew no War-
qant, till chey had ty d me with a Cord, carried
me o Ewiis, and bolred me; and afterwards
haehe me before Mr. Hickman —— And they
woid me, that Daiiel Carsy had given an Exami-
nation acain{t me, that I was one of the Perfons
employed to rob [urly 5 and that if T did fivear
as Carty did, I fhould have the fame Reward Carty
had 5 and that 1t was not for me to pretend to
live in the County of Clare, 1f I did not fvear as
Carty dd,

Court, And did you fwear then ?

O-Bricn. 1If your Lordfhip pleafes, 'l declare
the Matter,——- Tom Hickman and Fobn Cufack
told me, that I had Reafon to curle the Time
that I did not fwear as Daniel Carty did.

Mr, At Gen. How long s it fince Mr. Hick-
aair and you were fo familiar, that you call him
Tom ?

() Bricin. They fad, I fhould be hang'd for i,
it there were no more Men 1n the Kingdom § and
[ was accordingly fent into the Dungeon, and
hand-cuf’d, and they came and ty’d me, and told
me, that Caloghan Caity and Daniel Carty had
lworn 5 and they would put a Lump of Gold in
my Wile’s Lap, if T would fwear I was employ-
td 0 rob Mr. Jurly : And Iallsweay came to me,
ad f21d, Declave the Truth of the Matter, and
iwear as the reft did, and Pl go and fpeak to the
Goaler, and get you eafed as well as Carty, Every
Day Hallozeay came to me and faid, I thould
want for nothing, 1f 1 would fwear as they did.
50 on Swiday Morning a Yoke was brought to
me, and they were going to yoke me, but they
did not do it 3 and after Service, that Suiday,
Ton Buck came to me, and told me, they came
om Tem Hickman, and if 1 did not fay as the
et had faid, T fhould be hanged; but I was
weary of the Bolt and Hand-coff, and I had not
my I'riends to come near me, nor my Wife, {o
I'refolved T would do any thing, rather than lie
m the Condition I was in, «nd I faid, I would
Lvear what they pleafed.

Cowir, And did you fwear ?

IO-Brfen. My Lord, upon this Anfwer my
bolts were taken off, and the Hand-cuff 5 and I
Was carrted abroad to 7¥illiam Butler, and he
Hﬂwd‘fmf, when I came before him, Why I was

‘on, V,

A

fo obftinate againft the County, as I had been ?
But if 'you refolve to do it now, fays he, it
will do as well; and if you fwear as the reft did,
you fhall have as good a Reward as Daniel Carty,
and twelve Pence a Day, during the Time you
was confined,

Conrt. Did you not repeat the Words he had
then written down?-—— Did not you fpeak the
Words he had written ?

O-Brien. No, 1 did not,

Conrt. But you fwore to them afterwards——
Did he read the Examination to you ?

O.Bricn, Yes, he did,

Court, Did you fwear to it ?

O-Bricn. Yes, Idid it to cafe my felf,

Mr. Recorder. Is the Examination true, at this
Day ?

O Brien, No, 1t is not.

Mr, Sof. Gen. I defire that Examination may
be read, and he may tell us, what part of it is
true, and what not.

O-Biien, My Lord, I after went to Goal, and
recetved the Allowance Mr, Butler ordered me,
twelve Pence a Day—— And, my Lord, fome
time in Summer before theAflizes, 7 alter Neylan,
that was now in Court, brought down one of
Mr. Hurly’'s Coats, and afked us, Whether we
knew thefe Coats that we wore in the Robbe-
ry?—— He told us, Mr, Butler defired us to
fwear to the Coats ; but we refufed to do it and
then we were turned into the Goal, and 64. of
the 1 5, taken from us.

Mr. Robbins, Were you {worn lalt Augufl, and
before whom?

O-Bricu. Before the Lord Chief- Juftice Pywe,

Mr. Robbins. Did Calaghan Carty make an Affi-
davit at the fame time ?

O-Brien, Yes, he did.

M, Svl. Gen. Who writ yourE xamination ?

O-Biicir, 1 writ it my felf.

M. Sol. Gen, Who writ Calaghan Carty’s Ex-
amination ?

O-Biien. 1 do not know s I was by at the
{wearing of 1.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Who writ Hicky’s Examinati-
on ¢

O-Brien. He writ it himfelf,

Mr. Sol. Gen, How long were you 1n Town be-
forc you gave in your Examination?

(O-Brien. It was not pafling three or four
Days.

M. Sol. Gen. Who came mto your Company 2

O-Brien. No body, until I came to Kiltartan,
and that Night Madam Hurly came into the
Houfe, and lay in the Houfe that Night, fhe
and her Brother.—— She afk’d me where I was
ooing ? I told her, I was coming to Town to de-

clare the Truth. |
Mr. Sol. Gen. And did you come to Town in

their Company ?
O-Brien. Yes, I did.
Mr. Sol. Gen. And what other Company came
along with you and Mrs, Hurly ¢ 1
O-Brien. There was no body but Zerry and
Crips.
ffflr. Sol. Gen. And within three or four Days
after you came, you fwore the Examination ¢
O.Brien. Yes, I did.

Gegg Mr. Sol,
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Mr. Sol. Gen, How long afier you came to
Town, did you fee Calaghan Carly ?

O Brien. 1 faw him at Kilcock, before I came |

to Town,

Mr. §¢f. Gen. And where did you meet Daiitel
Hicky ¢

O.Brien. Coming towards Kilcocx.

M. Sol. Gen. It was remarkable, that he fhould
accidentally meet Mrs. Hurly and her Brother at
Kiltartan, and Calaghan Carty and Hicky and fhe
fhould mect on the Road and Way together, to
clear their Confciences! —— Did Hicky, Carty and
you lie in one Lodging 2

O Brien. 1lay in Church-fireet.

Mr. Sel. Gen. And Calaghan Carty and Hicty
Jay there too ?

O Brien. Yes, they did.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Were you examin’d in Irons ¢

O Brien. No, T wasnot : I had them taken off
me, and was carry’d abroad ; and L was told,
That if I did not fwear as the reft did, I fhould be
hang’d in eight Days time.

Mr. Recordzsr. Would Mr, Butler make you for-
{wear your felf ?

] O-Brien.. He would make me fivear as the reft
idl,

M. Sol. Ger. What Diftance from the Goal
was you examin’d ?

O-Brien, Near the Goal,

Mr. So! Gen. Flad you any Hand-cufls, or
Irons, when examined.

O-Briein. No, 1 had not.

Mr. Sol. Gen. My Lord, T muft afk this Man,
whether his Facher be in Town, and whether he
had any Difcourfe with his Father —— 1o you
know your Father?

O-Brien. 1 know my reputed Father. |

Mr. Attorn. Gen. By Virtue of your Oath, Did
you fee your Father fince you came to Town?

O. Brien. No, Idid not.

Mr. Attori. Gen. Had you any Difcourfe with
your Father concerning this pretended Robbe-
ry? —— And did you fay any thing to him about
tt, and what was’t ?

O-Brien. I faw him atHome 5 I never acknow-
lede’d to him T was concern’d in this Robbe-
1Y,
M. Recorder. Pray, my Lord, did he declare
to his Father, thac he was concern’d in this Sham-
Robbery ?

O-Brien. No, I did not,

Mr. Recorder. Did you tell your Father any
thing of the Contrivance; or would your I ather
have prevail’d with you to own you were in the

Robbe.y ?

O-Brien. Yes, he would.

Mr., Recorder. Did you ever tell your Father,
that you ufed Mr, Hurly's own Arms In the Rob-
bery ?

O.Brien. No, 1 did not,

Mr. Recorder. Well, now we’ll call your Fa-

ther,

Donogh O-Bricn Andrews fenior fworn.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray, upon the Qath you have
taken, give an Account of what Difcourfe pafied

between your Son and you about this Rob-
bery ¢ 2

Donagh O Brien Audrews fenior. My Lord, this
will be look’d upon to be very firange, and vepy
annatural, for a Father to appear againft i
Son ; ver I muft have regard to my Quath, gy
Mall not be backward to declare the Truth ..
When this Robbery happen’d, fome time pafs'¢
before the Coatrivance of it was fully diicyve,.
ed, and when my Son was taken and carry'd i,
Goal abouc it, 1 did not go near him for tlm;j
Weeks. When [ wentto lum, I was paﬂiun.;[.:
ly concern’d for him, and [ afk’d him, W;,:.
fhould make him fo wicked, asto be conccru‘i:{
in fuch a Fat, as he and the other Rogues wy,
accufed of ? And I afked him with Vehemeng.
Did youdo it? He faid, Yes, Idid doits and he
never deny’d it, nor no one doubted of it uny)
fuch time as he went atterwards to Dublin, The
Particulars I was not curious 1 afking him, b
canfe I had an Account of them from otlers.
and all Men allowed them to be true, becays:
they own’d it themfelves.  After the Aifizes, ang
that they came out of Goal, I took Opportuniry
to difcourfe my Son; but found by him, that ke
had no mind to difcourfe me—— But then, my
Lord, I afked him one Day, Whofe Arms he
had 3 were they Patrick Hurly's 2 Says hey, Where
clfe thould I get Arms.

Conrt, Had you all this Difcourfe with yous
Son Donggh O-Brizn, that young Man there ?

Old Donsgh. Yes, 1 had.

Young Donegh O-Brien. When he taxed me
with this, I was indifterent 1n the marer; and
when he afked me about the Arms, Whethe:
they were Patrick Eurly's Arms? What cile, faid
L.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Is the relt that your Father faid
true or not? You have heard what your ather
faid, That you confefied to him you were con
cern’d in the Robbery ?

Young Domagh, I faid what T told you of th:
Arms; but as to the other part, [ do not remem-
ber that ever I faid it to him,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Old Man, Do you remember?

OId Dowsgh. Aye very well, too well, to my
Sorrow.

Mr, Recorder. Young Man, Do you believe
thar he is relating Truth or not ?

Young Doinogh. 1 do not know whether heis
or no.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Are you a married Man?

Young Donogh. Yes, I am.

Mr. Ait. Gei, Pray who are you married tof
What Relation is your Wife to Mr. Hurly ¢

Young Doiogh. Mr. Hurly is her Uncle,

Mr, Foffer. Old Man, What Relation are you
to Sir Donagh O-Brieir ?

Old Donggh. 1 know no Confanguinity between
Sir Donggh O-Brizn and me : But Sir Donogh pur-
chafed the Reverfion of my Farm, and I livetn
it, paying him Rent,

Patrick Hurly. Pray whofe
Expence brought him here ?

Old Donegh. The Horfe belongs to onc M.
FEverbing.

Patrick Hurly. At whole Charges

Old Donggh. At the County’s Chargg, who pre-

fecuted you for Perjury.

Horfe, and whoft

Courls
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Court. Do you expett any Abatement of your
Rent?

0. Domogh. T am fo far from it, that Lam sat-’

od sols this Year more than ever.

Curt. By whom ?

0. Donigelr. By my Landlord, Sir Donggh O-
Brien. _

. Courl. Are you to have zn Abatement from
Sir Danogh O Brien, afzer this Year?

0. Doiogh. I am not to haveany. I have not
any Trick or Quillet in any way : I do not ex-
pelt any thing of that fort. |

Mr. Sef. Gen. There is another Part of this
Young O Brien Andrews’s Evidence, that relates
o the Juftice of the Peace, Mr. Butler, and he 1s
here in Court.

Mr. Attor. Gen. Your Lordfhip has heard the
Fvidence of this young Donggh O-Brien Andrews,
wherein he has been flinging againft a whole
Court 2nd County.

Court. It was never otherwife 5 tho’a Juftice
of Peace be in the juft Execution of his Office,
yet when Criminals come to be charged, they’ll
recriminate thofe that appear againft them.

William Batler fwora.

Wiliam Butler. My Lord, 1 had an Account,
that this Sham-Robbery, that Mr. Hurly fer up,
s [ do believe, was difcovered by Cartys and I
kad an Account that Doncgh O- Brien, that young
Man, was in Goal, and was willing to make an
ample Difcovery toos and | rid to Luuis, and
went to my Quarters where I generally lodge,
and fent to the Goaler for him, who broughe
him to me; and then I told him, my Bufinels
to Town was to examine him, if he were will-
ing to give a true Account of the Matter. e
went then about propofing to make Bargains
wich me, but I told him’T had no more to fay;
but if he would give a true Account of the Rob.
bery of Mr. Hurly, any Kindnefs I could do for
him, it thould be done. He faid, he was afraid
of the Gallows ; and, fitting down, gave me
that Examination which he has given me, and I
have writ it down faithfully, as diftinétly and
traly, as if it was for Life and Death; and I
promifed him nothing, nor threatened him.  He
fvemed to be fo penitent for being concerned 1n
the Action, and was fo much troubled that 1t
was difcovered againft Mr. Hurly, that he wept
a great deal in my Company, and did declare,
That if others had not difcovered againft M,
Hurly, he never would. And I parted with
him, and bid the Goaler be civil to him.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr. Butler, Did you tell him,
that he fhould be hanged, if he did not {wear?

Butler. By Virtue of my Oath, I did not.

Y. Donggh. Did not you tell me, the Quarter-
Seflions was adjourned for a Week longer, on
account of this Commiffion of Oyer and Zer-
miner ?

Butler. No, by Virtue of my Oath, I did
not —— 1 fent for Mr. Hickman, and he was
with me by the time [ went midway thro® this
{ns Examination s and when 1 had fim{h’d 1t,
It was read 1o him diftincly, and he fwore
o it.

Mr, Attor, Gen, Now, my Tord, if your Lord-

Vor, V.

thip be pleafed, the Examination that was taken
by Mr. Buller, T defire it may be read Paragraph
by Paragraph. o o

Mr. Sol. Gen. Was this Information written by
Mr. Butler out of his own Head, or did you give
him that Account as it is down there, or is it a
Story framed by hum??

Y. Donogh. Mr. Buller writ it. I told him
feveral Things, but he framed them as he pleafed
himfelf. | '

Mr. Sol. Gen. What Information did you give
then to Mr. Butler ?

Y. Douogh. I don’t remeiaber.

M. Sol. Gen. *Tis impoflible for any Man to
frame fuch a Thing out of his own Head

Mr. Fofter. Whether there was not a Report,
that there was a Commiffion to come down of
Oy.r and Terminer ¢ |

Mr., Butler. They did talk fo, but I had no
Difcourfe of it 3 I ufed him mildly, and only
defired him to tell the Truth.

The Examination read,

Mr, Recorder. Did you lie at Daniel O-Keans’s
IHoufe that Nighe after the Robbery ?

Wiliam Butler., Yes, I did. |

Mr. Recorder. Who told Mr. Butler that?

Y. Donogh, I told him 1t. -

Donogh O Brien’s Second Examination, taken be-
fore Lord Chief-Juflice Pyne, reads where be

anfwers what be fwore in the former.

Mr. Foffer. I defire, my Lord, the Examina-
tion before Baron Ecklin 1ay be read.

[ Clerk reads Calagan Carty’s Examingtion be-
fore Baren Lcklin. §

Mr. Sol. Gen. My Lord, I defire the fame
Method may be obferv’d in this, as in other
Cafes; for Flands may be alike, and not the fame,

Mr. Robbins. Here has been two Examinations
of Calaghan Carty; one he owns, the other he
denies.  Now, my Lord, we have produc’d three
or four Witneffes, that he was never before my
Iord Chief- Juftice, and there fwore, that what he
had formerly fwore in the Country was falle,
that Patrick Hurly did contrive 2 Robbery againft
himfelf.

Mr. Recorder. Mr. Robbins (with {ubmiffion,
my Lord,) is mightily miftaken ; they faid, there
was an Examination taken before my Lord Chicf-
Juftice, but not that this was It

Mr. Butler. You cannot here read an Affidavic
fworn before a Baron of the Exchequer there is
no Colour for it. '

Court. Calaghan Carty, Pray, were you examin’d
before any of the Judges as to that Marter ¢

Carty. No, my Lord, never tn my Lifc.

Mr. Sel. Gen. Never in his Life. ~—— There
is no proving it but by my Lord Chief. Juthice,
and to prove that this is the Mans for a Man
ray come in the Name of another Perfon and

{wear, and the Man he perfonates know nuthing
of the Matter, ~- ~ Who drew your Exami-

nation, Dunogh O-Brien £
Ggg 2

Carly.



412 171.The Trial of Patrick Hurly 7z Ireland, Pafit W II1.

Carty. 1did it my felf.

Mr. Sol, Gen. And who drew Hicky’s ?

Carty. Himfelf.

Mr. Sol, Gen. And who drew Calaghan Carty’s?
—— I can’t tell,

Court, 1 never knew an Examination, but
where the Perfon was examin’d, whether it was
true or not ; otherwife it goes for nothing 5 and
if the Perfon does not own 1t now, it mult be
prov’d upon him, ;

Mr. Fofter. My Lord, an Examination given
in before the Court, and upon Record, we come
and defire it may be read, to confront an Lvi.
dences for this Man 1s for{worn.,

Court. I had the Curiofity my felf, for the
Satisfaction of Juftice, to fend for my Lord Chief-
Tufttice’s Clerk, Mr. #akeham, ard examin’d him
here 1n open Court. Being examin’d, I remems-
ber, faid he, there did come fuch four Men,
and they were fworn before my Lord Chief- Ju-
{tice 5 but, that this is one of the Men, I cannot
{wear,

M, Sol. Gen. 1 have no fuch Examination at
all.  If you pleafe, read the Affidavit before Ba-
ron Ecklin.

Mr. Recorder. [Comparing the Affidavits,] Thefe
are both the fame, Word for Word, drawn both
by Mr. Terry 5 they are both his Fand-writing.

Mr. Butler, Ldefire Mr. William Butler may give
an Account (he is {worn) about the Portmanteaus
Whether Mr. Hurly did not {wear, that he left
the Portmanteau at Loughrea, at Bargery’s Houle,
whilft he went to fee his Brother at Tiaguin ?

Chriftopber O Brien. My Lord, Lafk’d Patrick
Hurly, what Care he took of his Money at his
coming to the Country ? he faid, He left 1t at
Loughrea, and would not carry it to Tiaquin, for
that was a loofe Family. - - This he told
at his own Houfe, after he had fworn it in the

Court,

Mr. Taylov feoorn.

M. Butler, Mr, Taylor, declare what you know
of Mr. Hurly’s fwearing at the Affizes, about he
Portmanteau,

Mr. Taylor. 1 was at the Aflizes at Einis, and
Mr. Hurly fwore, that he left his Portmanteau at
Longhrea when he went to Ziaguin 3 and, that he
told Mr. Bargery there was Mauters of great Con-
fequence 1n the Portmanteau, and defir'd him to
take care of it; and, that Bargery did fo, and
dehiver’d 1t fafe to him at his Return,

Mr. Hurly, Mr. Butler knows the County of
Gallway: [ delire to know, whether it is likely for
me,-going to the County of Clare, that I thould
leave my Portmanteau at Zonghrea, and come back
again ?

Mr. Butler. T don’t know that 3 but you did
{wear 1.

Mr. Recorder. And his Man {wore he carried
it with him to Ziaguin,  So *tis —— Trim Tram,
like Mafter like Maiu, both for{worn.

Mr. Sol. Gen, My Lord, the Perfons produc’d
by Mr. Hurly are Men, by their own Confeffion,
who at fome Timne or other were forfworn; and
they are fuch Men as have nothing between them
and the Gallows but this Shifting : They are fen.
fible no Jury can believe them.

Mr. Robbins, My Lord, we are charg’d by
with one Inditment 3 there 15 but one Zenire, |
think.

Mr. Butler. There are two,

Mt Ator, Gen. Mr. Robbins, 1f your Client be
coilty of the Perjury, clear him of the Chear i
you can,

Court. The conftant Practice of this Court js,
Thatif there goes a Fenire between the King and
a Party indited, and that there be feveral In.
di¢tments againft the fame Party, the Court wij]
charge the Jury with ’em all, unlefs he comes in
by Council, and fhew fome good Caufe why yoy
cannot go on with fome of ’em.

Mr. Attor. Gen. My Lord, [ think that the Cop-
trivance 1s made out fo fully to the Satista&ion
of every Man prefent, that there never was {tron.
ger Evidence than of both thefe Villainies, the
Perjury, and Confpiracy to Cheat, When a Man
has liv’d extravagantly, and then goes about al}
manner of Ways to retrieve himfelf, if Perjury
goes unpunifh’d, it fhall lic at the Door of thofe
Gentlemen that have heard this Muatter fo fully
prov’d to day; and this poor Country muft fuf-
fer by Perjury, 1if Care be not taken to {upprefs
it. *Tis now growing late, and I will not take
up more Time in fumming up this long Evidence
to the Jury, but leave it to the Court.

Mr. Jultice Coote. Gentlemen of the Jury, you
have heard a very long Evidence ; and [ will re-
peat the Heads of it to you as well as I can, that
you may difcharge your felves with Honour and
Confcience,  You have taken an Oath, and I
hope you will not be led to the preventing of
Juftice, one way or the other, Nr, lurly ftands
indicted here of Perjury, for making a falfe cor-
rupt Oath before a Juftice of Peace, Mr, Blod ;
before whom he fwore, in an Examinatton, that
was read in Evidence, That he was robb’d of fo
many Guineas, Piftoles, and other Goods, at his
Father’s Houfe in Moughna, in the County of
Clare: That he was robb’d by four Perfons,
whofe Names he knows not, but by their Tone
they feem’d to be Jrifbmen ; and, that the fame
was not done by any Contrivance of his, After
which, he did exhibit a Petition to the Judgss
of Aflize, and did endeavour to recover from
the County the Value of what he was {o rcb-
bed of.

Gentlemen, Mr. Dean Blood prov’d to you,
‘That the Prifoner at the Bar did take his Oath,
that the Contents of the faid Examination wis
true, and, thathe fign’d it in his Prefence,

Gentlemen, the firlt Witnefs that was produ-
ced unto you to prove the Perjury, and thai
Mr. Hurly was not robb’d, but had fwore fallly m
that Information, was one Calaghan Carty: And
he being fworn, tells you, That at the Time that
this Robbery was committed he was in Mr.
Hurly's Service 3 and, that Mr, Hurly carne to him,
and made Moan to him, that he did owe Mo-
ney 3 and, that he could pay his Debts if this
fame Calaghan Carty would obferve his Directions,
and do what he would have him to do ; and,
that thercupon this Calaghan Carty did tell bim,
he would ; and the Dirc&tion was, That h
fhould joyn other Perfons, he nam’d, and put on
a Difguife, and take an Opportunity when Mr.

Rowane was at the Houfe, and perfonate them-
2 felves
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{elves to be Robbers, and take away the Goods
.nd Money out of the Houfe, and wﬁhcn they
fhould have fo done, to return them again, And
this Crlaghan Carly was to go to one Mr, Fofler’s
for a Suie of black Clothes, and he was to come
hack again, '1_"hcl't: were the Orders he receiv’d,
by the Direction of Mr. urly. He tells you,
That he did accordingly join the reft 5 that they
had Coats, Difguifes, and Swords left for ’em in
e Barn, which they took and putony that they
did a&ually bolt 1nto the Houfe at Mr. Ronane’s
coming out of the Door, and took thofe Fire-
Arms that were laid for "em 5 and, that they had
der Intelligence from Mr. Hurdy, the better to
rerfonate their being Robbers,  And he tells
vou, That part of thvm went up to Mr. Hurly's
Chamber, and there took the Bag; and, that
they were direCted by Mr. Iurly to pour it out
before Mr. Ronane {the better to make the Pre-
wence out againdl the County) and likewife, when
they thould get in, tie Mr, [urly and Mr, Ronane s
and, that a Bed-cord was lud in the Window
for that Purpofe : And he tells you, that they
hid fir'd off the Fire-Arms, and, that there was
nothing in them but Powder.  And; Gentlemen,
vou will fee anon how far this Man {wears the
Trath, out of the Mouths of Mr. Ilurly’s own
Evidence,

Mt JInrly, to leffen this Man’s Credit, has
preduc’d to you feveral Witneffes, who fwear,
That he fwore an Examination before my Lord
Chief-Juftice Pyize, or Bavon Eckliiny wherein he
pretends, that this Calaghan Carty {wears diretly
contrary to what he {wore in his Informition
before a Juftice of the Peace in the Country, and
to what he pleads now, To this Calughan Carly
fays, He never fwore any Examination Lefore
any Judze 5 and if any was fworn in his Name,
it was done by fome other, that did perfonate
him, That Examsination was produc’d here; but
there was no Evidence, that this Calaghan Carty
was the Perfon that fwore it, and he deny’d that
the Name to it was his Hand.writing 3 and he
feems to be too ignorant a Perfon to contrive
fuch an Examination, Now, whether you cre-
dited him, or thofe Perfons that fwore againft
lim, 15 left to you.

The next Witnefs in behalf of the King is Mar-
gare! Conneene » She tells you, Thart fhe was a Ser-
vant in the Houfe, and, that thefe Perfons did
come 1mto the Houfe; and fhe hearing Murder
cry'd out by Mr., Hurly's Servant, fhe came out of
the Kitchen : She tells yeu, that they made fe-
veral Shots, paracularly at her, and, that there
was no Hurt done, nor any Marks of the Shot
or Builets in the Wall,  Sie tells you, That at
firlt the was of Opinion, that it was a real Rob-
bery 3 but afterwards, difcourfing with Calaghan
Carty, be told her how 1t was : And befides, that
fhe was of another Opinton upon the account
of a Table-cloth taken away ar the Time of the
Robbery, which fhe faw afterwards come back
wa Trunk or Porumanteau that was fent to M.
O-Biien after the Robbery.

IWalter Nevlan was likewile fivorn; who gives
you an Account, that he was in Prfon at Knuis
for /lurly's Debr, being bound for him to one
Thsmas dytlar, and that he was in the Prifon
when Flurly was broughe thither: that they were

Chamber-fellows : That Mr. ZJurly did go fo far
in the Confefiion of this Fa& to him, that when
Danicl Carty became a Difcoverer, and began to
accufe Mr, [urly of this Matter, Donogh O-Bricis
Andrews junior, who was then likewife in the
fame Goal, did delire to know of him, what Me-
thod Mr./urly would take to get him difcharg’d
and, that if he could notdo it foon, thet he muit
be forc’d to confels the whole ‘Ituth : And he
fwears, That he did acquaint 77l therawich
who fad, that he thould be undore if the faid
O Brien dndrews fhould confefs ity and gave him
a Piece of Money to give to the fuid O Brien,
and bid him teil him, that he would foon get
him difcharg’d.  Neylar was fo cautious of this,
that he would not do it himlelf 5 but one Danief
Carty being prefent, he gave him the Money, and
he gave 1t to O Brien : 'That O Brien faid, This
will notdo, I muft and will tell che Truth, He
fays, Mr. Hurly went fo far, that he told him he
would give any Gratfication 1n the World to
prevent Donggh O- Brien's coming in againft him
for, if he did, he fhould be ruin’d entirely,  A-
ganft this, Mr. Hurly fays, that Nevlan was exalpe-
rated for being i Prifon thro® his Means, fo that
he tamper’d with Witnefles, and became his in-
veterate Enemy 5 and not only fwore falfly him-
felf, but tamper’d with others to fwear falfly too;
of which he has offer’d {uch Evidence, as I {liall
cbferve to you hereafter,

The next Evidence, Gentlemen, that was pro-
duc’d to you, was one Charles Muc-Donogh,  He
tells you, That he was employ’d as a Sollicitor to
Mr. Huily 5 and, that he was intmately acquaint-
ted with Mr. [{urly, and knew a great deal of his
Concerns ; and, that one Night, being come back
from Dublin, the very Time before he was rob-
bed, he tallk’d with him, and fuid, Ile was a
ftrange Man to come to the Country without
Moncy 3 and, that it would be too hot for him ;
that the prefent Sherift was Mr. ofrtbur’s Friend 3
and fays, that Hurly did even then forufy his
Houfe, becaufe he look’d upon himfelf to be in
no condition to pay his Debts s that he was {o ex-
treamly poor, that he durft not appear, He tells
you, that Mr. Hurly did tell him, that he brought
down Money ; and tho’ he did tell him fo, that
yer he did not believe it; becaule when he told
him of the Shertff, Hurly faid, that Sir Teby But-
ler and Colonel Macnamarra had a great Influence
upon the Sheriff, and would make Interelt with
him, fo that he will do me no Harm.

He tells you, That much about this Thne M.
Fiurly employ’d himfelf in reading Acts ot Parlia-
ment, and one of 'em was the Aé relating to the
Articles of Limerick and Gallozy 3 and, that he
had fome Difcourfe of being comprehended with-
tn the Articles of Gaflway. ‘T'hat Mr. Mac- Deonogh
told him, he thought he was then in Frasce, and
that he was not there; and he fud, He would
prove that he was then in Gallway : And reading
the Rapparee Act, he fard, Thar it wasa very
pretty Way for Perfons to recover Moncy from
the County, He tells you, Gentlemen, that af-
ter this he left Mr. Hurly, and Capt.O-Brien writ
him word that he was robb’d, and defir’d that
he would come and follicite at the Aflizes of
Enuis on his behalf : But he was fo far from be-
lieving that he was robb’d, or yielding to that

Delign,
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Defign, that he writ back a Drolling Letter, as  Husly difcours’d him about Mr. Bairks's Robbery
he calls it himfelf, and he did not think it pro- Mz, Lynch told him, that the Country had foypng
per to be concern’d for him. He further tells for Banks, and, that he propes’d fomething i
you, That there were fome Perfons that gave an  relation to his own Robbery, if Mr../ yuch oyl
Account to him of certain Counters, one Hicky's aflift him; whata pretty Way it was to ger M.
Wife, and, that if her Hufband might be pro- ney! Lyuch told him, in what was honeft and juft
duced, heand fhe might make great Difcoveries  he would affift him, but in nothing elfe. Mr. ;-
relating to thele Counters, Iy tlien fell into Difcourfe with him aboyr s
This took Wind, and the Juflices of the Peace  Farm, and faid, he would give up his Farm g0
gave o Warrant to the High.Conttable, #alter 1f he would come into the Defign he had 1o gf:_-
fTuonin, to fearch for thofe Counters. They Money. Mr. Lyuch anfwer'd as before, If it b
came to the Place where this Hurly liv’d 5 the honeft and Jult, I will; if not, I will not; apd
firft Time he mifs’d, but thefecond Time he fent  for the Farm, faid he, Yl force you to do thy
one before, to take care that nothing might be  without it '
remov’d ¢ And when he came there, he obferv'd e tells you, That Mr, Hurly {ent a Trunk of
there was a Dunghil ; and, by the Behaviour of Linnea to his Houfe after the Robbery was cop.
Hicky's Wife, he had reafon to fufpe@ that Place.  mitted ; and, that Mr. Herly did defire no Body
He tells you, That the Woman held the Candle, fhould fee the Trank with him 3 that he heard
and in digging the Place where the Dunghil lay,  his Brother Bourk fay, That it was Linnen, by
at length the Spade hit upon a Slate where the  he dic not mind i, his Wite being then fick .
Counters lay : That he took up a Bag wrapp’d and fays, they took away the Trunk that fame
sbout with Hay, he call’d it a Suggane ; and, Nighe after Mr. Hurly was in Goal.  He tells
that there thofe Counters, which he has here you, he had the Curiofity to go and fee him i
produced, were taken up.  He told you, That the Goal of Enuis, and after difcourfing with
the Woman was under {fo much Confternation, him, he faid, He had done fomething very jyre-
that fhe dropt the Candle ; and when fhe was  gular in France, and now to come into the Country
told fhe mutt go along with him, fhe fuid, Now and charge it with a Robbery, was very ill
that was found, fhe believ’d fhe muft. The next Evidence 1s Charles Caffidy, Surgeon;
The next Perfon examin’d was Thomas Ed-  and he gives an Account, That this Husly’sFather
wards, He fwears, Ide was employ’d togo along  being fick, his Sifter fent for him to come there 5
with [Palter Huoniny That he faw a Youth on  and after he came, they fent for one Dr. Brodin, a
his Knees by the Dunghil : He afk’d him what  Relation of Mr, Hurly’s 5 and, that this Broaii and
he was doing? he fuid, He was hiding his Pota-  he, {ome Time after, went to vifit fome other Pa-
toes 3 but he {faw no Potatoes, which made him  tients; and being abroad, Brodin propos’d to him,
{ulpe¢t that Dunghil 5 and, that digging there, fays he, Mr. nrly gives you fmall Fees, I can put
they found the Counters, as Huoniir has givenan  yeu in a Way to get 20 Guineas ; and told him
Account, of the Defign, and how he might be a Party con-
The next Man that was {fworn was Mortagh  cern’d in the pretended Robbery 5 and he anfwer'd,
Mac-Carty. Hetells you, He had bought 2 Cow, He wasa Man too well known ; but he perfuaded
and that fhe had ftray’d away from him, and  him to accept of the Employ.  When they came
finding of her, and bringing her home, he call’d  home to Hurly, the Doétor told him, he had ofier'd
at this Place, where Hicky’s Wile was, and fhe  him 20 Guineas 5 and Hrrly was fo far from deny-
agreed to buy his Cow, and fhe brought out two  ing it, that he chid Dr. Brodin, and faid, he would
Pieces of Gold, which fhe call’d Guineas : Says  give him 40 Guineas; and then Caffidy faid, he was
he, Thele arc not Guineas ; I believe this is fome  afraid of being known : Hereupon Herly told him
of Patrick Hurly's Gold.  Te afk’d her what fhe  he had provided Vizards, to prevent his being
woulkt take for them ? and he faid, T have Three  known; and after going home, his Heart fail'd
Pence Half-penny, and a Quartern of Tobacco, him, and he would not be concern’d, He told
which I'll give you for them ; and fhe took 1t, you, he heard of this Robbery; but this Thing
and wifh’d that the reft were fold fo oo, He was not difcover’d by him till laft Sunday, whee
fays, He acquainted Sir Donogh O-Brien of this, being at Church, he went with Mr, Fitz-Gerald
and he divected bim to Mr. Bindon, a Jultice of Dinner; and Firz-Gerald talking of this Bufinefs
the Peace, where he gave in the Examinavon;  of Hurly, Coffidy faid, He knew a Perfon in the
He produced to you thefe two Pieces, which you  Ceunty, that could do him more Harm than any
liave here compar’d with the reft of the Counters. Man living : Says a Clergyman, there prefent,
Gentlemen, the next Perfon that was {fworn You ought to do the County that Righe, asto
was one fofeph Lynch. He tells you, That he  find out that Perfon, that the County may not
was very well acquainted with Mr. Patrick Hurly, be {o opprels’d, but Juftice done to the Crimt-
and, that Yebn Hurly was married to his Sifters nal, And, that he went home, and confidenig
and, that Mr, Hurly, before or about Chriffmas, it, he went and cave in his Examination t0 &
came to Lﬁf!’gbt'ﬂd; Elﬂd, that at one Mr. Hem:y Juﬂice of the PEEICE, w]]() bound hun over 10
Baigery's Houfe they were both together a drink-  profecute, and accordingly he attended here.
ing ; and, that Mr. Hurly taking out fome Lin- ~ The next Witnels is Daniel Kiefe. He telb
nen out of his Portmanteau, he faw a Bag that  you, That he was very well acquainted with
held about a O\LI'.II‘[; and taking 1t to be P&'IDHEY, Mr,Hﬂr{}r, and, that Mr. H’fﬂ-[)-, {ome Time be-
he look’d into it, and found in itall Counters 3 fore this Robbery was committed, came to Mr.
and he afk’d him what he did wich them 2 he  Dearly’s Shop, and enquird there for Mafks, of
faid, He intended to make ufe of them for his  Vizards, fuch as they ufe for Mafqueradess
Diverfion.  He tells you after this, That be and Bently made anfwer, That they had nov,
walk’d with Mr. urly part of the Way, and, that  bue they might be had in Chrif-Chureh-Yard. f* ie

r‘l E'[:J- N
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a, that thereupon Hurly went into the

tells yO . )
[He tells you, that at that Time, hearing

Yard.

_ Huly enquire for Maftks, he was apprehenfive

hat be had foine evil Delign in hand, and told
p.utly fo 5 and Bently agrees in what Keefe {wears,
hat he did enquire for Mafks, and went into
Cirifl-Church-Yard for them. .

Mr. Gray (the next) tells you of the Poverty
of Mr. Hurly; and that he could not have any
tich Sum of Money ; that he defired him to
mife fome Money for himn, and for better Secu-
ity he lodged in his Hand a Bond of Captain
Aac-Doannl’sy and, accordingly, that he got Mr.
Conner 1o Indorfe a Bill to Mr. Lumm 3 and Mr.
[furly aficrwards paid the Money.

The nexe that was produced for the King was
Captain Mac-Donnel 5 and he tells you, That he
hud given Juch a Bond to Mr, Hurly, upon Ac-
count of a Farm they had purchafed jointly, and
that he ordered him to pay this Fifty Pound that
was borrowed 3 that he would not be concerned
in paying part, unlefs he paid 1all 5 that the
Money was paid.

Mr. Attorn. Gen, Caffidy tells you, That he had
ufed to play at Tables with Hurly at his Houfe ;
and that Hurly got him to {end for a Dozen of
Bottles of Wine to Eauais, to drink with Hurly,
bonfe Hurly had no Money.

N, . Coete. T will give you an Account now

s faithfully as T can, of what is fworn for the

Traverfer,

But I thould have told you firft, That Captain
Mac-Dunogh save you an Account of the greateft
Severity ufed by Patrick Hurly towards his Bro-
ther Fobu, which, he faid himfelf, he would not
have done, but that he was forced to do it, by
reafon of his own neceflitous Condition,

Now Mr., Foba Hurly he tells you of confider-
able Sums of Money he received from Holland,
viz. 200/, from Colonel Lovet, and 200/, from
firemiab Douavon ; and in g7 from Mr. Filz-
Suons 3000, 105, and 200/, more in Limerick,
He tells you, that of thofe Sums received, he
pid again in Cath to Mr, Hurly, all but a hiule
that is veceived from Mr, Fitz-Symons : He paid
him in Cath but a little; and he had Forty
Bufocks, and fome Sheep, towards the Bal-
Lince of what remained unpaid, Thatehere
ws fome Moncy paid to Mr, Arthur, and fome
0 Mr. Burton, and more laid out other ways.
He wlls you, that he faw with Danic ficky a
Nate thar was given him by Mr. Hictman, a
Julice of Peace of the County, and by Mr, Cy-
fick, then Sheriff, whereby they promifed, that
it he would make a true Difcovery of the Rob-
bery of Hurly, that they would mtercede to
the Government for a Pardon for him. This
lrs the Subftance of what Fokr H:H'f_y has

wor,

The Witnefs for the Traverfer was Dorothy
A, who was 2 Servane, fhe tells you, to Mr.
Hidy, when this Robbery was commitred.  She
teids vou, That SevenPerfons came into theloufe s
thit Five of them went up into her Mafter’s
Chamber, and Two ftaid in the Parlour : That
there were feveral Shots made, and that there
E-ﬁ no Farm done, nor no Marks or Prints of
TInllr:ts or Shot in the Wall or Cieling: That
JIT¢ were T'wo Men without at the Window,

and being called Rapparces, they throft their
Swords through the Window : And chat Mr,
Renane was going out, when they rathed in, and
that they threw him down, and that they tied
Ronane and Hurly; and to fhew you there was
Money, fhe tells you, that theWife of Mr, Hurly
took out of a Trunk a great Bag of Gold, and
fhewed it to her; and then took part of it, and
put it into her Pocket: And after thae, this
Dorothy Kemp going to the Trunk for Linnen,
fhe was ftrangely furprized to find the Big there,
that Mr, Hurly came in at the Time, and was
inquifitive to know what fhe did there; fhe told
him, fhe was looking for Linnen : That then he
took the Bag out himfelf, and convey’d it to his
Clofet.

She tells you likewife, That there was one
Mureugh O-Brien did endeavour to tamper with
her, 1o perfwade her to fwear about the Coun-
ters, that they were to be lodged with her, or
with Daniel Hicky’s Wife 5 and this Aurough
promifed her a great Reward, if fhe would
let this Trick be put upon her Malter s but
fhe would not, She tells you, that this Mu-
rough Q-Brien not only tamper’d with her,
but alfo with Hicky’s Wife ; and that he fent
Letters by his Servant to Hicky's Wife, and that
they were delivered ; and that the Contents of
the Letters was, deliring her, that fhe would
fuffer thofe Counters to be lodged in Hicky's
Houfe, She tells you, that Mr. Hurly had a
confiderable Quantity of Linnen taken away from
him 3 that fhe had wafhed Twenty Pair of
Sheets her {elf, and that chere was Ten Pair
more, and chat all was taken away ex-
cept Five Pair ; which is the Subftance of what
(he {wore.

But .\ wrough O-Bricn was {fworn, and he de-
pofed, Thathe was fo far from tampering with
Dorothy Kemp, that he did not think it fafe to
converfe with her, becaufe the was kind and civil
to Mr. Hurly, and bore a Child or two by him ;
and to the contrary he fwore he had no Commu-
nication at all wich her : Burt as for Hicky's Wife,
he fays, fhe told him fhe would difcover all, if
he would bring bher Hufband home again 5 and,
in purfuance of that, he writ Letters to Hicky,
and that the Purpore of them was only to fatisfy
him, thathe might come with Safety, and treat
with him. The Letters being read, they import
no miore.

Gentlemen, the next Witnefs, Daniel Mac-
Cay, fays, That he was a Servant to Mr. Hurly a
conliderable Time 5 that he was in the Houlfe
when the Robbery was commitied; and that
there was only Five of the Robbers that he faw 3
that fome of them put the Family in Terror,
ard others made it their Bulinefs to tall on the
Mafter : He at firlt thought they were only Bai-
hiffs come to arreft his Mafter; but when they
came and broke open the Door that they had
Jock’d upon- his Matter, he found they were To-
ries : Thac there were feveral Shots made. I
afked him, Was there any Hurt made by the
Shots ? and he faid, No, Was there any Marks
of the Bullets ¢ he faid, No, He faid, there was
fome at the Window, that did thruft m therr
Swords. He tells you, there was one Chriffopher
O-Brien, who did endeavour to tamper with him

{0
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to take off the Evidence, to 'whom he went
with a Letter to the Swan-Tavern, and that Mr.
‘O-Brien difcourfed with him about the Coun-
ters.

He tells you, That his Mafter had a great deal
of Money; and that when he was to go down
into the Country with his Mafter, they were
fo great together, that his Mafter acquainted
him with a great Sum of Money he had, and
that he told him he intended to pay Mr. Aribur
with it but that Arther did exat a great Sum
for Exchange, and therefore he did not pay the
Money in Town, but expected to get caly Terms
frorn him in the Country; and it was becaufe
he feared to be robbed, that he did fhew his
Servant a great Sum of Moncyhe had to carry
down into the Country : And then he was ex-
amined by Mr. Butler, as Council for the King,
by what Road they went at thac Time to
the Country, and at what Place they went over
the Shannon? He faid, it was over a Bridge, but
he did not know what Bridge. And being afk-
ed, Whether they went through Atblone? it be-
ing a cafual Queftion, he faid, They did go
through Athlone. And being afked, Where he
lay that Night? he faid, At Balliboy, or Lyres-
Conrt, Aud being urged to be exact, he faid,
He thought it was Balliboy 3 and then he faid,
they lad av Killighy.

Gentlemen, you know the Country, and
that Balliboy and Killighy are near the Kzug’s
County on that Gde the Shamon; and Lyres-
Court on the other fide, in the County of Gall-
way.

Now, Gentlemen, becaule Mr, Patrick Iuily,
in the Courfe of the King’s Evidence, denied
pofitively that he was at any Time about Chryl-
mas at Loushrea 3 1 afked this Mac-Cay, if his
Mafler went down any other Time ? he faid, He
did a litele before Chriftmas : And then I afked,
if he was at My, Bargery’s Houfe in Longhrea ?
he faid, He was; but he could not tell whether
M. Yofeph Lynch was there or not. And being
aflied, Whether he carried his Mailer’s Fortman-
teau to Traquin ? he faid, He did 5 and that his
Mafler hired a Horfe at Tiaquin, and fent him
before him to Gort. [ afked him, Whether he
were fure the Money his Mafter produced to him
in Dublin was Gold, or no? Hefaid, He was
fure it was Gold, it was Louis d’Ors, though,
by Mr, Iurdv’s Information, there was more
Guineas than Louis d’Ors. He tells you like-
wife, Gentlemen, that this Calaghan Carty had
difcovered upon his Oath, before my Lord
Chief- Juftice, what he had formerly {worn be-
fore a Juflice of the Peace concerning this Rob-
berg: And being afked, Who were prefent? he
faid, My Lord Chief-Juftice’s Clerk was there;
which gave Occafion to the Court to fend for the
Clerk.

The next Man cxamined was one Crips.
I1e fays, That one Halloway did beat him, and
take him by the Hair of the Head, becaufe
he would not fwear againft Patrick Hurly; and
that Neylan offered him Six Collops grazing,
if he would fwear that Furly contrived this
Robbery himfelf, and that he was by when Ca-
laghan, Carty was fworn before my Lord Chief-
fultice, Pyne 3 bur he cannot tell what 1t Was

he fwore, and he does not feem to be capyp,
of knowing it, for he does not Ipeak Eagitsh
And then he fays, Mr. Lyuch oftered him o,
fiderably to come and f{wear againft iy,
and bid him come to Cannaught and live wiu';
him, for Fobn and Patiick Hurly were by
ruined. Mr. Lynch has been examined; ang k.
fwears, he had no other Difcourfe with this M.n;
but about the Farm at Mougna, that the Iy,
held from him ; that they were in 1)l Cipeyy,.

ftances, and that he would be rid of the why.
Family. Neylan tells you, That, to his Kpgy.
ledge, he never faw this Man ’ull this Day

Crips faid, upon his Oath, That it wus o,
Houfe, in fuch a Piace, that Neviar tamperg

with him : And Nevlan tells you, upon ly
QOath, That there was not any Houfe at g

within his Memory, in that Place; and th&;

he never had any Communication with s

Crips, dire€tly or induwectly.  So when Perfor;

fwear directly one againft another, You, Gep.

tlemen of the Jury, muft weigh the Evidence

and the Arguments they offer to induce yoy;
Belef.

'The next Witnels 1s Daniel Hicky; who el
you, Ile was fent to Goal and bolred therey ard
after he was told, that one Dauiel Carty confefid
the whole Matter, he was forced before a Juflice
of Peace, and there was forced to fwear, by the
Management of Mr., Hickman and Mr, Cyidt,
who told him, That if he did not fwear, he
muft be hanged : And that, through Fear, hs
was compelled to give that Information, where-
in he proves the Robbery was contrived by
Mr. Hurly, and that he was one of the Adtors
in it - And when he was told, that he f{hould
be called before my Lord Chiel-Juftice Py,
and he was brought into the Bar, he faid, h:
would [wear nothing but Truth before my Lord
Chief- Jultice : That hereupon the Goaler cr-
ried him back, and he never after could g
Opportunity of giving my Lord Chicl- Jultice
an Account of the Matter, though he fent Pe-
titions after him, He fays, That before he dif;
covered, he was treated barbaroufly ;3 but afier
wards he was treated very well, and had Twelve
Pence a Day 3 but that after they were in the
Court, and faid they would fay nothing bu
the Truth before my Lord Chicf-Juftice, they
were allowed but Nine Pence, and there wa
a Mittimus fent to confine them clofer. 1k
fays, Danicl Carty procured Bail, and he w
bail’d by fome Friend of Mr. Hurly’s. e ells
you, he came to Town, and that he went ©
the Lord Chief-Juftice Pyue, and there fwor
an Examination contrary to what he fivore be-
fore, and fays, that he was confcious of the In-
jury he had done Mr. Hurly; that he wri his
fole Examination himfelf; and favs, he hu
been tampered with, and nothing would do
That he was afterwards brought into this Cour,
and there did own his Examination before mj
Lord Chief-Juftice to be Truth ; but afeer he
charged Mr. Cufack, the Sheriff, wich having:
tampered with him, when Mr. Cufack appeared
here and confronted him, he went back from

what he faid.
The
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The next is Doiogh O-Brien '/f;}dfe*fv.idiléﬁior:
He tells you, he was mammacled diid fettered in the
Goal, till fuch time as by the Perfuafion of M.
Adan, and the Thréits of the Goalet and of
Mr. Cufack, That if he did nof fwear, h.r:* fhould
he feverely ncck-yoked; he went before ajuﬂme
of the Peace with Mr, Buller, who ufed feveral
pfingations to him, as he fays, to procure him
o fwear the Robbery was contrived by Hurly;
which, through Fear, he confented to; and fays,
That Mr. Butler put his Information into Wri-
ing 5 Part, fays he, I told him, and Part, he
fyys, Mr. Butler put down as he pleafed : I did
fwear to it, fays he, but it was again{t my Con-
icience, for I was forced to it He fays, That
Ar, Neylan brought Coats to him in the Goal,
and they would have him fwear they were the
Cuats they robbed in, but he wquld not {wear
by any means.  He fays, That atter they were
diichaiged, he was {o confcious to himfelf of the
[njary done Mr. Hurly, that he came towards
Dublin, that he lay 1n the fame Houfe with Mrs.
Jfurly and her Brother at Kiltartan, and, that
coming nearer to Town about Kilcock, he met
with Crips and Carty, that they lodged together
in one Houfe ; and being afked, Whether he fpoke
any thing to his Father about this Robbery? he
[xd, He never did.

The Father 1s there produced and he tells you,
thoush it would refle€t upon his Son, yet he
would perform T'ruth, being upon his Oath; and
fo fwears, That hearing how his Son had been
concerned in the Contrivance of this Robbery,
after he had been three Weeks in Goal he weit

10 fee him, and when he came to him, check’d

mm; and his Son told him, as be underftood
him, that the Robbery was only a Contrivance
of Mr. Hurly’s. That after he was out of Goal,
he fpoke to him concerning the Arms, where
they had them, and whether they were Patrick
Herly's Arms ? to which he anfwered, Where
cfe fhould he get Arms.  And this Donegh O-
Brien Andreos yunior, being aflied again, Whether
it was fo as his Father depofed ? he fuud, It was
not fo. Now the Father and the Son fwearing
one againtt the other in this Matter, you mutt be
Judges who has fworn true.

The next 1s Mr.Butler, who tells you, That n
taking the Examination, he was {o far from uling
any Threats wo this Dounggh O-Brien dudrews ju-
nior, that as foon as he came to Enuis, hearing
he was willing to make a Difcovery of the Mat-
ter, he fent for him to his Lodging 3 that he
cauled him to fit down 3 and that he writ every
Word as he fpoke s it and that there was not a
Word but what came from his own Mouth :
And the Examination was here read ; and 1f you
obferve ir, there are feveral Things in the Exa-
mination, that the Party owns came from him-
lelf, and feveral Things which could not poffibly
come within the Knowledge of Mr, Butler ; fo
that it is impoffible to be ccntrived by Mr, But-
fzr, becaufe they were Things wholly in the In-
former’s own Cognizance.

Vou. V.

There is one Thing offered in the €loft of the
Evidence. in behalf of the King,: which doés_nor
oifly relate to Mac:Cay, bur to all cherett, M.
Buller at}d_MQ.- Foller upon their Gaths tel you,
‘That Mr. Hurly, when lié vireférred his. Petition
concetning thi§ Robbery before; the Judges of
the Affizes, and he did alfo {weary Thit when he
went to Traguin, he left his Portnyinteau. wich
Mr. Bargery at Loughréa, with a ftri& Charee
to take pectal Care of it, for that there was
fomething of great Confequence in it and Chri-
Jiopher O-Brien fwears, That Mr. Hurly told him
likewife, that he left the Portmanteau at Mr.
Bargery’swhen he went to Tfaguin, and faid, He
would not carry it to Tiaguin, becaufe that was a
loofe Family; fo that Mr. Hurly fwore fully againft
what Mac-Cay {wears now.

Hurly [wore he was robbed but by Four Perfons,
and that agrees with what Calaghan Carty fwears,
One Woman {wears there was Seven, another
fwears Nine; fo that out of the Mouth of Mr.
Hurly himfelf his own Witneffes are contradiéted.
But Mr. Hurly would take oft the Probability of
his faying thus (for he denies the faying of it),
Is it likely, fays he, that I fhould come back
from Tiaquin to Loughrea, and fo go on again to
Gortnifbigory 2 But Mac-Cay, his Boy, tells you,
that his Malter hired a Horfe for him to carry
the Portmanteau before him to Gornifhigory on
Saturday, and that his Mafter followed him on
Sunday : Now, if the Portmanteau had been at
Tiaguin, why thould He fend it by Mac-Cay be-
fore-hand to Gort on Saturday, that he was fol-
lowing thither on Sunday 2 And when Mr.Hurly
was going down to the Country, what can be
imagined; why he fhould make a Boy acquainted
with his carrying fo much Money with him?
And that Mr. Hurly fhould leave the Key of the
Trunk with Mrs: Kemp to take out Linnen, and
fo oreat a Sum of Money there ¢ I do but lay
the Falts before you as they ftand upon the Evi-
dence, as well for as againft the Prifonery and [
hope you wilt do Juftice both to the Prifoner and
to the King. Gentlemen, if you are fatisfied
upon the whole Matter, that Mr, Hurly 1s guiley
of the Perjury, you will find him Guilty 5 if not,
you will acquit him,

If you think him Guilty of the Contrivance
to Cheat the County, you will ind him Guilty ;
if not, you will acquit him.

The Fury weit outy and returned in Half an
Hour 3 and brought in their Verdift, Guilty

ot both Indiciments.

Mr. Attorney-General. May it pleafe your Lord-
{hip, Patrick Hurly has been indicted for Per-
jury and a Cheat, and is found Guilty of both
Inditments, I humbly pray your Lordf(hips

Judgments, .
Court, How have you lid your Indict-

ment ¢

Hhh Mr, S,
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Mr. Sol. Gen. At Common Law, Mr. 412, Gen. We will move the Coure nexe
Court. In what Circumftance 1s Mr. Hurly 2 Monday for your Judgment upon the other Ip.
Mr, Butler. 1 hope, my Lord, if it is only a di¢tment.
Fine, it can’t be lefs than the Sum he defigned ~ Mr. Buler. My Lord, we infift upon it, T}y,
to get from the County by the Perjury. the Pillory is the Punithment for the Cheat,
Court. As to the Perjury, the Judgmentofthe  Comrt. We know, if Mr. Hurly be not gh);
Court upon that Conviction is, That Mr. Hurly to pay the Fine, he ought to fuffer Corpop|
be Fined for the Perjury 100/, and be Imprifoned Punifhment.
till he pay it to the King,

CLXXIL



The T R I 4 J. of

Colonel NICHOLAS BAYARD,
in the Province of New-York, for High-Trealon,

Febr. the 19th, 1701-2, 14 Wil IIL

S0 N the Sixteenth of Famuary, 1701,

3 , - ,
Captainfobn Nanfan, Lieutenant-
Governor, and the Council, made
the following Order.

AR
f““ )
L )
5

Ar a Counced beld ar Fort William-Xenry

this 16th of January, 1701, Prefent the

Honourable John Nanfan, Efg; &e.

] T is hercby order'd, That A'derman John Hut-

chins do appear before this Board To-morrow
Mopning, and then and there produce to the Board
the Addrefs to bis Majefty, the Addrefs to the Par-
liament, and the Addrefs to the Lord Cornbury,
which was figned by [everal of the Inbabitants of
tbis City, and Soldiers of the Garrifon, in this Houfe,
ahot three Weeks fincey on the Penalty that fhall
thereon enfie,

By Order of the Council,

B. Cozens.

Whereupon Mr, Hutchins appear’d; and for

icoleting or refufing to deliver up the faid Ad-.

drefles, on the Nineteenth of Fanuary was com-

mitted to the common Goal of the City of New-
Zark, for the figning of Libels, faid to be againft
the Adminiftration of the Government.

On the 20th Col, Bayard, Mr. Rip van Dam,
Mr. Philip Freunch, and Mr. Thomas W enbam ad-

drefs’d the Lieutenant-Governor and Counctl, as
followeth 5 iz,

Yor. V.

To the Honourable Fobn Nanfan, Eiq;

Lieutenant-Governor, and the Honour-
able Council of the Province of New-1or#,

The Humble Addrefs of Nicholas Bayard, Rip
van Dam, Philip French, azd Thomas
Wenham, on behalf of themfelves, and fome
of the reft of the Freeholders and Inbabitants
of the Province of N ew-York, ‘

Humbly theweth,

TH AT whereas by a Mittimus, béaring Date the

Nineteenth of January, 1701, Alderman Hutch-
ins flands committed for figning Libels, Jaid to be
againft the Adminiftration of the Governnient 5 whicl
pretended Libels we underftand to be an Addrefs to
his Majefty, another 1o the Parliament, and anotber
to my Lord Cornbury, whom we underfiand, by cer-
tain Advice we bave received from England, fo be
nominated by bis Majefiy to fucceed the late Earl of
Bellamont as onr Governor 5 Copies of wbich (by
the faid Mittimus) we find are expeited from the
faid Hluwchins, and is Part of bis Charge in the
Commitment, the Copies of which Originals (being
in our Hands or Cuflodies) be cannot deliver. If
there be no further Crime to be alledg’d againft bim,
we bope to make the Legality of the faid Addreffes,
and pray, That the [aid Flutchins may be releas’d
from bis Imprifonmenty or be admitted to Bail : And
your Petitioner [hall ever pray.

N B R.v.D. P.F. T.W.

Colonel Bayard, and the other three Gentle-.
men, having perfonally deliver'd this Writing,
and refufing to furrender the Copies of the faid
Addreffes, had Time given them, on their Pa-

role, to appear next Day. And afterwards, the
Hhh 2 {fame



42.0

{ime Day, the Lieutenant-Governor did deliver
the above Addrefs to his Maefty’s Attoraey-Ge-
neral of this Province, for his Opinion in Law
therein, which the faid Attorney-General gave in
{Vriting 5 and on the T'wenty-firft Day cumne inta
the Council-Chamber, and there deliver’d 1t to
the Licutenant-Governor 3 which was read, and
order’d to be enter’d in the Council-Book, 7

bee Verba,

May it pleafe your Flonour,

j'r' Have well confider’d the Iumble Aldrefs of Ni-

cholas Bayard, Rip van Dam, Philip French,
and Thomas Wenham, for the Releafe of clder-
main Vlorchins frem bis Tmprifimment, fens me by
your Ilononr yeflerday 5 awd bave alfy weigh'a the
Teveral Mutters fuworn, and otherwife Lascit i
Counctl before your Howoury which dv i any re-
fpect relate thereto s aind, upon the wlole, it Ove-
dizice to your Howou’s Commaids, I buwlly pre-
fent you <oith my Fudgment ard Opinioir 1 Latw,
as followes:

Firlt, That reither the Addrsfs or Pelitioin it feif,
o airy Matter therein contained, is Criminal isd

[H.:*gr&! .

Secondly, That the Refufal of the Petilioiers,
at the Coniicil-baard, to produce the Copics (of cer-
tain Orizinal Addreffes mention'd tn their Petition)
ooid by them 1o be in their Cuftody, and by tocir
DPutition alfay is not fuuch a Contempt to the Coui-
cil, or other Offeice againft the Law, for which the
Petitioners may legally be committed,

Jan. 21,
1701,

And afterwards the faid Perfons appear’d, and
continuing their Refufal to furrender, the faid
Copies, notwithflanding the Opinion of the At-
torney-General, the fad Licutenant-Governor and

Council ifued the following Warrant.

S, Sh, Bmughton_
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forders that have lately hapoen’d within thg
Province, and for cftablifhing and fecuring theje
Majefties prefent Government againft the like
Diforders for the future 5 17 is amoig other Thiyg,
enaifed, T hat whatfoever Perfon or Perfons ﬂmﬁ
by any manner of Way, or upon any Prﬂtenc;
whatfoever, endeavour by [oice of Arms, gp
other Ways, to difturb the Peace, Good, j;md
Quict of this their Majeftics Government, g5 i
15 now cliablifh’d, fhall be deenyd and efteem’y
as Rebels and fraytors unto their Majeftics
and incur the Puains, Penalties and Forfeiturs
as the Laws of  £.aland have tor fuch Ofences
made and provided : Netwithlanding <olich, (.
Ionel Nicholas Bayard, as bas appeard by the Quths
of foveral DPerfons examin’d bofore Us i Conniei, y
Confj tracy and Combiiation <ith John Hutching
» . H
Lfy; lately coinmitted by Usy togcther with vy
other Perfous difaffeted to this bis Majity's Go.
vernment, 1o the maiifelt Diftuibaice of 110 Peges
of the famey by divers indivedt Prallices bath draze,;
in Seldicrs, aid othersy fo frowr frandalens Likl,,
wherehy they bave cideavour’d to remdrr Ihe pa
and prefeit dmingtration <ile aind cheay iy i
Eyes of the People : dind the fasd Golons! Nichols
Bayard bath ducited ibe People to cijswin the profent
Autharity, aid calt off bis dagfty’s Goverimen,
as it is wew etablibd : The Coxicil bave wigi.
moufly thouzht fity aud do vefolve, That tie fuid,
Nicholas Bayard be committed for [lish Treajin,
Thefz are therefore, in bis Maifty’'s Nawme, 19 ye-
quire aid command yory imiediately on your ye-
ccipt bereof, to take o your Cuflody the Dedy f
the faid Col. Nicholas Bayard, and bim in b
commoin Goal of this City in clofe Cigledy 1o ke
and fecure, until be foall be from thence diliver:d]
by due Couife of Law s and for your fo doirg,
this fhall be your fufficicint Warrant,  Giveir visgir
Our Hands and Seals at Fort William-Henry
New-York, i Counci! this Twenty-frft of Jue
woary, Auio Domini 1701, and in the Thirtecitd
Year of the Reign of omr Sovercign Lord Willam
11, by the Grace of God, of England, Scotland,
France and* Ireland King, Defender of the Faith,

John Nanfan,
A. D. Peyiter,
S. Staats,

I, Walters,
T. Weaver,
W. Atwood.

By the Honoureble John Nanfan, Efg; bis
" Majefly's Governor and Coimmander i Claef

of the” Province of New-York, and Ter-

ritories depending theveon in America, &ec.
and bis Majefty’s Honourable Counci! for
1his Province, To Tfaac d'Reymer, Eff;
High-Sheriff of the City and County of New-
York, Greeting.

True Copy, exa- | |
mid by me, 1. D. Reimer, Sheriff.

Which A& of Affembly, mention’d mtthf‘-
Warrant of Commutment, followeth in el

Words, viz. ,

2} Hereas by an AR of Geueral-Affembly of this f
Province, made in the Year 1691, Entituled, |

An A& for the quicting and feling the Di-
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M AG for the quieting and fettling the Dif-

orders that bave lately bagper’d in this Pro-

vince, and for the efiablifbing and fecuring
their Majefties prefent Government againf?

the like Diforders jfor the future.

¢ T \Orafmuch as the Good and Quiet, Eafe,

« Profit, Benefit, and Advantage of the
« Inhabitants within this Province doth chiefly
« confit in, and altogether rely and depend
« ppon their bearing true Faith and Allegtance
« ynto Their Majefties Crown of England,
« which 15, and can only be, the Support and
« Defence of this Province. And whereas the
« Jate hafty and inconfiderate Violation of the
« fame, by the fetting up a Power over their
« Majefties Subjefts, without Authority from
i the Crown of England, hath vitiated and de-
«_bauch’d the Minds of many People, &, and
« hath alfo brought greac Wafte, Trouble, and
« Deftruétion upon the good People of this Pro-
« yince, their Majefties Loyal Subjefts: For
o the Prevention whereof in Time to come, Be
« it therefore Enatted and Ordain’d by the Go-
« vernor, and Council, and Reprefentatives met
« in General-Aflembly, and.it is hereby Pub-
« lih'd, Declar’d, Enated, and Ordain’d by
« the Authority of the fame, That there can
« be no Power and Authority held and exercis’d
« gver their Majefties Subjects-in this their Pro-
« yince and Dominilon, but what-muft be deriv’d
« from their Majefties, their Heirs and Suc-
« ceflors. And We do hereby recognize and ac-
« knowledge, That their Majefties William and
« Maryare, and as of Right they ought to be
** by the Laws of the Realm.of England, our
« Liece Lord and Lady, King and Queen of
v England, France and Irelond, and the Do-
* minions thereunto belonging, &F¢, That there-
« by thetr Princely Perfons are only invelted
« with the Right to rule this their Dominion
“and Province; and that- none ought or can
“ have Power, upon any-Pretence. whatfoever,
“ to ufe or exercife any Power over their Sub-
“ jects in this Province, but by their immediate
“ Authority under their Broad- Seal of their
“ Realm of England, as now eftablih’d.

“ And be it further Enaéted, by the Autho-
“rity aforefaid, That what{oever Perfon or
“ Perfons fhall, by any manner of Way, or
““ upon any Pretence whatfoever, endeavour, by
“ Force of Arms or otherwife; to difturb the
““ Peace, Good and Quiet of this their Ma-
“ efties Government, as it is now eftablifh’d,
“ fhall be deem’d and efteem’d as Rebels and
“ Traytors unto their Majefties; and incur the
“ Pains, Penaltics and Forfeitures as the Laws

“of Eugland have, for fuch Offences, made
“ and provided.

Upon Colonel Bayard's Commitment, the City
Militia were, by Beatiof Drum, calld.to Arms,
and a whole Company daily appointed .to guard
the Prifon, for about a ‘Wetk following, . and
Defaulters ftrictly punifh’d ; which was-burden-
fome to the People, and occafion’d .great . Cla-
mour 5..whercupon it was taken off.

at New-Yoik; for HighaTreéfbﬁ.
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" The Prifoner being inform’d, That a Special.
Commiffion was order’d for their {peedy- Trials
petition’d the Lieutenant-Governor and Councils
on the Sixth of Febritary, in theéfe Words:

To the Honourable Fobn Naiﬁ#, Efqa G-
vernor; 9. and the Honourable Council, {J¢;:

The Humble Petition df Niﬁbafa: Bayard
and Fobn Hutchins,

Sheweth;

T.H AT your Pelitioners aré very fenfible of the
Favour intended them by your Hoiours, it ap-

pounting a Special Coyrt for their Trial s thaty i

confideration of their Age, they might not b confin'd
i & Prifon 11l the ordinary Time 'Z"ﬁi}: meeting of 1he
oupreme Court: But the Papers being al prefent out
of their Hands, which they fhall bave Occafion fors
in order to make their Innocency appear, and ot
being likely to get them in fo fhart a Time as i5 pre-

Jix'd for the faid Trial; your Petitioners humbly

pray, That they may wot be oblig'd to come to Trial
befors the ufual Sitting of the Supreme Conrt, And

your Petitianers fhall ever pray, &c.

To which a Verbal Anfwer was given to Co-
lonel Bayard’s Son, That out of meet Grace the
Court thould be deferr’d for Five Days.

On the Nineteenth of February the Commif-

fioners fate, and publifh’d their Commiffion tn
thefe Words; wiz, | |

“ JJ/ILLIAM the Third, by the Grace
¢¢ of Gop, of England, &c. To Our lo-

¢c Ving Subje&s William Atwood, Eﬁ:i; Abrabam
« I Pejfler, Elq; and Robert Walters; Efgs fend-
¢ eth Greeting, Kunow Ye, That We have
“ affian’d you, or any Two or more of you,
¢¢ whereof you the faid Fillian: Atrood We will
* to be One; our Juftices, to enquire by the
¢ Qaths of good and lawful Men of the City of
¢ New-2ork, and by fuch other Medns, Ways
¢ and Methods which to you fhall be the better
¢ known, by whom the Truth of the Matter
““ may be the better knowny on the 1g9th Day
“ of this Inftant February, of whatfocver Trea-
fons, Mifprifions of Treafens, Infurrections;
*¢ Rebellions, Murders, Felonies, Manflaugh-
‘ ters, Homicidés, Rapets, Burglaries; Mif-
“ prifions, Confederacies, Falfe Reports, Tref<
¢ paffes, Riots, Routs, Unlawful Aflfemblies;
“ Contempts, Faults, Negligences, Conceal:
< ments, Oppreflions, Champarties, Decelts,
¢ Mifdemeanors, and other Mifdeeds, Offences,
¢t and Injuries whatfoever, committed by Nich.
“ Bayard and Fobn Hutchins, and zlfo the Ac-
“« ceffaries of them, in the Province of New-
<¢ York aforefaid 5 and by who or by whom, to
“ who or to whom, how, when, and In what
“ Manner, and of other Asticles and Circum-
“¢ ftances In the Premifes, either or any of them
¢« concerning; and the fame Treafons, Ofences,
¢¢"and other the Premifes for this Time, to hear
¢« and determine according to the Laws and Cu-
“ floms of 'Efglg}:d, and of this }uu; Pl_‘,oviricgf
2 0

[ 94
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¢ of New-2ork in America. And we command,
¢« That on the faid Day, at the City-Hall of
« the faid City, you, or any Two or more of
«« you, as is.aforefaid, diligently make Enquiry
« ypon the Premifes, and alt and fingular the
¢ Premifes hear and determine, and do accom-
¢ plith thefe Things in Form aforefaid, which
« unto Juftice appertains to be done thereupon,
¢¢ according to the Laws and Cuftoms of our
« Kingdom of England, and of our faid Pro-
¢ yince 3 faving unto Us our Amerciaments, and
«¢ other Things thercof unto Us belonging, Alfo
« we command Qur Sheriff of Our faid City,
 That on the faid Day, on the faid Place, he
<« caufe to come before you, or any fuch Two
« of you, as aforefaid, or more, fuch and fo
«« many good and Jawful Men of his Bailiwick,
“ by whom the Truth of the Matter may be the
¢ Letrer enquird into, In Teflimony whereof,
¢« We have caufed the Great-Seal of Qur Pro-
¢¢ yince to be hereunto affix’d, Witnels Fobn
¢« Nanfan, Efq; Lientenant-Governor and Com-
¢« mander in Chief of the Province of New-
“ York, &c. in Council at Fort William-Henry,
¢ the 12th Day of February, in the 13th Year
¢ of our Reign, Ao 1701,

And Proclamation being made in the ufual
Manner, the Pannel of the Grand- Jury was
call’d over: Thofe who appear’dand were fworn,

werc

oban. &’ Peyfler, Foreman, | Aryen Hogelant,
David Provosfl, William Fackfon,
Martin Clock, Fobn Corbitt,

Toban. van Cortland,
Caleh Cogper,

Fobi van Hoorn,

| Burger Myndero,
Geryet van Hoorn,
Facobys 4’ Key,

Lecndert Huygen,
Barent Reynders,
Yobannis vander Spicgell,
Yobaunis Quimai,
Hendrick Gillifen,

Peter vau Tillburgh,
Yobannis van Gicfen, Abrabam Kipp,
Abrabam Keteltas, Fobannis van Sania,

Yacob Boclen and Sfobaunis Hardenbroek did not
then appear.

Before the Jurors were fworn, the Council for
the Prifoner objefted againft fome of them, for
declaring before feveral Witneffes, then ready to
be produc’d in Court, That if Bayard’s Neck was
made of Gold, he fhould be bang’d; at the {ame
time boafting, that they were of the Jury; and
pray’d, That fince that Jury was tummon’d
upon that Special Matter, fuch mighc not be
fworn. Which the Court over-ruled.

Mr. Atwweod, the Firft Commiflioner, gave a long
Charge to the Jury, aggravating the Falts {up-
pos’d againft the Prifoner, and pofitively affert-
ing, That thofe Faéts were Treafon, not only

within the Words of this A& of Affembly, but
alfo by the Common Law before the Statute of

the 2 5th of Zdw. 1L

The Jurors having receiv’d the Charge, the

Court adjourn’d till next Day.

The Court being met the 20th, the Inditment

the Grand- Jury, and that no Perfon fhould p,
fent for, but whom he fhould name ; and, that
no Queftion fhould be alk’d them, but fuch 4
he fhould approve of.  On the other hand, ¥,
Corbitt, Caleb Coopery Fobn Cortland, and Y ace)
d’Key infifted, That the King’s Council ought ng:
to be prefent with them at their private Debage .
and, that they had a Right to fend for wha Pey.
fons, and afk what Quettions for their Infory.
ation they fhould think needful.  Whereupo,
Mr, Weaver did threaten them, and (to ufe b
own Expreflion) <wonld caufe them to be troyyey
taking down their Names. And the Gmnd-lur;;
broke up without acting, '

The Court, in the Afternoon, met accordine
to Adjournment 5 and the Grand-Jury being fene
for, Mr. [Peaver made Complaint, That he wy
obftrutted by fome of the Grand-Jury, who
would not acquielce to his being prefent ag the
Examination of the King’s Evidence, and woy)
have other Evidences fent for, than what wer
by him_produced. And thereupon Mr, Az
did difcharge the abovefaid Iour Perfons from
their further Service, and caus’d Facch Bocla,
who was abfent when the others were {worn,
be fent for from his Houfe, fivorn, and added 1
the Grand-Jury ; and the Court adjourn’d ul]
Seven a-Clock that Evening, but did not meu
till about Midnight 5 when fending to know it
the Jury had found the Bill, and being inform’d
they were feparated, he adjourn’d the Court till
next Morning at Eighta-Clock 5 and in the Way
from the Court, n Paflion faid, If e Graud-
Fury will not find a Bill againft Col. Bayard, ]!
bring an Information againft bim of High-Tieaf,
and try bim upon that.

February 21. The Court met, and the Grand-
Jury appearing in Court, the Indiftment v
brought in by the Foreman, endorfed Billa Fura,
and figned with his Name. Upon which Mr.
Atwood 1mmediately difcharged the Jury.

Whereupon the Counfel for the Prifoner i
formed the Court, That the Bill was not tfound
by Twelve Jurors. And upon Examination it
appeared to the Commiflioners, that of fuch of
the Jurors who remained in Court, Eight of the
Nineteen were againft finding the Bill 5 as ap-
pears by the Minutes of the Court entered by
Ordery vz,

Tacob Boelen,
Abrabam Kipp,
Fobi vain Hoorn,
Gerret van Hoorn,

Fobarnis vair Sarta,
William Fackfoir, -
Burger Myndere,
Foban, vander Spiege..

Which Eight importuned-the Court, That the
Foreman might be brought upon his Oath, and
the reflt fent for to witnefs the ‘Truth, that they
only Found the Signing the Addreflcs, and not
the Treafon. To which Mr, Atwoed made Ae-
fwer, They wecre no longer Jurors; they h_;ul
prefented the Bill, and the Court was poﬁels’d
of it3 it was now a Record, and there is 0
Averment againft a Record,

Ordered, The Prifoner come to Trial on Mo

day next come Sevennight 3 to which Day the
Court adjourned accordingly. _
On Mouday the 2d of March, the Commiflio-

ners met according to Adjournment.
Mr.

againft Colonel Bayard was deliver’d by the Court
to the Grand-Jury 3 and Mr, Weaver (appointed
Sollicitor-General for this Service) attended them
with the Proofs, and infifted to be prefent with
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Mr. Nicholl. (Counfel affigned for Col, Bayard)
noved, that the Inditment might be quafhed,
rot being found by Twelve Men @ And o prove
die Matter of Law, offered to produce Authori-

P
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Sacramentum duodecim 5 for it was prefented by
a lefler Number; it was clearly ill, therefore it
was revers’d. |

Mr. Alwood. There can be no Averment againfl

ties; and to prove the Matter of Fa&, offered
to produce Evidences in Court, it either were in-
fited on, the Grand-Jury being then by Subpana
iy Court,

Mr. ol Gen. What 1s moved 1n behalf of the
Prifoner, 1s moft improper ; forafmuch as the
fndictment is found, and figned by the Foreman
Bifla Vera, there can be no Averment allowed
gainft a Record brought 1n by the Body of a
Grand-Jury 3 and therefore T defire the Prifoner
miy be fent for, and arraigned.

Mr. Nicholl, "This is a Matter of great Weight
aqd Moment 3 and concerns not only the Life
and Fortune of the Prifoner and his Pofterity,
bat the Right of every Euglifbman in the Pro-
vince « Itis not only lawtul, but highly reafon-
ile, that an Indi@ment for High-Treafon
fhould be found by Twelve Men at leaft. By
the Statute 13 K. 1 /7. 2. ¢, 13, reciting, That
Sheriffs feigning many times certain Perfons to
be indicted of Felonies and other Trefpafies, take
Men not culpable nor lawfully indited, and im-
prifon them,

«« Whereas they were not lawfully indicted by
v Twelve Turors, 1t is ordained, That Sheriffs,
“ where they have Power to enquire of Tref-
“ paffes by the King’s Precept, or by Office, fhall
“ canfe Inquefts, &¢. to be taken by Iawful Men,
“ and by Twelve at leaft, which fhall put their
« Seals to fuch Inquifitions,” [ Here it is obfer-
vable, that there is twice Jeediimo aodo In a few
Lines.]

Cobe Inf. 2. Part 387. fays, Two Things are
provided, or rather declared, by this Act:

1. Per legales homines ad minus duodecim faciant
Tnmuifitiones.

Coke Inft. 1. fol 126, The Indiétment is defin’d
an Accufution found by an Inqueft of Twelve or
more upon their Qath.

Poulton de Pace, &c. An Indiétment of Trea-
fon, Felony, Trefpafs, or any other Offence, is
an Inquifition taken and made by Twelve Men
at leaft,

Cike Inft. 3. fol. 0. No Peer of the Realm, or
other Subject, thall be convicted by Verdi€t; but
the faid Offence muft be found by above Four
and T'wenty, that is, by Twelve or above, at his
Indictment, &,

11 H. 4. g. Inquefts had been taken of Perfons
nmed to the Juftices, without due Return of
the Sheriff ; of which fome outlaw’d before the
{nd Juftices of Record, fome fied to Sanétuary,
€r, for Treafon, fome for Felony : Granted,
That henceforth no Indiétment be made by fuch
Yerfons, but by Inquefts of the King’s lawful
Liege People, in fuch Manner as was ufed in
tie Time of his Noble Progenitors; and if any
Indiftment be made hereafter in any Point to the
tatrary, that the fame Indiétment be alfo voud,
evoked, and for ever holden for none.

Crook Eliz, 654. Clyncard was indicted on the
Sthof H, 6. The Record was ad Seffionem Patis,
e, ter Sacramentwn A.D. C. D, &9 aliorum leza-
}f{fm bomipym in Comitatn pradidto prefentatus cxi-
fir, &, And it appearcth not that i¢ was per

2

a Record.  If you can produce any Authority,
that it was ever allowed to make zn Avermment
agamnft a Record; and fpeak to that Head, you
fhall be heard ; but togoupon this Flead, Whether
or no the Grand- Jurors are or can be brought to
reveal the Counfel which they are fivorn to keeys
fecret; cannot be allowed.

Mr. Nicholl. The Grand-Jury confifieth of
Nineteen Perfons, whereof Eight have openly in
Court protefted, that they found no Treafon:

Mr, Atwoed, T have by me the OQatis of Two
Men, Thac the Bills were found by Fousteen Billa
Vera s they are fo endors’d, have been publickly
read 1n Court, and are of Record 3 for which
Reafon I nor no Body elfe can enquire {urther
of It

Mr. Nicholl. 'This concerns the Subject’s Life,
and your Honour onght to be Counfel for the
Prifoner; and it a Mifunderflanding happeas by
the Ignorance of the Jurors, fo that the B:ll is
returned contrary to their Intendment, the P
foner ought to be affilted. -

My, Sofl. Gen. Pray fhew us any Authority,
where an Averment has been offered againit a
Record.

Mr, Emot. May it pleafe your Honour, Tam
joined with Mr. Nicholl as Counfel for the Prifo-
ner. The Queftion that now feems to lie before
your Honour 1s, Whether there can be any A-
verment offered againft a Record ¢ There s an
Aét of Parliament of the 11th of A, 4. wherein
it is enafted, That a Grand-Jury fhall corift 4:
bonts & legalibus bominibus : And fo likewife runs
the Tenor of the Writ of Penirey for want of
fuch Perfons, the fame Stature dovs declare the
Inditment void.  So that it is a good Exception
to an Indictment, to aver, that any one of the
Grand- Jury was an Alien; which 1s Matter of
Fatt. How fhall this Averment be made, if fo
be there be no Averment againit a Record ? And
what Benefit has the Prifoner of this Ack, unlefs
an Averment be allowed againit the Record of
this Indictmeat, if it fhould fo happen, that flome -
of the Grand-Jury are not fo qualified as the Act
requires ? Which feems to me {uthicient Reafon,
that an Averment in the Cafe ac the Bar, 1s good
againft a Record. )

Mr. Arweed. The Statute gives the Parniculars
that may be averred, and no others can be al-
lowed.

Mr. Emot. *Tis very hard upon the Subject :
The Court appoints the Foreman of the Grand-
Jury, and he may chance to be a Perfon prejudi-
ced againft the Prifoner, who may fign and re-
turn the Bill Billa Vera, without the Confent of
his Fellows, or a fufficient Number: And becaule
it’s Matter of Record, fhall no Averment be al-
lowed againft the Bill! |

Mr. Atwood. A Grand-Jury in a certain Cafe,
on an Indi€ment for Words {poken, found B{![a
Vera, but as to the malitiofe, Ignoramus; which
made the Bill void, So in this Cafe, if the Ju-
ry, as to the Faét in the Indictment, had found
Billa Vera, and as to Treafon fgnoramus, the Bill
had been void, and the Court muft have taken

Notice



434 172, The Trial of Col. Nicholas Bayard, 14 W, Jj] -

Notice of it. But to this Bill there is no En-
dorfement but Billa era : The Court has receiv-
ed and publifhed the Verdict, and therefore will
proceed. .

Mr. Emor. But the Matter of Fa& only ap-
peared to the Jury 5 and when they underftood
the Bill to be laid treafonable, they immediately
objected againtt it.

Mr. Atwood, The Bill is found, and appears
to the Court, Matter of Record ; fo that you
need not infift any further upon that Head. A
Grand-Jury 15 an Inqueft of Office; and an In-
queft of Office may be found by a lefs Number
than Twelve. Mr. Sheriff, bring your Prifoner
to the Bar,

Mr. Nicoll. T have fomething clfe to offer,

Mr. Atwood. Sheriff, ftay a little,

Mr. Nicoll, 1 have a Second Objection 1n Be-
half of the Prifoner ; and it is, That the Juries
fhould have been returned by Precepts under the
Hands and- Seals of the Commiffioners; which
we underltand was not,

This appears in Hale’s Pleas of the Crown,
Pag. 134. Sir Edw. Coke’s ath Page of the Iufbitutes,
‘Title Oyer and Terminer, fays the fame. There
is a {pecial Claufe in the Writ of Oyer and Ter-
miner, which fays, e have commanded our Sheriff
to fummons, at fuch Days and Places as you [fhall
appoint, fuch good and lawful Men, by whom the
Truth may be the better known, How fhall the
Sheriff know thofe Days and Places, bur by the
Commuflioners Precept? And how fhall the Trath
be known, if the Grand-Jury are permitted to have
no other Evidence but what are brought ex parte
Regis ?

Mr. Sol. Gen. The Grand-Jury are only to en-
quire for the King, and to receive or fend for no
other Kvidence than what are brought for the
King,

Mr.Nicoll. You may tell that to fomebody elfe,
not to me 3 that 1s contrary to their Oath, which
s, Lhat they fhall diligently enquire, and true
Prefentment make,

Mr. Afwood,  All the Books fpeak of the King’s
Evidence only, and agree, that the Grand-Jury
mity and ought co Find upon probable Evidence,
as appears in Babbington,

Mr. Emot, Ste Edw. Coke fays, Part 4, of the
Inftitutes, Title Oyer and Terminer, That the Ju-
ries ought to be returned by Precepts under the
Hands and Seals of the Commiffioners, There
is no Diltinétion made between the Grand- Jury
and the Petey-Jury 3 fo that the Venires, as well
for one as the other, ought to have been under
the Hands and Seals of the Commiflioners.

Mr, S0/, Gen. When you had the Government,
Dr. Staats had a Bill found againft him by Eight
Mcn of a Jury of Fifteen.

N.B. 4 private Perfon oppofed the Affertion s but
he wwas commanded Stlence.

Mr. Nicoll. I never heard of it, nor believe it to
be true ; but that 1s not to be taken for a Prece-

dent, were it true.

Mr. Atwood, Gentlemen, you feem to miftake
the Lord Chief-Juftice Coke, where he fays, There
thall be 24 Peers upon the Arraignment of a Peer,
&g, for if there be but 13 Peers, and the Majo-

rity agree to 1t, 1t is underflood to be foynd by
12 of them.

There 1s fomething in that which YOU offer
of the Precept being under the I—Iaqfls and S::-*Is:
of the Commiffioners in the Returd' of the g,
ty-Jury 3 but this does not ar all afug the
Grand-Jury : For which Reafon, if yoy o
Caufe to move it, Time may be granted to mend
that Miftake. Is there nothing elfe you haye
offer ¢

M. Nicoll. Nothing at prefent,

Mz, Atwood. WMr. Sherift, bring the Prifoner g
to the Bar,

Which was done accordingly.

Clerk of the Crown. Nicholas Bayard,

10 Hold 1p
thy Hand. You ftand indicted, &,

City and Comnty of New-York, in 1le Py,
Ve 9f New-York 7 ZL\IZI]*‘CI'i{.‘:-.l=r A
Regnr Iﬁ:ng Gudeelnn “Terted, wme Angliz,
&c.  Decimo Quarto,

¢ HE Jurors {worn, and charg’d to ep-

~ * quire for our Sovereign Lord the
““ King upon our Oaths, do Prefent Nichiss
“ Bayard, of the City of New-York in duwerica,
*“ Bfqy tor that he the fiid Nicholas Bayard, the
““ Kear of God in his Heart not having, nor the
“ Duty of his Allegiance weighing, bur being
“ moved and feduced by, the Inftigation of the
““ Devil, as a Rebel and Traytor againft the
¢ molt Sercne, molt Iluftrious, moft Clement,
“ and moft Excellent Prince, our Sovereign
““ Lord William the Third, by the Grace of God,
“ of Eugland, Scotland, France and Ireland, and
“ of this Province of New-2%rk, King, Defen-
“ der of the Faith, &, His, the faid Nichds
¢ Bayard, fupreme, true, lawful, and undoub:-
““ ed Sovereign Lord; the cordial Love, and
“¢ true and due Obedience, Fidelity and Allegi-
““ ance, which every Subject of. our Lord the
«“ King, that now is, towards him our {aid Lord
“¢ the King fhould bear, or of Right ought
‘“ bear, withdrawing, and utterly. to extinguilh;
¢ intending and contriving, and with all hs
“ Strength purpofling, defigning, confpiring and
“ endeavouring, with divers other Rebels and
‘¢ Traytors, to the Jurors unknown, the Go-
“ vernment of this Province of New-7Tork, under
“ him our faid Sovereign Lord the King, that
““ now 1s of Right happily and duly- eftablithed,
“ to defume, fubvert, change and alter, and ©
““ difturb the Peace, Good and Quiet of this his
“ faid Majefty’s Government of this his fid
“* Province of New-2urk, as it is now, and hatd
““ been for feveral Years Jaft paft eftablifhed; On
““ the Tenth of December lalt paft, and in the
““ 13th Year of the Reign of our Sovercigh
¢ Lord, that now is, in the Dock-Yard of the
“ faid City and County of New.2ork, and divers
““ other Times and Days as well before as afier,
““ at the faid Ward, and elfewhere in the City
“and County of New-2ork aforefaid, fallys
‘ malcioully, devilithly, rebellioufly and tran
““ teroufly did compafs, imagine, contrive, pur
“« pofe, defign, intend and endeavour to defant,

*“ {fubvert, change and alter, and to dil’tulfb th
' e¢ Peact,
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' wict of this his Majefty’s

t¢ 2eace, Good and Q

«« Government of New-York, as it now is, and
« hath for feveral Years paft been eftablithed.
« And the fame moft abominable, wicked and
« devilith, rebellious, treafonous and traiterous
« Contrivagces, Intentions, Purpofes and Endea-
« yours aforefaid, to fulfl, perfect, and bring
« 1o clfe, he, the {axd Nicholas Bayard, by Con-
o {piracy as aforefaid, afterwards, to wit, the faid
« Tenth Day of December laft paft, in the Year
«« aforefaid, 1n the faid City and County of New-
« Jork aforefaid, and divers other Days and
«« Times, as well before as after, falfly, malici-
« oufly, adviledly, clandeftinely, rebellioufly,
« and traiteroufly, with Force of Arms, &,
« did ufe divers indireét Practices and Endea.
« yours, to procure Mutiny and Defertion among
« the Soldiers in Pay, belonging to his Majefty’s
« Fort and Garrifon of Fort William-Henry, in
« or near the faid City and County of New-Zork
« aforefaid, and diddraw in Numbers of them,
« the faid Soldiers and others, to fign falfe and
« feandalous Libels againft his Majetty’s faid Go-
% vernment, as it is now, and hath for feveral
« Years laft paft been eftablithed in this Pro-
« vince: Which faid Libels, by the Procure-
« mentof the {aid Nicholas Bayard, as aforefaid,
« were figned by the faid Soldiers and others,
« and were likewife figned by him the faid NY-
 cholas Buyard; 1n one or more of which faid
« Libels, amongft other Things highly.refleét-
“ ing on the laft and preflent Adminiftration of
« the Government under his Majefty in this Pro-
“ vince, 1t 1s Infinnated and declared, That his
“ Majelty’s Subje€ts within this Province, are,
“ and have been for fome Years laft paft, by
¢ Perfons entrufted with the Adminiftration of
“ the fard Government under his Majefty, op-
“ orofid 5 and that the faid Government hath
“ been, and is rendered cheap and vile in the Eyes
“ of the People, as alfo that the prefent Geireral
“ Affembly of this Province 1s not a lawful Af-
“ fembly. By which, and divers other malicious
* Scandals in the faid Libels contained, he, the
“ {aid Nicholas Bayard, hatl incited his Majefty’s
* Subjects of this Province to difown the prefent
*“ Authority, and Government thereof, and to
“ caft off their Obedience to his Majefty’s faid
“ Government, as it now is, and hath for {everal
“ Years laft paft been eftablithed; againft the
“ Duty of his, the faid Nicholas Bayard's, Alle-
* glance, againft the Peace of our faid Sovereign
*“ Lord the King, that now is, his Croiwn and
* Dignity, as alfo againft the Form and Effe&
* of one Statute or A& of General Aflembly of
* this Province, enaded inthe Year of our Lord
*“ God, 1691, Entitled, An AZ for quisting
“and fettling the Diforders that have lately bap-
* pened within this Province, and for eftablifbing
“and fecuring their Majely's prefent Government
* againft the ltke Diforders for the future.

Clerk, What fay you, Are you Guilty, or Not
Guilty of the Indic@ment ?

Prifoner. Not Guilty : And puts himfelf upon
God and the Country, 9.

Prifoner, 1 defire’T may be allowed two Clerks
0 take the Minutes of the Trial.

ed, he may take Notes; any other will not be fuf-
fered to do it,

Prifoner, 1 find it was allowed my Lord Ruffe!,
and others, to employ Clerks to take their "Lri-
als : I pray the fame Liberiy,

Mr. Atweood. It was allowed my Lord Ruffel,
but you would not be willing to meet with the
Hardthips of his Trial.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Perhaps the Counfe! will not in-
Oft upon the Miftake of the esire.

Mr, Nicholl, We fhall not infift on that.

. Mr. Atweod., But we will have it mended ;
and thereupon order’d a Precept to be direéted to
the Sheriff, under the Hands and Seals of the.
Commiffioners, to return a Petty-Jury the Sixth
Inftant ; to which Day the Court adjourn’d.

March Oth. The Commiflioners met. The
Prifoner was brought to the Bar, and the Perty-
Jury bemg call’d, confifting of Eighty, fome of
them did not appear: Whereupon it was order’d,
that the Defaulters of the Petty-Jury be amerced
Ten Pounds cach, if they did not appear in the
Afterncon, or fhew a reafonable Caufe 5 and the
Court adjourn’d till Three in cthe Afternoon, when
they met aguin.

- Mr. Soll. Gen, mov’d, That the Court might
be adjourn’d till T'o-morrow Morning, the King’s
Evidence being difguis’d with Drink ; which was
oranted, |

- Mr. Nicholl mov’d, That it would be a Fa-
vour to the Prifoner, to put off the Trial till
Monday. |

Mr. Atwood, No: I will take care to do my
Duty, whatever other People .
do. We fhall not give Mr.
Veafy the Opportunity of an-
other Sermon againft us,

Mr. Atwood. obferve Mr, Famifon to have Pen
and Ink : Mr, Famifon, you are not permitted to
write.

Jamtfon. 1 only take Minutes for my private
Satisfaction,

Mr, Atwood, *Tis true, an Attorney or Practi-
tioner of the Court may take Notes for his pri-
vate Ufe; bur you are no longer an Attorney
of this Court, nor fhall you be permitted to
practife, until you purge your felf of having
ﬁglix’d the Addreffes, Put up your Pen and
Ink.

March yth,  The Commiflioners met, and the
Attorney-General was call’d, but did not ap-
pear.

Mr. Atwood, Mz, Secrefary, let a Minute be
made, That it appears to this Courf, That the
Attorney-General hath negletted his Majelty’s
Service, T'is no Wonder the People here con-
temn his Majelty’s Authority, fince the Attor-
ney-General, tho’ commanded to profecute by
the Government, hath negletted to do the fame,
and hath given a Judgment and Opinion direct-
ly contrary to the Lieutenant-Governor and
Council, _

Mr. Atwoid, Sheriff, fetch the Prifoner. Which
was done,

Mr. Secretary. Before we proceed, read the Pe-
tition, which was given me this Morning by Co-
lonel Bayard’s Son. Which was read iz bac
Verba.

Mr. Feafy was then
Minifter at Neze-ork. -

Iii Tao
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To the Honourable William Atwood, Elq;
Abrabam d Peyfter, Efqs and Robert Wal-
ters, Elq; Judges of this Special Court.

The Humble Petition of Nicholas Bayards;

Sheweth,

¢ H AT your Petitioner’s Council have in-

¢ form’d him, That on Yefterday they
< pray'd in the Petitioner’s Behalf, the Favour
¢ of this Court, to prove before your Honours,
¢ by the Oaths of the major Part of the Grand-
¢ Jury, there alfo fibpena’d in Court, that the In-
¢ di@ment brought in for High-Treafon againt
« your Petitioner by Capt. Fobannes d' Peyfier (as
¢ being Foreman of the faid Grand-Jury) was

¢ Txtraftion and Education, moft of *em Hand;.
¢ craft and Labouring Mens very few that ey :
¢ were of any Juries whatfoever, and extream igr
¢ norant in the Eneli/h Languape.® >
Your Petitioner thevefore moft humbly praye
That your Honours will be pleas’d 10101,
Premiffes into your Honours favourqbl, nm;

ferious Confideration, and to afford your p,
titioner fuch Relief therein as to youy Hg:

nours 1 Fuflice and Equity fhall f;
And, as in Duty bound, &yc. Jeem fi

N, Bavarp.

Mr. Atwoed, Let a Minute be enter’d, Ty
the Petition was read ; and, that it does appear

¢ not Found, nor Agreed to, by any Twelve of tothe Court, that the Bill was found by more ths;

¢ that Jury, tho’ the moft Part of them (as isevi-
¢ dently known) are your Petitioner’s mortal
¢ Fnemies, for no other Caufe, but on account
« of theunhappy Divifions within this Province.
¢« Which faid Prayer of your Petitioner’s Coun-
« il (as he is alfo inform’d} your Honours have
¢ been pleafed to over-rule, as not being practi-
¢ cable by the common Form of the Court’s Pro-
¢ ceedings. But, may it pleafe your Honours, this
¢ being a Matter of that moment, whereof hardly
¢ a Precedent is to be found, as that a IForeman
¢ fhall fo far impofe upon a whole Grand-Jury,
¢ a5 to bring in an Indi&ment Billa Vera, which
¢ the faid Inqueft did not Find nor Agree unto,
< neither in Matter nor Form: Your Petitioner
¢ therefore moft humbly prays, That your FHo-
¢ nours will be pleas’d to take the Premiffes into
« your Honours ferious Confideration, and to
< grant your Petitioner that Favour, as to have
¢ all the faid Nineteen of that Grand-Inqueft {worn
< before your Lionours to difcover the Truth,
¢ and toafford your Petitioner fuch Relief therein,
¢ g5 to your Honours fhall feem moft juft and
¢ expedient.  But if it fhould fo happen (as your
¢ Petitioner does not hope) that your Honours
¢ do not think fit to grant this your Petitioner’s
¢ moft humble Requeft, your Petitioner further
¢ prays leave to acquaint your Honours with the
¢ exceflive and almoftunparallel’d Hardfhips your
¢ Petitioner, in this very Trial, labours under.
¢ In the firlt place, for that the Grand-Jury, al-
tho’ your Petitioner had often pray’d Mr. She-
riff, that he might have the Favour and Jultice
of being try’d by Euglifb Men, and of Englifh
Extraction, of the beft Charaéter for Xnow-
ledge, Integrity, Juftice, Confcience, and E-
ftates 3 yet notwithftanding your Petitioner had
not one allow’d him of Englifh, but all of ’em
of Dutch Extra@ion and Education, and feveral
of ’em ignorant to that degree, that they can
neither write nor read, nor fo much as under-
ftand the Englifb Language, tho’ fufficient
Numbers of Exnglifp Men of very good Abili-
ty, Underftanding, Integrity, Conicience, and
¢ Tiftate, were to be had'in the Bailiwick.

¢ And, for a fecond Inftance of your Petition-
¢ ¢r’s Hardfhips, he finds now alfo a Petty-Jury
¢ impannel’d to ferve upon his Trial, all of ’em,
¢ except Five or Six, in like manner of Dutch

" n L T 1 ™ "~ ) "™ ™ [ o i ™ "

Twelve of the Grand- Jury.

Mr. Atwood, Colonel Bayard, the Laws do jn.
dulge you with Counfel; Did you advife with
them concerning this Petition ?

Bayard. No, 1did not.

Mr, Atwaod. *Twere better you had 5 for you
have atted very indifcreetly in this Matter, to
arraign the Juftice of the Grand-Jury.

The Jury being call’d, appear’d,

Timon van Burfert. Prifoner accepts,

M. Soll, Gen, I challenge him for the Kine.

Mr. Emot. You are not to challenge, Mr. Salli-
citory without Caufe, by the Statute 23 Edw. |

Mr,Soll. By the Common-Law the King could
challenge without Caufe, but, by tne Statute, thar
was taken away 3 and in the late Trial of Petr
Cook, 1t 15 faid by Lord Chief-Juftice Treby, Tha
the King fhould fhew Caufe, 1f not enough on
the Pannel to ferve, but not elfe,

Mr. Atwood. It is a Thing {o plain, T wonder
you will infift on it.

Mr, Nicholl. We fay the King fhould fhew
Caufe, but do not fay when,

Gyfber van lubrough. Prifoner accepts.

Mr. §oll. challenges for the King.

Gerryt Unkle. Prifoner accepts.

Mr, Soll. challenges, &,

William Faneway.

Mr. Soll. challenges, .

Ifaac Stoutenburgh. Prifoner accepts.

Mr. Soll. 1 don’t challenge him, but defire he
may be fworn on a Poire dire, whether any Per-
fon hath been with him on behalf of the Prifon-
er, to defire him to be favourable to the Prifonc
on this Trial,

Prifoner accepts.

[Who was fworn upon a Voire dire, aid
afterwards for the 1rial. ]

Richard Sadet.  Prifoner. I make no Challenge.

Mr, Soil. 1 defire to know whether I may not
firft have him fworn upon a Psire dire, and after-
wards challenge him.

Mr. Atwood. No 3 you muft challenge peremp
torily firft.

Prifoner. 1 pray the Sollicitor may firft make
all his Challenges, and only leave me 2 P anncl

of Forty-eight Jurors. ° '

My, Atwood, No, that muft not be.
| [Memor-
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[M-.:mﬂrandum. The reft of the Eighty Furors in
the Pannel were in like mauner challeng’d by the
Prifoner or Sﬂﬂ{dﬁﬂf‘, 1l the Numnber of Twelve
cere fworny, iz, one of them an Alien, w0 oo
Frecholders. and all the ref Dutchmen, or of
Dutch Extraition, bori bere, very ignorant of the
Englith Langnage, and of mean Capacities Lo an
exiream Degiec. ]

The Names of the Petty Jurors were as fol-

lows; i<,

Jfnae Stof citbureh, Barent Kool,

1 (

Facth vander Spicgell, ' l Goert Olpherto,
Andrics Marfbalk, 9, Samuel Beckman,
Geriet Viele, ( © Cornelis Clopper,
Ghomas Saunders, | Conracl Teneyck,
Facoh Crrneliffe, J U Facobus Goelet.

Mr. Selliciter made an Introdutory Difcourfe
and Harangue of about an Hour long, and had
ome Sheets of Paper in his Hand, out of which
he read feveral {currilous and falfe Reflections
on the Euglifh Inhabitants of this Colony, with
the Freach, and principal Dusch, having Retro-
fpection for many Years paft, only defign’d to
incenfe and enflame the Jury, charging the Pri-
foner to be the Head of a Fuftion, a malignant
Party, who had endeavour’d to introduce Popery
and Stavery, Difturbers of our Ifael, as they had
been that of Capt. Leyler’s Governmens, which
(he faid) was now juftified at IHome to be Le-
eal: That the faid Party was a Neft of Pirates,
Betreyers of our Prince aid bis Laws, a Parcel of
Bandinti’s, who ofier’d the late Earl of Bellamont a
Reward of Ten Thoufand Pounds o connive at
Piracies, and One Thoufand Pouinds to himfelf
to follicite 1t + That fome mean and broken Mer-
chants i Lordon had made Complaints in their
behalf to the Lords of Trade and Plantations,
and to the Parliament, againft the faid Farl; but
that the faid Earl’s Proceedings were approvd
of ; and ufed {candalous Refleftions on Mr., Veafy,
Mmifter of Triuity Church, and againft Col, Swmith,
the firft Member of Council, tho’ nothing rela-
ung to this Trial, and own’d himfelf of the Ley-
flerian Party, and that he would {tand and fall
by 11, &5

Then call’d hisWitnefles ; who gave theirEvi-
dences 1 the following Words, as they were ta-
xen in open Court, and fince agreed unto by all
of them refpectively, as followeth,

Samuel Clows fuworit, faith :

Gentlemen, when I come to {peak of the Ad-
crefles, T muft pray you to take notice, that I
ant dpeak pofitively to but very few Things
that is in them : What I fay is to the beft of my
Remembrance and Underflanding, for I may be
miftaken in both. -
~ "Twas about a Fortnight or Three Weeks be-
fore Colonel Bayard’s Commitment, that I hap-
pen’d to come to his Houfe about fome Bufinefs,
hot g all relating to this Matters concerning
which, as we were talking, Colonel Bayard afk’d
me, il T had feen the Addreffes? I anfwer’d, No.
He then fhew’d me three Addreffes; the ‘firft

Was to my Lord Cornbury 3 the Per{ons addrefling
Vor, V.
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in it call’d themfelves Inhabitants of New-2ork,
and others diftant from it: And becaufe fome of
them could not perhaps be prefent at his Lord-
fhip’s Arrival here, did, by way of Addrefs,
congratulate his Lordfhip into this Government,
withing him all Health and Profperity here,
and that the Name of Party might be banith’d
from among us. After I had read it, Colonel
Bayard afk’d me, if I had any thing to fay a-
gainft 1t ? I anfwer’d, No, ‘and then fign’d ir.
The other two Addrefles were, one to the King,
and the other to the Houfe of Commons, or to
the Parliament (I am not pofitive which): As
I had read them, I remember I made this Ob-
fervatton in my felf, That they contain’d nearly
both the fame Things; and in them, or one
of them, to the belt of my Remembrance, were
contain’d thefe Things, The Perfons addref-
fing, calP’d themfelves Englifhmen and others, who,
tho’ Foreigners, were entuuled to the Privileges
of Englifbmen here, It {peaks concerning the late
Revolution here, of which I have but a con-
fufed Idea, and can remember nothing particu-
lar : Atterwards it fpeaks concerning my Lord
Bellamont’s Adminiltration in {everal Articles,
of which I can remember but one, which is,
That the Hotteft and Ignoranteft of the People were
put into Places of Truft, Then it fpeaks con-
cerning the late Affembly here, and tells you,
That after this Affembly had chofe a Speaker,
fome of the Reprefentatives were inform’d that
he was an Alien 5 upon which they made a Mo-
tion to the Houfe, that that Matter might be
enquird into; but that Motion being refufed,
one half of the Reprefentatives, or Ten of ’em,
left the Houfe; notwithitanding which, the re-
maining Part of the Reprefentatives, with fome
otliers they took in, did proceed.to make Adts:
In one'of which Ats they gave a Sum of Mo-
ney to the Lieutenadc-Governor, to tempt him
to pafs thefe Aés; and likewife @ Sum to the
Chief - Juftice of this Province,” to find Law
and Form for their Proceedings; and, that
thefe Things tended to the rendering the Go-
vernment -vile and cheap in the Eyes of the
People. -

Mr, Soll, 'What- Names do you remember you
{faw to the Addrefles? -

Clows. I faw feveral Names there; but whe-
ther to all Three, or Two of ’em, or only to
that of my Lord Corusbury, 1 cannot fay; but I
did, to the beft of my Remembrance, iee the
Names of Rip van Dam, Matthew Ling, Charles
Wooley, Robert Livingflone, and Mr. Anderfon; but
I am not certain whether I faw Mr., Famifon’s
Name there or no. When I had read them, [
told Colonel Bayard, they contain’d Things done
before my Time, and I did not therefore think it
proper for me to fign ’em 3 upon which he re-
ply’d, ‘Then don’t fign ’em. ‘ |

Mr. Soll. I fhall read what you faid before the
Council, | -

Clows. Do fo, if you pleafe.

Mr. Sol. Don’t you remember that it was faid,
that my Lord Beflamont had put the moft inge-
nious and honeflteft Men of the Province out of
all Places of Truft?

Clows. No, I can’t remember that.

Mt. Soll, I think you faid fo before the Council.
Iit 2 Clows.
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Clows. Perhaps I might fay fomething like it
when I was before the Council, tho’ I don’t be-
lieve there 1s any effential Difference between
what I now fay, and what I faid to the Coun-
cil 3 yet if there be, I hope what [ then faid
will not be taken to my Prejudice: Iwas then
fent for by the Governor’s Letters, which feem-
ed to mmport, that he had Bufinefs with me
of a far different Nature than to examine me
about this Matter; fo that I was then m a
Surprize,

Mr. Soll. But you believe what you then {poke
was true ?

Clows. Without doubt s and I hope Mr. Cofens
took care truly to write down what I then deli-
ver'’d ; but, whether he did exprefs my Meaning
right or no, I know not; for I did not look over
his Notes ull the Day I faw them at your Cham-
ber,

Mr, Soll, Was not the Affembly call'd an Ille-
gal Aflembly 5 and, that they had made Acts pre-
judicial to the Country ?

Clows. No, 1 do not remember that.

Mr, Soll. Was it not faid, That the Scum of the
People were put into all Places of Truft?

Clows. Perhaps I might before the Council ufe
the Word Scum 5 but I now think it was, That the
Hottef and Ifgnorantit were put mto Places of
Truft,

Mz, Soll. Mr. Clowws, pray tell us, What was the
Reafon you did not fign the other two Ad-
drefles ?

Clows, 1 think I am not at this time oblig’d
to tell that, being it does not at all affet the
Matter.

Mr. Atwood. Yes, but it does ; you muit tell us.

Clows. One of the chief Reafons was, becaufe
Ithen thought, that the faying the Aflembly had
given a Gift to the Lieutenant-Governor, to
tempt him to pafs their Alts, was a Refleftion
upon the Lieutenant-Governor 5 but it s my
Judgment now, that it was no Reflection at all
upon him.

Mr, Soll. How! and don’t you think {o now ¢

Mr. Atwood. He only {peaks it as his Judgment,

M., §o// .Don’t you remember, that the Affem-
bly was call’d The Pretended Affembly?

Clows. No. |

M. Sall. Don’t you remember *twas faid, their
lllegal Proceedings ? Don’t you remember the
Word fllegal? - |

Clows, No, I cannot remember that; and I
did defire you, at you Chamber, to put that
Word out of the Clerk’s Notes, |

Col. Bayard, Did I ever afk you to fign them ¢

Clows. No, you did not 3 you was {6 far from
doing that, that you rather perfuaded me not to
fign’em; and fo did Madam Bayard, who was
then in the Room.

Mr. Nicholl. Do you remember any thing of the
Word Oppreflion in the Addrefs ? |
- Clows, No, I do not remember that Word,

Mr. 8o/, That the King’s Subjects were op-
prefs’d here? . -

Mr. Nicholl, Was the Aflembly call’d an Unlgeo-
ful Affembly 2

Clozws, No, Gentlemen; I can fpeak pofitively
to but few of thefe Things; what [ fay is, to the
bett of my Remembrance and Underftanding.

Peter Odyre, a Frenchman, fworns ayg g,
that be conld fpeak no Englith, Ay, ppi..
fack, Chaplatin to the Garrifon, was fumy 4,
be bis Interpreler,

Mr. Sz, What do you know of the Papers thar
were at Col, Bayard’s? and, Did you fizn thep
or, Who defir’d you {o to do? '

Odyre. Going by Colonel Bavards Toufe, o,
Mr. Bodritst told me, T mult ftep into Col, Bagar2-
and fign an Addrefs to the King; and a5 [ vy
a going in, [ met Cl?]. Bﬂ_):.-.rm’ coming ferth of §is
Houfe ; and going 10, 1 faw the Addreflis v,
on the Table, ©Y

Mr. Sall. Did Colonel Bayard then perfiade
you to fign them? or, Did he tell you it vy
for your Good to fign them ¢

Odyre. Colonel Bayard then told me, | might
fign if T would, or that I might not; and the
Colonel alfo told me, it was for the Good of the
Country, and, that if I was willing I mighe figa
them; if not, I might let them alone ; and the

went away. .
M. So/l. T will now prove the Addrefles fiop'd

at the Coffee-houfe, and that Colonel Bayard at-
tended there for that Purpofe.

W. Richardfon, Inbabitant and Houfekeeper i
the City, fworn,

Mr, 8¢/, What do you know, Mr, Richardfn,
concerning the figning the Papers at the Coltec-
houfe?

Richardfon. One Day drinking at one Speicer™s,
I was defir'd to go to the Coffee-houte, which 1
did; and, when there, I faw a great many Peo-
ple, I believe near an Hundred ; and coming above
Stairs, I faw Papers on the Table, which were
call’d Addreffes, which I fign’d with others; and
I faw, among others,Colonel Bayard there ; but ke
feem’d to be no more afting or concern’d than
any other,

Mr., Atwood, You are very forgetful of wha
you f{wore before the Governor and Council 5 but,
to put you in mind of fomewhat of it, Did no
body tell you what Papers were to be fign'd?

Richardfon. No body at all,

M. Soll. How many Papers did you fign*

Richardfon. 1lign’d three, but did not know
what they were, but was told they were Ad-
dreffes to the King, and my Lord Cornbury, and
the Parliament, but did not read any of them;
but, I think, one of them complain’d, that thc
Pcople lay under fome Hardfhips here.

Mr., 8ol You declar’d much more before the

Council.
Richardfon. 1 was then call'd fuddenly before

the Council, and was furpriz’d.

John Bafhford fiwors.
Mr. Soll. Mr. Bafbford, tell the Court and Jury

what you know concernjng the Papers af the

Coffee-houfe.

Bafbford, 1 was at the Coflee-houfe, where I
faw the Papers, or Addrefles, byt don't knov
what ‘they were or contain’d ; and I ﬁgn’d four
or five Papers there, but did not ftay half a Q_U?;f

2 !
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eer of an Hour. When I was there, I faw Colonel
Bavard amongft many others in the Room, but

did not fee his Name, as I remember, to any of

the Papers.

N. B. Thefe frve Paperswere the three Addreffes
and the two Duplicates.

Mr. Arwoed. Thefe Witnefles are very unwil-
ling, or very Forgﬂtft}l, having given a much Eiif_
erent Account of Things upon their Oaths before
e Governor and Counctl,

Bafiford. 1 have now had Time to recollelt my
(If, but was then under a Surprize, not knowing

what T was fent to for.
Mpr. Michael Chriftian fwern,

Mr. Atwood. Mr.Chriftian, What do you know
concerning the Papers, or Addrefles, fign’d ac the
Coffee-houfe ?

Ciriftian. I remember, fome Time fince, about
Chriflmas 1 believe, I was ar the Coffee-houfe,
where I faw the Addreffes with many other Peo-
ple, but can’t tell how many. .

Mr. Arseoed. Do you believe there were more
than Twenty ¢

Chriftian. No, I believe there were not. I found
three Addreffes there, and fign’d ’em ali, but the
Subftance thereof I cannot now remember; “tis a
oood while fince, and therefore I cannot fpeak
pofitively to it. I remember, u Queftion was
1fk’d me at the Council, Whether there was any
Complaints in the Addreifes that the Soldiers
wanted their Pay ? I believe I might then anfwer
fomething about it, but I do not know any fuch
thing in the Addreffes, either of the Soldiers or
their Pay. I remember, that Colonel Bayard was
then at the Coffee-houfe when [ fign’d the Ad-
dreffes, but don’t remember that any body defir'd
me to fign. |

Mr, Atwoed, THow many Hands, Mr., Chriftran,
did you fec to the Addrefles?

Chriftian. I cannot tell how many, but remem-
ber Colonel Bayard amongft others was there ; but
he never afk’d me to fign eicher of the Addrefles;
nor can | remember, that there was any Thing
concerning either thegoldiers or their Pay in the
Addrefies, |

Mr. Atwoed. Certainly thefe Gentlemen are very
unwilling Evidences : Mr. Chriffian 1s a Gentle-
man of good Learning, and it’s ftrange that he
fhould be fo forgetful, that he cannot remember
what was given in on his Oath before the Gover-
tor and Council : He has either a weak or trea-

Jerous Memory.
Mr. Hugh Gray fworn,

Mr. Sol, Mr. Gray, What do you know con-
cerning the figning of thofe Papers at the Coffee-
houfe ? ' |
1 Gray, About December laft, being at the Coffee-
aoufe, I mer there one Mr, Seaz, who afk’d me to
50 up into the Upper-Room, which I according-
ly did ; and when there, I faw on a Table fome
Vapers, which afterwards I underftood were Ad-
drefles to the King, Parliament, and Lord Cora-

at New-York, for High—Treéfon.
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bury. Some body afk’d me to fign >em, which I
did accordingly, but don’t know who it was, I
remember Col. Bayard was there among(t others,
fmoaking a Pipe of Tobacco: Ibelieve there might
then be about ten Hands to the Papers, and about
five in the Room 3 that I read all the Addreffes,
but cannot now remember the Contents of *en.

Mr. Atwood, Mr.Gray, Do youremember these
was any Compluints againlt the Government in
thofe Addrefies ?

Gray. No.

Mys. Hanmah Hutchins fivers.

Mr. Sol. Now, may it pleafe your Honours, |
will prove the Papers {ign’d at another Place.

Mr, Atwood, Mrs, Hutchins, Whatdo you know
concerning thefe Papers brovght to your Houfe ?

Mrs. Hutehins, About Chriftmas latt Col. Bayard
brought fome Papers to my Houfe, and left ’em
with me, but did not ftay at all, but bid me thew
them to my Hufband, who was then at Church.
Thefe Papers remain’d at my Houfe about three
Days, and then I deliver’d ’em to a Negro, who
was fent for them, but do not remember whofe
Negro it was : Col, Bayard was not at our Houfe
while the Papers lay there.

Mr, Sol. Now I fhall proceed to prove what fort
of People were drawn in to fign thefe Papers.

John Read faworn.

Mr, Atwoed, What do you remember concern-
ing any Addreffes or Papers at the Houfe of Al-
derman Hutchins ?

Read. Being on the 26th of December at Mr.
Hutchins's Houfe, I there faw fome Papers, which
one Mr.,Burroughs, then preflent, afk’d me to fign,
telling me, they were Addrefles to the King, Par-
liament, and Lord Corubury, made for the good of
the Country, and which were lying on the Bed
there 3 and thereupon I fign’d them, but did not
read ’em : Idid not fee Col. Bayard there, but be-
lieve I faw his Name to the Papers. I faw a great
number of Names fubfcrib’d to the Papers, as
near as I can judge, about Two hundred.

Mr, Sol, Of what Age are you?

Read, About Seventeen Years of Age.

Edward Marfhal fwora.

M. Atwoed. Where did you fee thefe Papers ¢
and, W hat do you know of them ?

Marfbal. Going one Day, about Chriftaas, to the
Floufe of Mr. Hutchins, to geta Witnefs toa Letter
of Attorney, I faw there five Addrefles, which I
fign'd ; one was to the King, another to the Parlia-
ment, and another to the Lord Cornbury, congra-
tulating his Arrival : T read fome of them, but
found nothing in any of em that reflected ltl-Ppn
the Governor: There was fome Complaint of the
Speaker of the Afflembly being an Alien. Looking
on the Names of the Subfcribers, I faw the Name
of Edwar.i Marfbal before I had fign’d, but Idon’c
know but there may. be more Edward Mar/bals
than one in the Province. I did not fee Col. Bayard
at the Houfe, nor his Name to the Papers.

Jolin
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John Buckly fawors.

Mr. Atwood. What do you know concerning
any Papers at the Houfe of Mr. Hutchins ?

Buckly. Coming home from the Fort, and paf-
fing by Mr. Hutchins’s Houfe, I was afk’d to walk
in by Mr, FHutchins, which I did 5 and being come
into the Upper-Room, I faw fome Papers there,
which were call’d Addreffes ; but I did not 1ead any
of ’em, but that to my Lord Corsbury, which, as
I underftood, was a Compliment and Congratu-
lation to him at his Arrival here, Mr. Hutchins
then afk’d me to fign 1t, but I refufed, becaufe
being a Lieutenant in the Garrifon, I was unwil-
ling to do any fuch thing before any of my elder

Officers had done it. But I did not {fee Col.
Bayard, nor his Name there,

Francts Cherman fiworn.

Mr, Atwood. Give an Account what you know
concerning any Papers or Addretles at the Houfe
of Alderman Hutchins.

Cherman. Coming a while ago to Mr. Hutchins’s
Houfe, and going up Stairs, I faw certan Papers
there, and fome People : Mr. Hutchins afk’d me to
fign thofe Papers, telling me they were Addrefies
to the King and my Lord Cornbury ; that they were
for the good of the Countryand the Englifh; and I
expected by it to be made Free of the City, and
fign’d therefore ; but did not fee Col. Bayard there,
nor don’t remember the Contents of the Papers.

Qiie Button fworn.

Mr. Atzwood, What do you know concerning
the Papers, ¢, ?

Button, Hearing by fome of my Fellow-Soldiers
that there were fome Papers or Addreffes at Capt.
Hutchins's, 1 was willing to go and fee what they
were ; and coming to the Houfe, there I found
Five Papers, and fign’d them all
Five, but do not remember to
whom they were directed. Capt.
Hutchins was there, but faid no-
thing at all to me about the Pa-
pers,or {igning them; nor can I remember whether
they were in Paper or Parchment. I believe there
were then about thirty Names fubfcrib’d, but faw
neither Colonel Bayard nor his Name there.

i, e. The thce
Addrefles, and the
Duplicates of two
of them.

Robert Crannel fuwors.

Mr, Atwood, What do you know, &, ?

Cramel, Some Time fince I came to Mr. Hus-

chins’s, and there found Five Addrefles : T read
that to my Lord Corzbury, and fome of the two
others to the King and Parliament : Inoneof’em,
to the beft of my Remembrance, was contained a
Complaint, That the People of this Province Jay
under more Hardfhips than formerly, and that
the Speaker of the Affembly of this Province
was an Alien, Ifaw Col. Bayard’s Name to that
to my Lord Corubury, but am not acquainted
with his Hand-writing at all,  After I had read
fome Part, and been told what the relt of the
Papers were, I figned them all Five, but no body
defired or perfuaded me to do i,
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Mr. Atzvoed, Your Evidence is not fg full 46
when you gave in your Information on (g,
before the Council,

Cranncl. Butitis, and I know nothing; More,

Oune Griggs fwor,

Mr. Atzwoed, What do you know, &,

Griggs. 1 was defired by one Bovell) a Soldier iy
the Garrifon, to go to Mr. Hutchins's Houfe, apg
fign fome Papers: Iwastold, and believed, ity
to make me Free of theCity : Thereupon [ wey
to Mr.Hutchins's, and there figned them, by dig
not {ee Col. Bayard there.

One Garnet fivori,

Mr Atwood, Tell the Court what you know. {5

Garnet. A great many of the Soldiers of 1l
Garrifon figned, and they expected thercby to L
made I'ree of the City, many of them being
T'radefmen,

Oue Fleming fwori.

Mr., Atwood. What do you know, &, ?
Fieming. Coming fome time fince to the Houfe
of Mr. Hutchins’s, I there faw fome Rolls opened,
with a great many Names thereto,
but did not fee any other Writing: Aot 4
To this I N d alf drefies avere
o this I put my Name, and allo ;7. 2.
then put down two or three Names  “onsic Blil.
for others, at their Requeft, they
having firlt put their Marks. T and the others
expected by this to be made Free of the City. I
believe out of 160 Men now belonging to the
Fort, or thereabouts, there may be about 30 tha:

figned.
Oie Bovell faworn.

Mr. Atwood, What do you know, &e. ?

Bwvell. Coming to Capt. Hutchins’s, 1 was
fhewn fome Papers, which I was told were Ad-
drefles, to which I put my Mark, without being
defired by any body ; I cannot write nor read,
When T had fet my Mark, Mr.Huichins told me,
That if any of my Fellow-Soldiers would come
and fign alfo, they mights if not, they might
let it alone, By this figning I expected to be
made Free of the City, but not from being a 3ok
dier ; but never heard Capt, Hutchins {ay fo.

M. Sol. Geir. 1 have now no more Witneffes
againft the Prifoner, Here is a Paper figned by
him; I defire the Clerk of the Council may be
{fworn to prove the fame.

Mr.Colens, the Clerk of the Conncil, fuoori.

Col. Bayard. 1 own that Paper: Irisa Pcn;
tion to the Lieut. Governor and Counci! in Behal
of Ald, Hutchins then in Prifon; owning, witil
Mr, French, Mr. Wenbam, and Mr, Van Dats
that the Copies of three Addreffes to the King,
the Parliament, and the Lord Corubury, were !
our Hands.

Then the Petition was read, and was the fame &
s5 entered tn Pag, 410,

2 Afier
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After this, the Act of Aflembly, on which the
a5iimns is grounded, was read 5 and after that,
he CommifTion to the Lord Bellamont at large,
.nd the Lieut, Governor’s Commiffion,

Mr. Sol. Gen. 1 defire M. E_'nmt may be _ﬁvorn,
whether he did not give Advice to a certain Per-
{on about that Claufe 1n the Addrei%: to thic Lieut,
Governor In Favour of Ald., Hutehins 3 viz., That
e Lord Cornbury fucceeded the Earl of Bellamont
g5 Govarii it New-York?

My, Fwst was commanded by Mr. Atzvosd to be
fworn 3 and being fworn, faid, I told Mr. French
thefe Words in the faid Addrefs did not run cur-
cent, and might give ground of Exception to
iume who would be apt to firain every Word to
he Prifoner’s Difadvantage. To which Mr.,
Freuch replied, They had drawn the Addrefles
hemiclves, and belicved it was well enough.

Mr. $o/. Gen, I havenow prov’d by the Witnef-
f-sthofe {alfe and fcandalous Libels fet forth in the
[nditment, whereby the Good, Peace and Quiet
of the Government has been difturbed, which by
this A& of Affembly 1s High-Treafon, I have
likewife proved, that the Soldiers were drawn in
to fiun thofe fcandalous Libels, and that fome did
ion blank Rolls, which was lifting of Soldiers, and
i Treafon. By thefe Words in the Petition to
Licut. Governor and Council, @iz, [77ho we ni-
diflaisd by cortain Advice e bave recerved from Eng-
land, to be nominated by bis Majefty to fucceed the late
L] of Bellamont as oy Goverior | 15 a difowning;
and calting off the prefent Authority, and his Ma-
jefty’s Govermment,

Mr., Nicholl. Your Honour and the Jury will
pleate totake Notice, that the Indictment confifts
of divers Heads s as, That the Prifonerdid com-
puds, imagine, contrive, propofe and defign to
dcfame, fubvert, &¢. the Peace, Good and Quiet
of this his Majefty’s Government.

That he ufed divers indireét Praétices and En-
deavours to procure Mutiny and Sedition amongft

the Soldiers.
That he drew in Numbers of them, the faid

Soldiers and others, to fign falfe and {candalous
Lib:lss and that he had figned them himfelf,

That in thefe Libels it 1s declared, That the
Subje&ts in this Province arcand have been for ma-
ny Years laft paft, by thofe entrufted in the Ad-
mintltration of the Government, opprefs’d 3 and
hat the Government hath been, and is rendered
cheap and vile in the Eyes of the People; as alfo,
that the General Aflembly of this Province is not
2 lawful Affembly : By which means, &e. he hath
cited his Majetty’s Subjects to caft off their Obe-
dience to his Mujelty’s faid Government,

The Prifoneris not diretly charged here with
any Fact except hisown figning the faid Libels, but
ior ndeavours 3 the reftare forc’d Conclufions and
ftrain’d Inferences drawn fromthence. It is not al-
ledg’d that che Peace of theGovernment hath been
tflurb’d,or thatany Mutiny or Sedition hath been
imorgft the Soldiers, or that any one of his Ma-
Jclty’s Subjects hath caft off his Obedience to his
Magelty’s faid Government. By the Courfe of the
Evidence, it appears there was an Addrefs to the
King, an Addrefs to the Houfe of Commons, and
W Addrefs to my Lord Corubury,and a Petition or
Addrefs 1o the Licut, Governor and Council 3 but

at New-York, for High-Treafon,
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all the Evidence is very lame and weak, as to the
three firft, if we fhould admit the making or fign-
of them to be any Fault or Crime, more efpeci-
ally if the fame fhould amount to Treafon: For
by none of the Evidence it does appear, that thofe
Addrefles figned at the Coffee-houfz werethe fame
Addrefles which were at Col., Bayard’s, or that
the Addrefles av Ald. Hutchins's were the famc
which were at the Coffee-houfe, or the fame which
were at Col. Bayard’s: Thereis no Proof that the
Prifoner figned thefe Addreflfes : Here is not fo
much as the Likenefs or Comparifon of Hands
produced, alledged, or proved; tho’ if it were,
that would not do. Inthe great Trial of the Bi-
thops, Mr, Pollexfen thereaffirms, 9. 60, That Conse
parifon of Hands is not good in a criminal Cafey and
offers the Lady Car’s Cafe in Siderfi’s Reports,
p. 418," 419, where it is {o adjudged.

But I fhall not dwell upon the Eviderice; it is
certainly the Right of the Subjeét to petition the
King, whenever he conceives himfelf aggriev’d.
In the Bifhops Trial, p. 160. Mr. Pollesfen fays, I
never thought it, nor hath it {ince been thought by
any body elfe, 2o be a Crime to petition the King.
Pag, 121, Serj. Levinz affiems, The Subjests bave a
Right of petitioning the King in all their Grievances.
So fay all our Books of Law ; fo fays the Statute
of the 13thof Charles 11. They may petition, P.126,
Sir Thomas Powys, then Attorney-General, ac-
knowledges Accefs to the King by Petition is open
to every body; the moft Inferior Perfon is al-
lowed to petition the King. Pag. 135. Mr, Juf-
tice Holloway {ays, 10's the Birthright of the Subjest
to petition the King. It it’s the Birthright of the
Subjet to petition the King, to procure or draw
in Men to do what it’s their Birthright to do, can
never amount to a Crime,

Mr. Atzwood, I do not fay petitioning the King
is a Crime, but it may be to petition the Houfe
of Comunons 1n the Plantations, where the King
governs by Prerogative,

Mr, Nicholl, I cannot think it is a Crime for the
Subjelts of the Plantations to petition the Houfe
of Commons; it’s every Day’s Praétice : Confult
the Votes in every Seflions, you’'ll find many Ad-
drefles, Petitions, and Complaints from the Sub-

Jeéts of the Plantations: It feems to be the Righe

of the Subjeéts to petition the Houfe of Commons,
The Statute of the 13th of Charles the IId. e, 5.
reftrams the Common-Law ; by that it plainly ap-
pears to be the Right of the Subjelt to petition
the Houfe of Commons, or the King. The Pro-
vifo Iinthat ALt fays, That neither that Af, nor any
thiug thevein contained, fhall be confirued to extend or
hinder any Perfontor Perfons,nof exceeding the Number
of Ten, to prefent any publick or private Grievance or
Complaint 1o any Member of the Houfe of Commonsafter
bis Eleétion, or to the King’s Majefty. The At of
Recognition of primo Williamand Mary, declaring
the Rights and Liberties of the Subjects, and fet-
tling the Succeflion of the Crown, thereby it is
enacted amongft other Things, That it is the Right
of the Subjet? to petition the King 5 and all Commitments
and Profecutions for fuch Petitioning are illegal. And
they do claim, demand, and infift upon all and fin-
gular the Premiffes, as their undoubred Rights and
Liberties 5 and that no Declaration, Judgment,
Doings or Proceedings to the Prejudice of the

People, in any the faid Premiflés, ought in any
wile



432

wife hercafter to be drawn into Confequence or
Example. IHere isno Grant of any new Privilege,
but a Claim and Acknowledgment of an Ancient
Right ; and Petitions to the Parliament are as an-
cient as Parliaments themielves,  If cthe Subjeéts
of the Plantations may not petition and complain
to their Prince, they are in a worle Condition than
Slaves. The Cries of the Opprefiions in the Plan-
tations have gone up to Feaven,and are again come
down upon the Earth, and have infpired and mo-
ved the King and Parliament of England, to make
a Law to check the exorbitant Aétions of Govern-
ors in the Plantations, and make them account-
able in England for their Milcarriages abroad ;
which can never be difcovered to the King but by
Petition. The Statute is in thefe Words,

An A to punifh Gowernors of Plantations 1n
this Kingdom, for Gimes by them committed
in the Plantations.

‘ HEREAS adue Punifhment 15 not

¢ provided for feveral Crimes and Of-
¢ fences committed out of this his Majelty’s Realm
¢ of England, whercof divers Governors, Licu-
“ tenant-Governors, Deputy-Governors, or Com-
¢ manders in Chief of Plantations, and Colonels
¢ within his Majefty’s Dominions beyond the Seas,
¢ have taken Advantage, and have not been de-
¢ terred from opprefling his Majefty’s Subjects
¢ within their refpeétive Governments and Com-
¢ mands, nor from committing feveral other great
¢ Crimes and Offences, not deeming themfelves
¢ punifhable for the fame here, not accountable
¢ for fuch their Crimes and Offences, to any Per-
¢ fon within their refpective Governments and
¢ Commands: For Remedy whereof, Be it enafied
< by the King’s moft Excellent Majefty, by and withthe
¢ Advice and Confent of the Lords Spiritual and Tem-
¢ poral and Commons in Parliament affembled, and by
< Authority of the fame, That if any Governor or
¢ Commander in Chief of any Plantation or Co-
¢ Jony within his Majefty’s Dominions beyond the
¢ Seas, thall, after the Firft Day of Auzuft, 1700,
¢ be guilty of opprefling any of his Majefty’s Sub-
¢ jects beyond the Seas, within their refpeétive Go-
¢ vernments or Commands, or fhall be guilty of
¢ any other Crime or Offence, contrary to the Laws
¢ of this Realm, or in force within their refpec-
¢ tive Governments and Commands, fhall be en-
¢ quired of, heard and determined in his Majefty’s
¢ Court of King’s-Bench here in Eugland, or before
¢ fuch Commiffioners, and in fuch County of this
¢ Realm, as fhall be afligned by his Majefty’s
¢ Commiffion, and by Good and Lawful Men of
¢ the fame County ; and that fuch Punifhments
¢ {hall be inflicted on fuch Offenders, as are ufually
¢ infli¢ted for Offences of the like Nature com-
¢ mitted here in England,

This Profecution feems to be made to fruftrate
and evade this At of Parliament, The Subjeét
is opprefs'd, or conceives himfelf to be fo, and
complains of this Oppreffion ; this Complaining
is made TREASON ! Here is a ftranee and
fatal Dilernma on the Subjelts of the Plantations;
They muft either fuffer their Oppreflions, or be
hang’d for Traitors if they complain !

.

J
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What relates to the A& of Aflembly of g
Country, it can by no natural or legal C{:m[‘a'm‘fliva{5
be extended to make the Prifoner cul pable, ]['I.l
plain bythe whole Purport of the A, that .
made nonew Treafon 5 itonly recognizes the Kinl;
and Queen ; and enadts, That thofe wiq ﬂnﬁ
do any thing deftru€live to that Eftablifype,,
by Force of Arms or otherwife,fhall be Repels 41,
Traitors ; which they would be without this Af
If this Addrefs and Petition had been to the Jiy
King, the Thing had been of another Ny,
By the fame Conftruction, every petty Batrery -
other little Trefpafs, may be a Treafon,

The Petition of Col. Bayard, and the other thye,
is fo far from difowning the Government,thyj;;
adirect Acknowledging of the fame, The Dip.
tion of the Petition is, To the Licntenant-Goyeyy,
aitd the Council : "The Expreflion {That toey [:;;;-:
Advice that the Lord Corabury s fo fucceed 1he
of Bellamont] can with no Juftice or common Segfe
be conftrued ro be a difowning and cafting off ¢ °
the Government. I think it will hardly beaffirme
That the Council fucceeded the Earl of Bellgy., -
and Capt. Nanfanthe Council; '
if fo, after the Earl of Bella-
mont, who was Captain- Gene-
ral? 'We had Seven Caprains-
General s which isan Abfurdi-
ty, I fuppoft, none will alledge.
A familiar Examplewilldemonftrate theWeakpet,
and Falfity of this Conftruttion. If a Capuin
of a Company be killed or abfent, the Liewens:
or next Officer has the full Command of the Com.
pany, as the Captain had, or could have; bu
think no Man will fay he fucceeds the Captain,¢: -
that when another Captain is appointed, he fuc-
ceeds thar Lieutenant or other Officer. So thr -
I cannot think there isany Fact or Crime alledged
or proved againft the Prifoner, to charge him
with this high Crime of Treafon, or indeed with
any other Crime whatfoever,

Mtr. Emot. By your Honours Permiffion, I am
of Counci! for Col, Bayard the Prifonerat the B.:
But by reafon I am unwilling to fpend too much
of your Time, this Trial already having been vei
long 3 and Mr., Nicoll,who isalfo of Council of the
fame Side, having amongft other things made iz
very evident, that for the Subject to petition his
Majefty, is their ancient and undubitable Right;

I fhall therefore make it my Bufinefs only, asnear

as I can, to demonftrate to this Court and Jury,
That had the King’s Council made ample Preot
of all the Matters of Fal alledged in the Indict
ment, as the figning the Addrefles, and othes
‘Things therein contained, to have been true;
yet, in point of Law, they cannot amount to that
grand Crime of High-T'reafon,

In order to this, I fhall, with as much Brevity
as I can, examine into, and put your Honours in
mind, and withal inform the Gentlemen of the Ju-
ry, what the Law of Eugland (by which wearc
or ought to be govern’d here) hath been, for near
the Spaceof Four hundred Years laft paft, relating
to this grand Crime of High-Treafon; whereby
it will manifeftly appear, how cautious the Parhs-
ments of Eugland have been in making and increaf;
ing the Laws to take away Mens Lives, and par-
ticularly for High-Treafon. And I fhall begtt

with the Statute of the 2 4th of Edw, 3. a Statutc
{0
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.o which the areatelt regard has been paid of
any A of Farliament whatfoever, unlefs Magna
Charta, as hereafter I fhall briefly fhew.

1 muit alfo obferve to yourHonours, Thatbefore
the making of this A&t (?F Parliament of the 2 5th
of Edw. 111, which was in Ao 1350, and which
s the very firft A& relating to “T'reafons; fo ma-
ay Things werc charged as Fhigh-Treafon by the
Common- Liaw, and there were fo many Ambigu-
< ios and Diverfities of Opintons, that both Hifto-
sy and our Books of the Law fufficiently inform
s, fcarce any Man knew how to behave himfelf.
puc now, by this Smtute, the Partcolars and
Snccies of this grand Crime arc reckon’d up, and
Il others excluded, till declared by Parliament.
For tho’ nothing can concern the King, his Crown
and Dignity, more immediately than High-Trea-
fon, which our Law calls Crimen lefe Maeflatis,
2 Crime wronging Majefty 5 yet this good King
Eleard 1L at the Kequelt of the Lords and
Commons of Ereland, wn a Parliamentary Way,
and to make all After-ages happy, makes a plan
Neclaration of fuch” Ofiences as fhould for the
fure be deem’d for High-Treafon, and none
other, unlefs declared by Parhiament,

This A& of Parliament is branch’d out by Str
Elvard Coke, n the Third Part of his Juftitutes,
o Six Clafles or IHeads ; which I fhall the rather
rake notice of, for that Trials of this nature are
very rare in the Plantations 5 and they are thele :

1, The Compaffing or Imagining the Death of
the Kinzy Queen or Prince, and declaring the fame
by fome Overt-Act.

The Killing or Murdering of the Chancellor,
Treafurer, Fuftices, &c. in their Place doing their
Office, &7c.

. To violate, or carnally to know the Kiig’s
Cafort or RQueeit, the King's Lldft Daughter un-
married, or Prince’s IVife.

2. Levying of War againt the King.

+. Adhering to the King’s Enemics, and de-
daring the fame by fome Overt-Act ; and this
muft not be Juimicus, fed Hufits.

5. Counterfeiting of the Great-Seal, Privy-Seal,
or Aing’s Corny &

6. And lqtly, Bringing into the Realm, Coniter-
feit-Maiey, to the Lakenefs of the King's Coin, &t

Now, if there Is any other Offence which was
not comprehended within onc of thefe Clafles, the
ime was thereby declared to be no L'realon.

fn a Claufe of which A& of Parhament we
ind thefe Words; which I fhall rather read, be-
cufe [ apprehend it will very much concern this
enfutng "['ral,

“ And becaufe that many other like Cafes may
“happen in Time to come, which a Map cannot
““ think or declare at this prefent Time, 1t is or-
“ dained, That if any other Cale, fuppofed T'rea-
“fon, which is not above fpecify’d, do happen
“before any Juftices, the Juftices fhall tarry,
“without any going to Judgment of the Trea-
‘“ fon, till the Caufe be fhewed and declared,
“before the King and his Parliament, whether
“it be judeed Treafon or other Felony,”

By this we may cafily perceive, and it’s very
obvious, that this Claufe was made to prevent
the Judges from taking upon them to declarc any
things to be High-Treafon, but fuch as-are par-
ticularly exprefs’d by this-Statute of -the 2 5th-of
L, 11T, or by fome other fubfequient A&,
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Again, in the Reign of Richard I1. we find
fundry other Things were declared by Parlia-
ment to be High-Treafon, which were not com-
prehended within the Statute of 2 5th Edw, II1.
But yetr upon the coming in of Hen, IV, it was a-
oain enacted and declared, That nothing thould
for the future be adjudged High-Treafon, but
what was {o ordained by the aforefaid Statute
25 Edw, III, The Words are thefe:

1 H.IV.c. 10. * That whereas in Parliament,
““in the 21t Year of the late King Richard, di-
““ vers Pains of Treafon were ordained by Sta-
¢ tute, inafmuch as there was no Man who
“ knew how he ought to bechave himfelf, to do,
¢ {peak or fay, for doubt of fuch Pains; it’s
‘¢ accorded and affented by the King, Lords and
“ Commons, That in no Time to come, any
““ Treafon be adjudged otherwife than 1t was or-
“ cained by the Statute, in the Time of his No-
‘“ ble Grandfather King Edw. II1

Now this Statute, I am humbly of Opinion, is
direétly in the Negative, which fays, That for
the future nothing fhall be adjudged Treafon,
otherwife than it was ordained by the aforefaid
Statute of the 25th of Edw, 111,

Yet, neverthelefs, this Indi€tment is grounded
upon an Actof Affembly of this Province 5 which
is, Iam humbly of Opinion, not only contrary,
but direftly repugnant to the aforcfaid Starute
(which appeareth to me to limit all new Specics
of Treafon to be declared by Parliament, and
not elfewhere) which, if it fhould admit of fuch
a Conftruion as is now intended, I think I may
modeflly fay, it will introduce Five Flundred feve-
ral new Species of Treafon: So that his Majefty’s
good Subjeds of this Province would fall under
much greater Hardfhips than whatever the Peo-
ple of England were fenfible of before the making
of this Aé (which I cannot too often mention)
of the 2 5th of Edw. I11.

If we look further downward, upon the com-
ine in of Edw. VI. which was in the Year 1540,
fundry new Species of Treafon having been again
introduced by A& of Parliament, it was in the
very Firft Year of his Reign cnacted, That no
Offence, made Treafon by any Statute, fhould be
fo deemed and adjudged for the future, but fuch
as were made Treafon by the aforefaid Statute of
2 2 Edeo, 111, other than fuch as were by that pre-
fent Statute ordained and declared.

But yet in Quecn Maiy's Time, in the 1ft Year
of her Reign, this grand Crime was brought to1ts
ancient Standard ; and it was then declared in
Parliament, That 10 AF or Qffence swhatfoever foould
be deemed Treafon or Mifprifion of Treafou, bt Sach
a5 were declared by the Statute 25 Edw. 111 And
the Subftance of the Preamble is this, That the
State and Safety of the King flandeth whore affuredly
by the Love of bis Subjets, than Fear of bis Laws.

So that upon Examination, we find how carcful
and cautious the People and Parliament of England
have been in introducing and increafing of Sangui-
nary Laws, and that thro’ the Revolution of many
Ages, And hereby it’s very remarkable, what a
ereat regard has been in all Ages paid to this
vencrable Statute of 2 5 Edw.I11. which with great
Care has been continued down to us to this very
Time, and is now in its full Force. Sir Edward
Coke, treating thereof, tells us, That the Parlia-
ment, in which this A& was made, for many
Years after was called, Benedifinm Parliamentum,

the Blefled Parliament,
Kkk if
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If we look but into the Bill of Attainder of Tho-
mas Earl of Strafford, in the Year 1640 and 41,
even in thofe Times, what regard was paid to
this Statute, which I have fo often mentioned,
wherein it was provided, Thatthe Judgment againft
the faid Earl fhould never be drawn into Prece-
dent: And the Words are thefe, ¢¢ Provided,
‘ That no Judge or Judges, Juftice or Juftices
¢ whatfoever, fhall adjudge or interpret any Act
¢¢ or Thing to be Treafon, nor hear or determine
¢¢ any Treafon in any other Manner, than he or
< they fhould or ought to have done before the
“ making of this A,

Now, if we do but refiect upon the great Con-
cern and Care that has been taken thro’ all Ages,
by the wife People of England, in preventing the
Judges from interpreting any At or Thing what-
foever to be Treafon, but fuch only as are enu-
merated 1 the Statute of Edw, 3.

And at the fame time give our {elves leave to
think, how induftrioufly we labour to introduce
an At of Aflembly of this Province, to make, as
I faid before, even Five hundred new and never
heard of Species of Treafon: [ fay, if we do but
confider this, ’tis Mitter of great Amazement,
and more cfpecially in fuch an Age as this, and
in {o happy a Reign, where no Man ever quefti-
oned, or at lealt doubted of the truc Enjoyment
of our Laws and Liberties, tho’ never {o remote
from the Fountain Head.

I amafraid, I have already trefpaficd upon your
Honours Patience: I fhall therefore conclude
with fome Oblervations upon the Act of Affem-
bly, upon which this Indictment s laid.

Now both the Title, Preamble and Words of
this A¢t of Affembly, and the Caufe of making
thereof, is very obvious (however the fame may
be now interpreted) which were thele Two:

1}, For the future, to prevent the fetting up
a Power over his Majefty’s Subjects in this Pro-
vince, without Authority from the Crown of Eng-
land 3 which was found to be of fatal Confequence
in the late unhappy Diforders in this Province.

24ly, To exprefs the Love, Loyalty and hearty
Afte&ion of thice People to their Majelties King
William and Queen Mary s and, as far as in them
lay, to recognize them theirSovereign Leige Lord
and Lady. I doubt not but your Honours will {ee
Caufe to recommend the fame to the Jury, n de-
livering the Charge : And that no firain’d Con-
{truction of this At of Affembly can ever affect
the Prifoner, Col. Bayard, or in the leatt blaft his
Jong-experienc’d Loyalty to the Crown of England,
and in a fpecial manner to his prelent Majefty
King 7Villianm. .

I had almoft forgot to beg Leave of the Court
to apply my felf to the Gentlemen of the Jury, to
obviate fome Objections, or rather a vulgar Er-
ror, that ufvally hath crept in amongft them upon
Trials, and particularly upon Indiétments 5 which
i5, they do believe,

That if the Matters of Faét -alledged in the
Indiftment be but proved, they are to have no
regard to Matter of Law : Which I take to be
a very great and dangerous Error in them,

For tho’ it be true, and muft be granted, that
Matters of Iact are the moft common and proper

Objetts of & Jury’s Determination, and Matters of

Law that of the Judges ; yet as Law arifeth out of,
and is interwoven and complicated with Faét, it
cannot but fall under theJury’s Confideration : For,
thould it be otherwife, if a Perfon fhould be in-

14 W.111.

dl&ﬁd' fo_r dolng any common, Innocent ot lawﬁlﬂ
A&, if it be but cloathed and difguifed j; th
Indi¢tment with the Name of Treafon, of fnm:
other high Crime, and proved by Witneffes ¢, ba
done, then the Jury would lie under 2 Ncccﬂi[t
of finding the Prifoner Guilty, No: )

Do we not find in moft general Iflues, upon Ny
Guilty pleaded, as upon IndiGtments of Trefpafes
Breach of the Peace, Felony, and even in Cafes of
High-Treafon ; yet the Jury do not find the Fag
of the Cafe by it fclf, leaving the Law to (b
Court, but find the Party Guilty, or Not Gf!ffi}!

And this will more evidently appear upon ]i:,_
dictments of Murder, that the Jury are Judges a5
well of Matter of Law as of Fact. For is it pg
every Day’s Praltice, where Perfons are indigeg
of Murder ; the Jury doth not only find they,
Guilty or Not Guilty, but many times, upon heg.
ing and weighing of Circumftances, the Jury
brings in the Prifoner not only Guilty or
Guilty in general, but brings them in either Gy,
of Murder or Manflaughter, by Mifadventur: o
S¢ Defendendo ? &, _.

So the Jury being well apprized of the trye
Matter of Fact, of which they are {ole Judaes,
can better apply the Matter of Law ; for, fays
my Lord Coke, 10's by fitly applying Matters of Fog
and Law together, that the Fury brings forth thir
Verdict 5 which, I hope, you Gentlemen of the
Jury will carefully do.

Prifoner, 1 defire fome of my Evidences may be
called, to gtve an Account of my Life and Con-
verfation. Which was granted.

Mr. Veafy, Mimifter of Trinity Church, being
fworn, faid, I have been for Six Years perfonally
acquainted with Col. Bayard 3 during which
Time his Life and Converfation recommended
him in theWorld asan Exemplary Chriftian: And
the frequent Expreflions of his Zeal and AffeCtion
to his Majefty’s Perfon and Government, con-
vinced me, that he was a good Subjeét,

Prif. Call Capt, Tobn Kipp. Who being cl-
led, was abfent.

Call Capt. Tudor,

Tudor {worn, faid, I have known Col Bayard
26 Years, 2 moderate, civil, good Man, has been
employed in almoft all Offices of the greateft Trult
in the Government, never difaffefted, but {food
up for the Proteflant Religion and King William.

Prif. To prove that I have upon fundry Emer-
gencies, during the late War, advanced of my pri-
vate Fortune upon Loan without Interelt, ﬁ:veiml
confiderable Sums of Money, for the Prefervaticn
of his Majefty’s Intereft and Government in New-
York, of which upwards of 200/, Money in Specie
lent, is ftill unpaid; I defire Mr. Famifon, who
was then Clerk of the Council, may be {worn.

Famifon betng called, appeared.

Mr, Atwoed. Mr. Famifon has refufed to purge
himfelf of figning thofe Addrefles, and is Parli-
ceps Criminis, for which Reafon he cznnot be al-
lowed to be an Evidence,

The Evidence being fworn and examined, the
Sollicitor-General, without anfwering the Av

. thoritics offered by the Prifoner’s Council, rela-

ting to the Treafon, fumm’d up the Evidence,
as to Matter of Fact, .
Mr. Atwood gave the Charge to the Jury, n?
long Difcourfe; and amongother Things infifted,
That the Indi¢tment was not laid upon the At
of 25 E. 3. norany Actof Parliament, but upon

an A& of Affembly of this Province, conﬁrm;;%
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by Lis Majeltys which had Power to make Aéts

e Hizh-Trealon, as well as the Parliaments of
Epeland; and that the faid Statute was confined
0 Eigimjd, hecanfe by the fame Stfuute it is enact-
o, That 1f any Dopbt {hould arife, the fame be
._Hiiourncd unto Parl_mment; which muft be un-
1eritood of the Parliament of Englaid,

Thatit is High-Treafon, by the A& of Affem-
bly, by any Manner of Ways, or upon any Pre-
cnce whatfocver, by Force of Arms, or otherwiie,
o difturb the Peace, Good and Quiet of the Go-
vernment, as it i1s now eftablithed ; which he faid
was proved by Overt- Acts laid in the Indidtment;
which were, by figning of Libels againft the Go-
vernment, and thereby enticing the People to
aft off and difown the fame s and chicfly, by the
soldiers figning Complaints againft their chief
Officers 3 which tended to Mutiny, and was
{reafon by the Common-Law, -

That by bringing the Papers to Hut¢hing’s
Houte, the Prifoner had made himfeff guilty of
Wl that was done there, by the Soldiers and others
joning thofe Papers.

That the Right of petitioning the King was
sot in Difpute, but the Manner of doing 1t made
it criminal,

That 1t was plain the Addrefs of the Prifoner
ind his Three Fellows, was a difowning of the
prefent Authority, and cafting off his Majefty’s
Government as it was then eftablifh’d ; for Capr,
Naufan fucceeded the Lord Bellamont (as by the
Commiflionappcared) and notmy Lord Cornbury;
which was a plain Overt-Act of Treafon, by the
Meaning and Words of the Aét of Aflembly.

Tuat it appeared undentable, that the Prifon-
er and his Son were always by the Papers, and
that it was done with a great Number of People
to affront the Government.

That the drawing in Soldiers to fign Petitions,
is Muriny and Sedition by the Law; and drawing
of them in, oo falfe Pretences, 1 hopes of Free-
dom In the City, and {ubfcribing their Names on
blank Lifts, is lifting of Soldiers, and may be ap-
plied to invite in any Foreign Power: And there-
upon ftrenuoully infifted on the Validity of the
Lvidence, That the Facts lud 1n the Indidtment
were undeniably proved, and that thofe Fadts did
amount to High-Treafon, withinthe Words and
Meaning of this At of Affembly; and that there-
fore the Jury could not do otherwife than bring
n the Prifoner Guilty.

The Conftable being {worn to keep the Jury,
the Court adjourned till Nine a-Clock at Night:
And the Jury then not being agreed, the Court
did adjourn till Monday Nine a Clock, the gth of
March,

On Monday the gth, the Prifoner was brought
to the Bar, and the Jury fenc for: ‘They were
alked, If they were agreed in their Verdict? They
anfwered, they were not agreed, but defired {on:e
Dire&tion of the Court,  Facob Goelet appeared as
Foremsan of the Jury, and read fome Notes of what
he faid the Witneffes had fworn : Which were
de{lied to havebeen {worn by the Council {or the
Prifoner, who prayed Mr. Atwood to fatisfy the
Jury of the Truth of the Evidence.

To this be anfwered, That he could not do itaf-
ter the Charge given; but affirmed, it was no
hew Thing (as fome pretended) after Charge gi-
ven, to fausfy the Jury in fome Matters of
Law; and told, that he had received Letters from
the Jury, and anfwvered them ; which Anfwers
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were only his private Opinion. That if they wers
under any Difficulty, whether the Matters of Faét
alledged in the Indiétment, and which were pro-
ved to them, were Treafonorno, they might find
the Prifoner Guilty 5 who had his Advantage in
moving in Arreft of Judgment, and might be re-
lieved as to Matter of Law.

Mr. Emot. ‘This 1s not fair, to give the Jury a
Handle to find the Prifoner Guilty in Expetati-
on of Reliefin Arreft of Judement; for chey are
Judges both of Law and I'a&, as the Cale is now
circumftanced: If they will enflave themfelves and
their Poflerity, anddebar themfelves of il Accefs
to their Prince, they willbe worle than Negroes.

Mr. Atwood, This 1s nottobe fuffered, to offer
thefe Things to the Jury after they have received
thewr Charge; therefore be filent, Then pro-
ceeding, he renewed his Charge to the Jury, ag-
gravating the fuppoted Crimes for the Space of
about half an FHour.

Mr. Emot. 1 pray your Honour to be heard
one Word, (Whichhecften repeated, and allast was
girarted bim.)  "Fhe Facts Taid in the Indidlment
were not proved, as to the difowning and cafting
off the Government, encouraging of Mutiny in
the Soldiers, or difquitting the Peace of the Go-
vernment, Addrefling the King is the undoubted
Right of the Subject, bothby Common-Law and
Aétsof Parliament. If the Subjeét for Complaints
of Grievances, {et forth by Petition, fhall be at-
tainted of High-Treafon, we are in a worfc
Condition than Slaves.

Mr. Atwood check’d him, and commanded Si-
lence.

Mr. Nicholl. The At of Parliament to punith
Governors in the Plantations for opprefling the
Subjelt, is rendered ufele(s and of no Etedt, if the
Subjects are depriv’d of this Laberty to complain,
and fet forth thetr Grievances, by Petition to
their King,

Piifimr. | crave that Facebus Goelet may read o-
ver his Paper concerning the Evidence given, and
Liberty tocontroul the Miltakes, This was denied.

Prif. I crave that Col. DePeyfter and Capt, W al-
ters, wha are joined in the Commifiion, will declare
their Opinions fingly, 1f they have agreed thatto
be Trealon which Mr., Atzooad has declared tobe o,
cither by the Common-Law, or A¢tof Aflembly,
if the Iaéls lad in the Indi@ment fhould be ad-
mitted to be proved, as indeed they are not.

To this he recetved no Anfwer.

After this the Jury werefent out, and the Court
adjourned ull "Three a-Clock in the Afternoon.,

At which Time the Commiflioners meeting,
the Prifoner was brought to the Bary the Jury
were fent for : And being come, were afked, If
they werc agreed of their Verdi€t? Which they
anfwered in the Affirmative, and that they found
the Prifoner Guilty.

Couicil, We pray Time to offer Reafons m
Arrelt of Judgment. |

Mr. Atwood. Let thefe Reafons be offered To-
morrow Morning,

Court adjourned till Eleven a-Clock next Morning.

Mareh 10th. The Commiflioners met, and the
Prifoner being brought to the Bar, he offered the
following Reafons in Arreft of Judgment, In
thefe Words, wvzz. |

Bayard. That no Overt-Act, alledged in the
Indictment, is prov'd by the Oaths and Teftimo-
nies of Two lawful Witnefles, as by the Statute
of 7 #. 3. is dircéted
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That if the Overt-A@&, as alledged in the In- by the fetling up @ Power over their Majeflies §,.
di@ment, thould be admitted to be fo proved, jedts, without Authority from the Crown of Englang
yet neither by the Law of Exgland, or by any le-  bath vitiated and debanched the Minds of many p,,
gal genuine Conftruction of the Ak of Affembly ple, &c. For the Prevention whereof it Time to oy
of this Country, on which the IndiGtment is e i/ cnacted, &c. That whatfocver Perfon o Pg;-:
arounded, any of the faid Overt-Acts can amount fons fhall by any manier of WWays, or upon ayy
to Fligh-1'reafon, Preteice whatfoever, cideavour, by Force of Arms

Mr. Atzwood. Tho' the Reafons offered by the or otberwife, 1o rf.z]?m'!:r the Peace, Good and ,%;;f;
Prifoner’s Cquncil, are properly and learnedly of-  of this their Maeflies Government, as it is g,
fered, I couli off-hand anfwer and controul them  gflablifbed, fball be deemed and eftecmed as Rebels 43,
all 5 yet T will not doit; let them be lefe-wich  Traitors, &e, ¢
the Sollicitor-General,  And adjourn’d the Court ~ From hencelt plainly appears, that the Intentiqy

until Tena-Clock the next Morning ; which ac- of the Law-makers was only to declare fuch Perfy
cordingly was done, or Perfons Rebelsand Traytors, as fhould for t)e

Mareh 11. The Commiflioners met, and the fusure fet up a Power over his Majelty’s Subjegs
Prifoner brought to the Bar. in this Province, without Authority from the

Mr. Nichall. It does not appear, that any one  Crown of Eagland s which undoubtedly is Tie;.
Overt-A&, alledeed in the Indi¢tment, has been  fon within the Statute of 25 E. 3.
proved by the Oaths of T'wo lawful Witnefles, ~ Butitcan neverbe underftood (without offering
as by the Statute of 7 /7. 3. ought to be done.  thegreateft Violence to the reafonableConflrugdtion
Mr. Atwoed. The Juryare the fole Judges of the  of the faid A& of Affembly, and the plain Intea.
Evidence ; and if there has been any Omiffion in  tion of the Makers thereof ) to be conftyued o
that, itis now help’d by the Verdict, extend to the figning the Addrefles mentioned iy
Mr. Nicholl. “Tho’ *tis very plain to me, and I the Indictment, which 1s the only Thing the Pri.
fuppofc to the Court, that what I have affirmed foner is pofitvely charged withal; for all the ref
in this Matter is Truth, yet Ifhall not much areonly prefumptive, conftructive, and accumul.-
infitt upon it, becaute if the Actsthemfelves fhould tive Crimes, drawn from thence.
he admitted to be true, they do not fall under  But, fays Mr. Sollicitor, the Words of this Act of
any of the Heads or Species of Treafon fo made Affembly are in Generals 3 That if auy Perjons fhall
by the Englifh Laws, or by any natural and rea- endeavour, by LForce of Arms, orotherwife, todifturd
fonable Conftru@ion of the A& of Aflembly of the Peace, Good and Quiet of twe Government, hall b
this Government ; which being wholly Matter of  deemed and efteemed Rebels aid Traitors.
Law, I thall leave to your Honours Confideration, ~ Now from the Word [Otheriife] Mr. Solliciter
M., Emot. Ivery well remember, thatthe Court  would fain infinuate, that the Prifoner is within the
was pleafed to tell the Jury, after they had been Meaning of the A& of Affembly : A very fine Ex-
together fome Days, and not being agreed upon  planation! For by fucha Conltruction asthis, every
the Verdict, That if they were under anry Diffienlty, Breachof the Peace, fudden Quarrel, or { mall Bat,
cobether the Overt- A%s laid in the IndiSiment, if pro- tery, fhall be deemed Treafon. I (hall not turther
ved, were Treafon 3 if they found the Prifoner guilty, add upon this Head, but only offer my humble
be bad bis Remedy, by moving the Matter of Latw iz Opinion, That here, in the Plantanons, weare not
Arrelt of Fudyment. capable in our Affemblies’ to makeand declareany
I therefore humbly offer in Arreft of Judgment, new Species of Treafon, but [uch as are compre-
That if the Overt-A@s laid in the Inditment  hended in the Statute of 25 £, 3. or fome other
were adimitted to be proved, yetin Point of Law {ublequent Statute,
they cannot amount to High.Treafon, withinthe  Tho’ whatalready has been offered, Thope wil
Meaning, of the A& of Affembly upon which the be fufficient to ftay and arreft Judgment, yer!
Indictment was laid, have feveral other Things in behalf of the Prifoner
For I take it, that all A&s of Partiament, and (by your Honours Permiffion) to move in Arrele
confequently Aéts of Affembly, are to be under- of Judgment, and whichare not mentioned inthe
ftood and taken by reafonable Conftrution, to be Reafons which were afligned inWriting ; and I pray
eathered and colle@ted out of the Words of the Liberty to offer them Ore Tene.
Aé& only, and that according to the natural,  Mr.Akwied. Mr.Emot, you have Liberty grant

grammatical, plain and legal Senfe thercof, with- ed you: Go on.
out any forced Interpretation. Mr. Emot. T thank your Honour, And theRez-

Then if fo, this A& of Aflfembly, both by fons thatl(hall now further affign, why Judgment
the Title, Prcamble, and the enating Part ought not to pafs againft the Prifoner, according
thereof, plainly demonftrates the Meaning of the  to the Verdiét ot tie Jury, are thefe Three:
Law-makers, and what was thereby defigned for 1. That Aidies Marfbalk, one of e Petty-
the future to prevent. The Title of this Actis  Juiy, is an Alien, and of foreign Buth, Lorn i
inthefc Words: 4n Ag for the quicting and fettling  Zealand, and came over into shusProvince in the
the Diforders that have lately happened within this Year 1684 5 and that Facebus Guelet, the Foreman
Province, and for efablifhing and fecuring thesr Ma-  of the Jury, is alfo an Alien, and hath lately fent
Jefty’s prefent Government againft the like Diforders  to Englaid, for to procure a Denization.
for the future. Now what thefe Diforders were,  2dly. That the Vifiie, or Peadre, in the Precept
we have great caule to remember ; and they are  to lummon the Petty-Jury, uuder the Hanos of
very well known to this Court to have been occa-  the Commiffioners, is wrong awarded, of rather
fioned by fome Perfons fetting up an Arbitrary  not awarded at all,

Ifawcr over the King’s Subjeéts without Autho. 3dly. That the faid Precept is not cerurtied by
vity from the Crown of England, asappears from  the Shenft, or any lindorfement thereupon, and
the Preamble of the faid Adt, Part whereof isin  figned by him, againft the known Laws of £#-
thefe Words: And whereas the late and inconfide-  land, and more particularly the Starute of 12 £.2,

rate Violalion of the Gaod and Quiet of this Province, Cap. V. called, To: Staluie of York. ,
3 . an AI:‘:'.'?'?J
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M, Aisood n a long Spee_ch faild, What the
Sollicitor has offer’d, is fufficient to over-rule tl‘{e
Reafons exhubited 1n Arreft of: Judgment ; for *tis
.vidently proved, that the Prifoner has difturbed
e Peace, Good and Quiet of the Government,
i it 15 now cftablithed ; viz.

1. By enticing the People to fign fcandalgus
{ibels againft the Government, at the Coffee-
Houfe, and at his own FHoufe, by the Oath of
Piter Odyre, telling him, it was for the Good of
e Country 3 and his bringing them to Alderman
{luehing's, makes him equally guilty to the Sol-
diers figning Complaints again{t their chief Off-
cers. thereby enticing them for Mutiny 5 which
Soldiers are part of the Seven thoufand Men
raifed by A¢t of Parliament for the Defence of
the Kingdom 3 which is High-Treafon by the
Common-Law, as well as by Act of Affembly,

2dly, By the Prifoner’s difowning the Aflembly
to be lawful.

adly. By charging the Iieut. Governor to be
brib’d to pafs their Acts of Affembly. ‘

4ibly. By charging the Government to be 1n
the Hands of hot and 1gnorant Men,

sthly. By the Addrefs to the Licut, Governor,
difowning and cafting off the prel:ent Authority,
decharing the Lord Cornbury to {ucceed the late
Earl of Bellamont m the Government.

 hope the Prifoner by this Time is convinc’d of
his Crime, as well as that Clergy-man who fpoke
fomuch in his Vindication ; and that the Prifoner
will now be duly penitent, and make a true Con-
feffion of I,

Col, Bayard. May it pleafe your Honour, Tever
abor’d tnat heinous and abominable Crime of
High-Treafon, as much as Death it {felf. I call
God and my own Conicience to witnels, That ITam
as innocent of it as the Child unborn : 1 never
fpoke to any of the Soldiers to make any Com-
plaint, or fign any Adarefles, or other Paper
vhafoever, Town I was prefent at the Coffee-
Houfe, at the figning of an Addrcfs to the King,
acocer to the Parhiament, and another to the
~Lord Coridary 3 and I own the T'wo hrft contai-
ned fome Complaints of Grievances we {uppofed
o Jic under, and the latter a Congratulation.

[ had the beft Council I cculd get for fodoing,
and chat 1t was the Subjects Right 1o Petition the
King, by the A& of the Firlt of 777 & M, and |
think the Subjes fhould be worfe than Slaves,
if they thall be «rraigined for High-Treafon for
complaining to their [’rince.

' muft further beg leave to fay, Your Honour
was much miltaken in funming vp ult now what
the Witnefies had fworn s and the Jury (by that
Paper the Foreman read in Court) had likewife a
Wiong Notion of it5 which I defired then I might
controul ; but your Elonour over-ruled, as not to
be allowed after the Charge was given, It was
not proved by any of the Witnefles, that che Peace
of the Government had been difturbed ; none of
anfiid I had enticed any Perfon whatfoever to fign
the Addrefles; nor that I was prefentac the Soldiers
ﬁgnmg at Hutehing's, much lefs that I enticed them
toMutiny. 1liew nothing of their figning ; I was
not at the Heufe ail that Time.,  Mr. Ssiliciter had
}‘-‘Irs. Mutehing fworn, who faid the fame. Noneof
em fay, that in the faid Addrefs the Affembly was
led Undanyrul, but only, that the Speaker was
N Alien 5 nor that the Licut.Governor was bribed,
but temptud s nor that the Government was in
the Hands of hot and ignorant Men, but that bot

and iguorant Men were put in Offices 3 and that
thereby the Government was like to be rendred
Cheap and Vile,  And as for the Addrefs to the
Lieut.Governor, it was only faid, /7% had received
Advice from England, that the Lord Cornbury was
to fucceed the Earl of Bellamont as our Governor
which by no Colour can beconftrued to be a cafting
off, or difowning of, the prefent Authority, And tho’
all had been proved, as it is not,what your Honour,
as above, has been pleafed to fay, Thumbly concetve
1t cannot amount to a Mifdemeanor, and much lefs
to that heinous Crime of High-Treafon.

Mr. Atwood. The Right of Petitioning the King
1s not in Difpute, but the Manner of doing it
makes it Criminal; neither does that Liberty ex.
tend to the Parliament,

Mr. Iimot. 1 humbly move, that we may have
Liberty to offer other Reafons Ore Tenus, (Woich
the Conrt granted.)

M, Atwood. Adjourn the Court till Friday
Morning, the 13th Inftant, ( Adjonrned accordingly. )

On the 12th in the Morning, the Prifoner
wrote a Letter to Col, De Peyfler 3 fome of the
Contents whereof were by Mr, Atwoed retorted
upon the Prifoner 1 open Courr, at the Time he
paffed Sentence againlt him 5 for which Reafon
the Prifoner has permitted it to be publifhed ;
and it is as followeth :

Col. De Peyflery Sir,
“ ¥ Take leave to acquamt you, That tho’ it

a. ¢ has pleafed God to fuffer your felf, and
¢ fome of your Relations to be the likely chief In-
¢ ftruments of the total Deftruction both of my
“ felf and all my Family and Polterity 5 that yer,
“ notwithftanding I have that Peace with my felf
¢ (and I can butonly thank God for his all-fufficient
¢ Grace in ftrengthning me 1n 1t) that I am re-
¢ conciled to all Mankind whatfoever, and that I
“ hope one of my laft Prayers will be, That God,
¢ out of his infinite Mcrcy, will gracioufly pardon
“all thofe who have had a Hand to cut me off.
¢ Sir, Believe me, as you may give Credit to the
¢ Words of a dying Man ({ince I find the Jobb is
¢ to be done, and that it 1s now palt your Power
¢ to {top the Current) that I fhall alfo die with
¢ a clear and good Conicience, and as free of that
¢ horrid Crime laid to my Charge, as the Child
“ yet unborn,  And therefore hope God’s merci-
¢ ful Hand, who has never left nor forfaken me,
¢ will continue to fupport me to the very laft,
“and that I may look Death in the Face, as a
¢ oood Chriftian ought to do; humbly {ubmitting
¢ my All to his moft Wife, molt Juft, and moft
¢ Merciful Difpenfations : For I am {enfible there
¢ 15 no more than one Death for me, and that, in
¢ all Probability, confidering my Age, 1t might
¢ have been very foon, cho’ this Trtbulation had
¢ not befallen me.  1{hall only add, That I hope
¢ in God’s Mercy for the Pardon of all my mani-
¢ fold Sins and Tranfgreflions, thro’ the only Merits
¢ of my Saviour Jefus Chrifi 3 and that when I
¢ fhall be no more, he will continue his Grace to
¢ my dear Wife, and my Pofterity.  And, laftly,
¢ That my Blood, which is ftruck at (by your
* Brother’s own Expreffions to my felf, and your
¢ Brother-in-Law’s to others, both not long fince)
‘' may be the laft to be [pilt on Account of our
¢ difmal and unhappy Divifions; tho’ I fear out
¢ of my Afhes fuch further Calamities may arife
¢ to this poor bleeding Province, that Poftericy will

¢ have Caufe long to Jament : Yor 1t 1s not to be
* expetted
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¢ expected, that all the Plots, Contrivances and In-
¢ trigues uled in this Matter (many of which I
< affure you are already difcovered) will have their
¢ Fxit with my felf : It had been more pardon-
¢ able to have ftabb’d me in my Sleep, or with
¢ Yaab’s Hland, under a Pretence of I'riendfhip,
¢ than to do it with .7b, under a Colour and
« Cloak of Juftice ; and of the T'wo, 1leave others
¢ to confider, if this latter exceeds not the formers
¢ fince it’s not to be fuppos’d, that Abab’s was o
¢ much out of Malice; but the Vineyard being
¢ denied him on his offering the Worth of it in
Money, occalioned the Innocent to be arraigned
and fain for a pretended Crime of Blafpheny and
< [igh-Treafon,

< Sir, Thele above Lines are the Sincerity of
“ my Thoughts this Morning 5 affuring you, that
« I never had a Thought before late faft Night to
¢ write to your fclf one Word about this Subject,
¢ fo altogether unknown to all Mankind wht[o-
¢ ever, nor don’t intend them any further 5 where-
¢ fore I defire you'll make fuch Ufe of them, for
“ your own Confideration, as God may direct
¢ you, [am,s3y,

Your humble Servant,

N. BI\. Y ﬂ. 1{ D-

L

Mareh 13. The Court being met according to
Adjournment, the Prifoner being brought up,
moved, That forafmuch as Mr, Nicholl was out of
Town, by reafon of the Indifpofition of his Fami-
ly, another Council might be afligned in his fkead.
Which was granted, and the Court adjourned till
Monday the 16th Inftant, at Ninc a-Clock.

March 16. Before the fitting of the Court, the
Prifoner fent a Petition to Mr, Atwsed, and the
reft of the Commiflioners; wiz,

To the Ionpwrable Willlam Alwood, Ffg;
Abraham De Peviier, Ihf7; end Robert
Walters, /75 Fudges of this Speutal ot

The Humble Petition of Nicholas Bayard, fheceth,

¢ AT your Petitioner being altogether
¢ unacquainted what is practicable and al-

¢ Jowable in Law to be offered in Arreft of Judg-
« ment 3 yet fince your Petitioner’s Life, and all
¢ what is near and dear unto him is concerned,
¢ he humbly craves Leave (befides the Reafons
« already offer’d by your Petitioner’s Council in
<« Ayrelt of Judgment) to lay before your Ho-
¢ nours, and to pray your Honours favourable
¢ Confideration thereupon.

¢ Firft, That the Verdi&t of the Grand-Inqueft
¢ was not {ufficiently found by any Twelve of
¢ that Inqueft, as in his former Peuition 1s ft
¢ forth. ‘

¢ Secondly, That the Petty-Jury (in a manner
« forc’d upon your Petitioner) were all of them
¢ Parties concerned againit your Petitioner in the
« yery Matter he was tried for, on Account of
¢ the unhappy Divifions within this Province ; al]
¢ of’em extreany ignorant of the Englifh Language,
¢ 1o that degree, that fcarcely one of them isable
¢ to fay the Lord’s Prayer in the Englifb Tongue,
¢ and much lefs to comprehend the Matters of
¢ Law, and what lias been offered 1n behalf of
¢ your Petitioner at his Trial.

< Thirdly, That all what has been fword againft
¢ your Petittoner, was, I irft, That the Petitioner’s
¢ Name was ften to the Addrefs to the Lord

¢ Cornbury, but that they knew not whether it g
¢ his Hand-Writing,  Secondly, That the Pey;.
¢ tjoner had been prefent at the Coftee- Houfe, and
¢ or his own Houfe, when the Addrefles 1o [h}:
¢ King, another to the Parliament, and another 1
¢ the Lord Corubary, were figned by feveral of ¢
¢ Freeholders, Freemen, and Inhabitants of ths
« City; but that he had defired none of them ¢
¢ fign the fame. Thirdly, T hat the Petitioner hyg
¢ brought fome Papers, fuppofed to be the faid Ad.
¢ drefles, to the Houfe of Alderman Huselis,
¢ Fourihly, That the Addrefies to the Lord Corbury
¢ contain’d only a Congratulation at his fafe Ai.
¢ val, and a hearty Defire, thatwith itallour Divi.
¢ fions might be healed, and that the very Nama
¢ of Party and Faftien might vantfh, and be extin.
« ouifl’d; and that in the two former, or in one
¢ of them, either to the King or Parliament, foms
¢ Complaints were made of Gricvances, withou
¢ remembring the Particulars @ Only Mr. Clz,
¢ fwore, That to his beft Remembrance,in both.e;
¢ in one, of the Addrefles to the King or the Parlis-
¢ ment, mention was made, “That {forie of the k.
¢ teft and jgnoranteft of the People were put in 0%
¢ fices : That the Speaker of the Aflembly wy
¢ challenged to te an Alien @ Thacthe faid Affer.
¢ bly had givena Gill o the Licutenant- Governoy,
¢ to tempt him to pals ther Acts, and another
¢ the Judges and that thereby his Majelty's Go-
¢ yvernment was lke to be render’d File and Ches
¢ in the Eyes of the People : And fwore further,
¢ That in none of them any Reflections were made
¢ 1as he concetved) to the Prejudice of the Licut.
¢ Governor s and that in none of them, the Words
¢ Unlawful or Oppreffion werc mentioned.

¢ Fourthly, Thatall the reft of the Evidences
¢ fivore nothing, againft your Petitioner, but tha
¢ they had figned the Addrefles at Alderman
¢ Hutchins’sy that two or three of the Soldiers hid
¢ 3 Glafs of Wine given them, but not for fignig,
¢ it being Chriffmas-"Time; and that fome of them
¢ expected to be made Free of the City, but nor of
¢ the Garrilon.

< Mav it pleafe your Honours, Your Petitioner
¢ finds, by the Notes himfelf has raken at bis
¢ T'rial, that nothing more has been fworn againl
¢ him: W hereupon the Jury, being ignorant rco-
¢ ple, found him guilty, becaufe fome Part of the
¢ Indictment was proved, as to the figning of the
¢ faid Addrefles, and what the Contents of them
¢ were, only by the Qath of one Witnefs.”

Your Petitivier therefore bumbly prays, That your
Honours will be pleafed to take the Premils
into your ferions Coufideration, TV betber by the
Laws of England, or this Province, 1 n
amount 1o the Crime of High-Treafon, what bis
been [twori againft bim, as above expreffed ? A
if 1ot that your Honours <will faveurabiy oraer
an Arreft of Sudgmens for the Reafous abse
meitioned, &c. and what has been alycady
offered to your Honour by the Petitioner’s Councih

And as in Duty bound, &c.
N.BAYARD

The Court being met, the Prifoner was brought
to the Bar, and the Petition laft mentioned read
M. Atiwoed. Wir. Emot, we are ready to het
the Arguments you have to ofter, for the it thred
Reafons you have afligned 1n Arreft of Judgmers.
Me., Emot. Tam ready 5 1, Andries Marfbar,
one of the Petty-Jury, isan Alien ; we have tV€

Evidences to prove the fame. And—
M, st

A
&
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Mr. Arwood. We cannot admit you any fuch
proof 3 fortho’ this might have been agood Excep-
ion for Caufe before he or they had been fworn,
Lt now it’s 100 Jate therefore go on to the next.
Mr. Emot. This feermns very hard ; fqr we ought
o have beentried by theKing’s lawful LiegePeople,
. weapprehend thefe arenot fuch 3 but we came
"ot to the Knowledge of this till after the Trial.
Mr. Atwood. Pray, Mr, Emot, delay the Court
q0 longer ;3 but proceed to the fecond Reafon
sgned. _ |
Mr. Enot. The 2d Reafon is, That the Vifue, or
Ve, in the Precept to lummon the Petty- Jury, 1s
wrone awarded, or rather notawarded atall. - Our
nappy Conflitution of Government is, That all
Trials of this Nature muft be by the Verdict of
Twelve Men, and that, as near as may be, of the
Neighbourhood where theFactarifeth, oris alledg’d
o arilc in the Indictment.  Yet, neverthelels, the
Precept to fummon the Jury, we find is direéted to
heSheriff, to return Eighty Men of his Bailiwick s
«hereas he is Sheriff’ as well of the County of
New-Tork, as of the City; and at the fame time,
he Matters of Fact alledged in the Indictment are
fiidio be committed in the Dock, and Eaftward of
his City. So that this is 2 Mif-Trial, upon which
ro Judgment can be given: And of this we havea
multitude of Authorities in our Books: And firft,
in drundel’s Cafe, Coke’s Rep. Part 6. fol. 1.4. b, It
wis for the Murder of one Parker; and the Cale
wasthus: The Murder was alledged to be done at
the City of I¥eftminfter, in a certain Street there,
called King-flreet, in the Parith of St. Margaret’s,
For the Trial of the Iffue a Jury was return’d, De
cicinitate Civitatis Weftm.  Arandel being found
guilty, movesin Arreft of Judgment; affligning for
Caufe, That theJury ought to have been out of the
Parith of St. Maigarel’s, and not in general out of
the Neighbourhood of the City of Weftminfler
and it was adjudged a Mif-"Trial, and the Verdift
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* Crook's Rep. In Loirden, the Parith and Ward is
mientioned; and therefote it wasadjudged, Thatit
was not good to alledge ariy thing done generally
in London; but it muft be laid to be done in fome
Parifh, from which a Venue may be awarded.

In Crook’s Fac, p, 399. Tycos againtt Weftcone.
Inthis Cafe, a Venire fac’ wasawarded from 7., and
not de Viceneto de T, Refolved to be ill, and not
amendable: Yet in this Precept the Vifiie is not fo
much as of 2 Ward of the City of New-2ork, nor
of any other Neighbourhood whatfoever, but in
general from his Batliwick, So that I humbly
pray, that for this Reafon the Jury’s Verdi&t may
be fet afide, this being a Mif-T'rial, upon which
no Judgment can be entered : And fhall proceed
to the Third Reafon afligned,

3. ‘T'hat the Precept to fummon the Jury is not
returned by the Sheriff, or any Endorfement there-
upon, and figned by him, againft the known Laws
of England, and more particularly the Stat, of 12
Eaw, I1. ¢, 5, This Statute enjoins, That the
Sheriff thall put his Name to every Return madg
by him, fo that the Court may know of whom
they took fuch Return, if need be: And I fhall
endeavour to prove, from fundry adjudged Calfes
(ince the making of this Statute, that this Precept
to fummons the Jury not being endorfed by the
Sheriff, the Trial is 1ll, and not amendable.

The Cale of Holdfworthagaintt Sir Stepben Proc-
fory 1n Crook’s Rep. Part 2. p. 188. Sir Stephen
Proftor moved in Arrelt of Judgment, for that the
Name of the Sheriff was not endorfed upon the
Writ of Diffringas with Nifi prinsy and it wasruled,
That the Trial was ill, and not amendable by any
the Statutes of Feofasls: For, fays the Judges, 1U’s
all one with the Cale of a Venire facias, where the
Name of the Sheriff is not theretoy which hath
been frequently over-ruled, as being no Return,
nor helped by any Statute of Feofails. Forthe Sta-
tuteof 18 Eliz, asIfhall thew hereafter, from ad-

was fet alide: And this I find was done upon a  judged Cafes, and from the beft Authorities in

Special Confult of the Judges at Serjeqits-Iun,

So that we {ee how cautious the Laws of Eig-
lind are, and the Judges thereof, that all Trials of
this Nature (hall follow the Penie, and that the
jury (hall be fummoned from the Neighbourhood
where the IFalt arifeth, And the Reafon thereof is
grounded upon this Suppofition and Prefumption,
That the Neighbourhood are the beft and moft
proper Judges of Matters of Fact 3 for indeed it’s
the Rule in the Law, That Vicinus fafta vicini
orefumitur feire,

But let me obferve to your Honours, That out
Cale at the Bar 1s much more uncertain, as to the
warding of the Venire facias, or Precept to fum-
mon the Jury 3 for the Faét is alledged to be done
A the Dock, and Eaflward of this City, and Iffuc
joined thereupon : Yet the Precepe is direéted to
the Sheritf, to fummon the Jury of his Bailiwick,
which, as I faid before, contains both the City and
County of New-2ork, and without mentioning any
Neighbourhood, and therefore may come out of
the County, as well as from the City ; and there-
fore of Neceflity muft be efleemed a Mif-Trial,

To this it may be objected by {uch as are igno-
fne of our Laws, That sotwithftanding the Fury
was fummoned from the Neighbourbood of the City of
New-York, aud not from the County, for that they
uow the Perfons tobe fuch. But thisnot appearing
o be fo upon Record, availsnothing ; for the Rule
ofthe Law is, #7hat appears mot, is not: Exiften-
lius 3 o apparentibus cadem off ratio,

1

Law, doth only help imperfect and infufficient
Returns, and that only in Cafes Civil, between
Party and Party 5 but here is no Return at all,
In Rewland's Cafe, in Lord Coke’s Rep. Book 5.
p. 41, in Ejetment upon a Verdict for the Plains
tiff, the Defendant moved in Arrelt of Judgment;
for the Venire facias was notreturned or endorfed by
the Sheriff, tho’ the Poffer made mention that the
Jury was returned per Mandatum Fufticiorum : Yet
in this Cafe it was ruled, That that would not
help it 3 for the Judges faid, That where thereis
no Return, it cannot be help’d by the Statute of
18 Eliz. or any other of the Statutes of Feofails 5
for that Statute only helps imperfet and infufh-
cient Returns, and fuch as want Form, and not

{uch as are not return’d at all.
Again, in Sir Arthur Blackmore’s Cale, in Coke's

§thRep. fol. 156. in this Cafe it was adjudg’d, That
theStatutc of 18 Eliz. doth not help a Trial, where
no Return is made upon the Wnit of Venire fac’s
as was formerly, fay they, adjudged in Rowl/and’s
Cafe before-cited. And our Books are full of Au-
thorities of this Nature, but fhall not give you
the Trouble to mention any more.

Mu.Sollicitor, Mr.Emot, thefe Authorities, which
you have here cited, it’s true, are grounded upon
the Statute which you have mentioned of 12 Ed. 1L
but this Statute has only relation to Writs; and in
this Cafe the Sheriff fummoned the jury, not by
Virtue of a Writ, but a Precept under the Hands

of the Commiffioners 3 which differs the Caftlr\}I
rl
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- Mr, Emot, M. Sollicitor, then you fay, that the
Cafe at the Bar is not within the Words of this
Statute of 12 Edw. II. for that this is a Precept to
fummon the Jury, and not a Writ, and {o confe-
quently the Sheriff not obliged to fign and return
the fame. A very wife Diftinction!

However, I fhall endeavour to fhew, that this
Precept is within the Reafon and Equity of the
Statute, and that the fame ought to be returned
and figned by the Sheriff., In order thereto, 1
thall put this Court in mind, how Statutes have
from Time to Time been taken by Equity in di-
vers Manners 3 that thofe Things which are alike
in Reafon, are alike in Law ;3 and that where an
A& of Parliament hath been made to remedy
fome Mifchiefs, that the fame hath been extend-
ed to othcr Things, in like Degree, and that
even in Penal Laws. As for Example:

Stat. of Glouceft. c. 5. By this Statute, an Altion
of Wafte is given againft one who holds for Years;
yet by the Equity of this Statute, a Man fhall
have an A&ion againft him who holds but for
half an Year, notwithftanding the A& be Penal.

Weftm. 2. c. 3. This Statute gives an Action
of cui in Vita, after the Coverture diffolved by
Death ;s Yet if the Coverture be diffolved by
Divorce, the Wife fhall have, by the Equity of
this Statute, a Writ of cui ante Divortitm,

And laitly, the Stat. 25 Edw. 3. de proditio-
nibus, ‘This Statute exprefly fays, That no Cafe
thall be taken by Equity, unlefs it be adjudged
in Parliament ; and yet by the Equity of the
Words of that Statute, which are, If the Servant
kill the Majler, it is taken, If the Maid kill the
Miftrefs, that this is Petit-Treafon.

So that from hence I am humbly of Opinion,
‘That we are fairly within the Equity of the Saf.
12 Edw. 2. Befides, a Writ and Precept in this
Cafe are only fynonymous Terms, and fignity
one and the fame Thing.

Thefc Reafons were over-ruled.

And the Court ordered the Sheriff to make a
Return upon the Precept to fummon the Jury, con-
form to the above Siaz. 12 Edzw, 2. which the Court
faid they had Power to do, and to help that De-
felt.

Mr. Emot. I find your Honour has over-ruled all
the Reafons that we have offered in Arreft of Judg-
ment, in Behalf of the Prifoner Col. Bayard, why
Judgmentought not to pafs againft him, according
to the Verdict of the Jury 5 but have not as yet ob-
ferved, thatcither Col. D’ Peyfter or Captain Pal-
jers have given their Opinion to all, or any of the
Reafons we have offered, 1 humbly therefore

pray, that we may have their Opinion, fo
may know by what Hands we fall.

Mr. Atweod. Mr, Emot, you which have he,
affigned Council for the Prifoner, have hithereg in
all the Courfe of the Trial, carried yourfelves ]!ik;}
Men of your own Profefioir ; you muft nog nm:r
therefore begin tomenace the Court. You thall 3y
the Opinion of the reft of the Commiffioners

WhereuponMr. Alzwood turning himfelfto thep,
and whifpering them, they feverally did declys
That they were of Opinion with Juftice At/
in that the Reafons offered were not fufficient ¢
arreft the Judgment.

Mr. diwood, Col. Bayard, have you any thine
to fay, why Sentence thould not pafs againit ygu?

Prifoner. 1 have nothing more to offer, thy,
what my Council have offered, and what is cop.
tained in my Jaft Petition,

M, Atwood. Tam forry to find you fo impeni.
tent of your Crime, which is fo hetnous and abom)-
nable in the Sight of God and Man. You haye
lately made RefleCtions upon the Proceedings of
this Court againft you, as if it had been 2 Defia
to do the Job; comparing your Cale to that of
Nabot’s Vincyard : But I hope Ged will open
your Eyes, that you may be convinced, and re-
pent of the Crime.

Then he pronounced Sentence in thefe Words:

that we

It is confidered by the Court here, that you be car-
#ied 1o the Place from whence you came s 1ha! from
thence you be drawon upon a Hurdle 1o the Ploce of
Execution y that there you be banged by the Neck
aid being alive you be cul dewon upoir the Easih,
and that your Bowels be taken ot of yonr Belly, ail

your Privy-Members be cut offy and you beiig alrz,

they be burnt before your Faces and that your Heal
be cut off, and that your Body be dividea ints Fou
Quarters 3 and that your Head and Quaricis i:
placed where our Lord the King fhall affigin. e
the Lord bave Niercy upon your Sorl.

Prifoner. 1 defire to know, whether 1 may
have leave to anfwer to your Honour’s Specch
made before Sentence,

Mr, Atwoed. No.

Piifoner. 'Then God’s Will be dore.

The Prifoner was remanded.

Alderman Hutchins of New-2erk was Trici.h
Conviéted and Condemned of High-Treafon, fo
the fame Fa&s with which Col. Bayard Wi
charg’d, and had the {ame Ufage both before, .
and after his Trial,
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CLXXIIL The Trial of WiLriam FuLLER at the Guild-
Hall of London, for a Cheat axd Impoftor, May 20.

1702. I Ann.

Proclamation was made for all Perfous concerned
to attend.

]
j{ij‘-;f HHEN the Gentlemen that were of
2l _%2 the Jury were Sworn,

Peter White, Hion,

Ab. Burnel, Protior,

Jobn Cooper, | §. Stone,

Edw. Pinfold, Troughlon,

Fames Dod, Fo. Watfon,

Boden, 3 & Dan. Carpenter,

T'he Queen againft William Fuller, upon an Infor-
mation for Libsls.

Mr. Montague. May it pleafe your Lord(hip, and
vou Gentlemen of the Jury, The Information fets
forth —— ¢ That the Defendant being an Im-
«« noftor, and a common Lyar, and 2 Perfon of an
« il Name and Reputation, fallly, malicioufly,
«« wickedly and feditioufly contriving, practiling,
¢« and intending the late King #/#/liam and his Sub-
¢« jolts, falfly and unlawfully to delude and deceive,
¢« and Difcords between the fuid late King and
¢« the Peers, and the Noblemen of this Kingdom,
« and the great Officers and Minifters intrufted by
« the faid late King, in Bufinefs relating to the Go-
¢« yernment of this Kingdom of Exglaid, and other
« Subjects of the faid Kingdom, to move, excite,
¢ and ftir up; and alfo to bring the Noblemen and
« Peers, and the great Officers and Minifters afore-
« faid, and other faithful Subjeéts, into Hatred and
«« Contemnpt with the faid Jate King ; and to get
« and obrain feveral great Sums of Money fraudu-
«t lently and deccitfully from the faid late King 3
« He, the faid #illiam Fuller, the firlt Day of fa-
 jnary laft at London, &c. (to perfect and bring to
« offe€t his faid wicked Practices and Intentions,
«¢ and of and concerning a Correfpondency between
““ divers Officers and Subjects of the faid Jate King
v and the Jate King Fames, while he refided at
« §t.Germains in France, falfly pretended to be had,
“ and of divers Sums of Money by the faid late
““ King Fames diftributed amongft the Subjects of
“ the late King William, fallly preiended to be fent
““ here into England ;) did fallly, wickedly, mali-
« cioufly, and fcandaloufly write and print, and
“ caufe to be printed, a falfe, fcandalous, and de-
““ famatory Libel, entituled, * Original Letters of
* the late King’s (meaning the late King Fames)
““ aud others, to bis greateft Friends in England,
““ with the Depofitions of Thomas Jones and Tho-
 mas Widdrington, Efgrs; proving the Corrupti-
““ont lately pradlifed to uin this Nation. In which
¢ falfe, feigned, and fcandalous Libel, among other
“ Things, are contained as follows : [ 1t Page.]

Thomas Janes, Lfq; depofeth, That he being at 5t
Germains, the Court of the late King Fames in
France, \n January, 1692, the faid late King being
in his Clofet, fent for this Deponent, and there
commanded the faid Deponent to begin his Journey
for England, in Company with Colonel 7%, Dalla-
val, and Mr. George Hayes 5 and the faid late King
did then, and there deliver to this Deponent feveral
Letters and Papers, to divers Noblemen and others
in England, to whom this Deponent had feveral
times before and fince brought Letters from the late
King and his Queen, and pretended Secretaries of
State, delivered according to Order. This Deponent
further faith, by the Oath he hath taken, That the
late King Fames, at the time aforefaid, in his Clo-
fet at §¢. Germains, did deliver to this Deponent a
Paper, being an Order for this Deponent to receive
Six Thoufand Pounds ; which Sum this Deponent
was to pay to feveral Perfons in Places in Truft
then in England, to engage them more firmly toen-
deavour the invalidating the Evidence of Hilliam
Fuller (who, as the faid late King exprefled, had
been by him, his Queen, and chief Servants, in-
trufted andemployed in theirmoft fecret and weigh-
ty Concerns, for a confiderable time after the late
King and Queen’s coming to France). [ P. .7 And
this Deponent faith, He informed Mr, Fuller that
Dallaval and Hayes were come toTown,and lodged
at an Apothecary’s in Holborn, which Houfe Hayes
formerly lodgedats but that Dallaval not being
well, they could not come to him ; therefore this
Deponent faid to Fuller,thatthey defired himtocome
to them ; but he urged his Condition rendred him
unfit, begging of the Deponent, to intreat them
not to fail to attend the Houfe of Commons at the
time appointed. All which this Deponent imparted
the fame Day to Col. Dallaval and Mr. Hayes, and
with them went the fame Evening to three Gentle-
men that were then Members of Parliament 5 and
this Deponent had a Letter from one of thofe three
Gentlemen, (that was aMember of Parliament) di-
refted to one of the Secretaries to the then Secre-
tary of State, which this Deponent was to carry to
him the next Morning 5 which accordingly he did
by Seven of the Clock. And this Deponent faith,
He paid the fard Under-Secretary 500Guineas. And
this Deponent faith, That when he left the Secreta-
ry, he went diretly to the Sun-Tavern in King-firect
Weflminfter, where he found the three Members
with Dallaval and Hayes, and an eminent Banker of
the City of London : Then this Deponent defired
the Banker to give his Bill to pay each of thofe
three Gentlemen that had been Members, 1000
Pounds payable on Sight 5 which being done, the
{aid Banker delivered alfo to one of them his Bill
for 1500 J, to be paid on Demand, for the Ufe of
a confiderable Perfon, whofe Station would not per-
mit him to be prefent, And this Deponent faith,

* See State Trials, Vol. 8. p. 78.

Vo, V,
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“ and againft the Peace of the faid late King, bis
‘“ Crown and Dignity.
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by the Oath he has taken, That the feveral Sums of
Money beforementioned, with feveral leffer Parcels,

were fo difpofed of by him, according to the late

King’sefpecial Directions. And this Deponent faith,
He has now by him the Receipts of each Perfon for
the refpective Bills and Moneys he difpofed of,with
the true Copies of his Original Bills, delivered to
him by the late King’s own Fand. This Deponent
faith, He delivered to the late King a Letter he
had for him, from the three Gentlemen that were
Members, and alfo feveral others he brought from
LIngland,  And forafmuch as this Deponent faith,
As hehath formerly been employed to bring Letters,
and Bills, and Orders, from the late King Fames
and the FrenchKing and their Minifters ; this Depo-
nent faith, That he has kept a Journal of the fame,
and 1s ready to lay it before either or both Houfes
of Parliament when required. And this Deponent
faith alfo, by the Oath he hath taken, That he can
produce his original Orders, that he received from
the late King’s, and the French King’s own Hands,
for the diftributing more than One Hundred Four-
{core Thoufand Pounds Sterfing for their Ufe, to
Perfons that were in Places of Truft. And this De-
ponent faith, Fle can produce the Receipt of each
Perfon to whom the Money was paid, and alfo the
Perfons from whom this Deponent received the faid

Sum or Sums by the Order aforefaid.
Tho, Fones,

(2d Book.) ¢ The Information further fets forth,
¢« "T'hat the Defendant, the Day and Year aforefaid,
¢ (to perfect and bring to effeét his furthermoft
¢¢ wicked Praflices and Intentions againft divers
¢« Officers, and other Subjeéts of the late King
¢ [Villiam, upon a feigned and pretended Corre-
‘¢ {pondence between themand the late King Fames,
% whilft he refided in France, and of feveral Sums
¢ of Money fent by the faid King Fames out of
¢ France into England, to be diftributed amongft
¢ the Subjelts of the late King #illiam) another
““ moft falfe and {candalous Libel [Title Page]
““ entituled, Tewenty Six Depofitions of Perfons of
““ Quality and Worth) falfly, wickedly, and moft
““ deceitfully, did write, print, and caufe to be
‘¢ printed 5 in which faid falfe and fcandalous Libel,
““ amongft other Things, are contained, wiz. [sth
“ Page.)” My, Jones bas alfo made Oath, That be
paid 50001, miore, by the lnte King’s Order, 1o feve-
ral Perjons in Places of Truff, that they might com-
pleat my Ruin, and invalidate me for cver,  Nor is
thisall s for the fame Mr, Jones swill prove, by unde-
niable Wituefs and Demonftration, that be bas diftri-
buted wmore than One Hundred Fonrfeore Thoufand
FPounds in Eight Years laft paft, by the French King’s
Order, to Perfons in publick Truft in this Kingdom,

W. Fuller.

¢ And the faid Defendant Fuller afterwards, the
*“ faid Day, &, falfly, unlawfully, and wickedly
““ did publith, utter, and for Truth affirm, the
*“ faid feveral falfe and fcandalous Libels, without
“ any [awful Authority, Whereas, in Truth, the
““ faid Thomas Fones did not depofe upon his Oath,
“‘ 2s 15 contained in the faid falle and fcandalous Li-
““ bel 5 but that the faid fcandalous Libels were and
¢ are falfe and feigned, and altogether contrary to
““ Truth, to the great Scandal and Abufe of the
““ late King William, and his great Officers and
““ Minifters, and other the faithful Subje@s of the
““ faid late King, to the evil Example of others,

He pleaded Not Guilty, and Ifficc joined thereupon,

The Cafe. ¢ The Defendant Fuller is fo noto.
¢ rious a Cheat, and his Praices {o publickly
““ known to all Men, that there need not much 1o
*¢ be faid here to aggravate his Offences ; for in the
“ Year 1691, he was cenfured by the Houfe of
‘“ Commons, profecuted, convicted and punifhed
“¢ for thofe very Crimes he now ftandsto be tried
“ and notwithftanding that Sentence and Panifh-
““ ment, he ftll perhfts in his villiinous Pradtices
*“ and Defigns.

““ About two Years fince, he applied himfelf o
““ the chuef Minifters at Court, and infinuated what
““ Difcoveries he could make relating to the Cheqt
““ of the Birth of the pretended Prince of 1#//;,
““ and of great Sums of Money reccived by feveral
““ Perfons of Quality here, from the late Kino
¢ Yames and the Freneh King, and of feveral Cor.
‘¢ refpondences had between them, and the areat
¢ Officers of State here in England 3 but nor meet-
“ing with that Encouragement he expedted, he
““ then undertakes to write and publith the two
¢ fcandalous Libels mentioned in the Information,
*“ and caufed great Numbers of them to be printed
“ and fold about the ‘Town; and then petitions
¢ the Houfe of Peers to be heard, to make out the
“ Truth of what he wrote and publithed. The
*“ Houfe of Peers, by his Importunity, appointed
“ a Day for him to produce thofe Perfons he men-
¢ tioned, to make good his Accufationsand Charge,
““ which he undertook to do; but failing from
“ time to time, their Lordfhips ordered him to be
““ commutted, and profecuted for an Impoftor ; buc
“ the Defendant being an harden’d Rogue, was no
““ way humbled at this Order, but immediately
““ thereon applies himfelf by Letters to the Speaker
“ of the Houle of Commons, alledging the fame
¢¢ Matters, as he had done before to the Houfe of
“ Lords., The Houfe of Commons ordered him
““ to be brought to their Bar, where he only de-
“¢ fired Ten Days Time to produce thofe Perfons
* mention’d 1n his Libels ;3 and that Houfe, (1o
““ leave himno Excule) granted him 5 Formight ;
‘¢ but having trifled with the Houfe of Commons,
¢ as he had done before with the Houfe of Lords,
“ they voted him an incorrigible Rogue, and or-
¢ dered him to be profecuted,  What the Reafons
““ were for this unparallel’d Impudence, whether
““ for the fake of Gain, or Malice to thofe Gentle-
““ men he hints at in his Libels, are yet Secrats.

*Mr. Att. Gen, MyLord, the Charze

"Sir Edward. has been very felly opened, and I need
Aorthey. pot fay much,  Iis Crime is his pub-
lithing thele two Bocks ({mention’d in

the Information.)  He has been fome Time fitting
up for an Evidence, pretending to difcover a fecret
Correfpondence berween the late King Fames, and
feveral Perfons here in Englaid, He made an Offer
of fome fuch Difcovery about Ten Yeuars ago, and
he then applied himfelf to the Houle of Commons,
and they gave him Time to produce hisWitneffes 5
but after all, he could produce none, and the Houfe
ordered him to be profecuted as a Cheat and Im-
poftor 3 and he was profecuted accordingly, con-
victed —, and fet in the Pillory, Now fome Time
1aftWinter, he did apply himfelf to fome of the late
King’s Minifters, and pretended he would produce

Lhomas Fones, and Tho, Witherington, to make con-
fiderable
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Gderable Dilcoveries, They heard him, but he
could never produce thefe Men before them. And
ficrwards having no Encouragement from them,
Le took on him to publifl: thefe two Books, men-
von’d in the Information, whereof he {tands nowac-
cufed. And after he was before the Parliament, he
firlt applied himfelftothe Houfe of Lords, and they
veard what he had to fay, and gave him Time to
produce his Witneffes 3 but he could not do it, and
thercupon the Lords were plealed to direct this Pro-
ecation. ‘Then he applied himfelf to the Houfe of
Commons, and they gave him Time likewife to
produce his Witne(les; but he could produce none;
whercupon they voted him a Cheat, afalfe Accu-
fer, and an incorrigible Rogue. My Lord, thefe
Books were publifhed with a very malicious Deflign,
and no doubt, he had other People, who do not
nowappear, to fupport him mit; and I doubt not
but he would have fet up Witnefles to have {worn
whatever he would bhave them, if he had met with
any Encouragement, He has the Impudence to put
in the Frontifpiece of his Books, Publifbed by Com-
mand 5 but being afked in the Houfe of Peers, by
whofe Command? He faid, it was by his own
Command, And he has publifh’d in the Books,
that b would produce Witnefles to prove the di-
ftributing of an Hundred and cighty thoufand
Pounds to Perfons in Places of Truft, and to pro-
duce Receivts for the fame, and he had an Oppor-
nity now of doing it. We will prove the Charge
upon him,

+Sic Fobn T Mr. Sell. Gen, My Lord, the Mat-
Hawles.  ter of the Information has been fully
opened 3 but we are to confider the 1il Confequen-
ces of it. This is a new Praice for a Man to
publith Things of this Nature, and not be able
to prove any thing : But he pretends to fet up 2
fecond Witnels to make out what he has faid 5 that
is, Foies, as if Founes wereto relieve him, Now if
that were true, 1t would be a great Thing to corro-
borate what he did fay 3 but he has never pro-
duced this Fones, but only has printed fomething that
he calls Foness. If it were only what depended on
his private Knowledge, the Cafe were otherwife s
but when he pretends to bring Fones to prove it,
and does not produce him, he makes himfelf guil-
ty of the Scandal; and it is very neceffary that
this Man thould be brought to Puuifhment, 1 will
not trouble your Lordthip further, but call our
Witnefles.

Mr, Serj. Darnel. 'The Matter has been opened
fo fully, that there is no nced tor meto fay any
thing 3 we will now call our Witnefles.

Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, we will prove that
Fuller carried this Book to the Prefs, and not Mr.,
Fones, therefore we may well prefume it was his
own.

Mr, Conicrs. He could never produce Fones,
but he could frame Depofitions for him,

Then Fuller’s Book wwas produced.

M, Serj. Darnel. Call Mr. Buck {who appear-
ed, and was fworn]. Mr. Buck, Who caufed that
Book to be publifhed ?

Mr, Buck. Mr., Fuller,

Mr, Serj. Darnel, How do you know that?®

Mr. Buck, He brought it to me in Manufcript,
and he faid he took thefe Depolitions out of the Se-
cretartes- Office,

Mr. Serj, Dariel, But what did he defire you
to do?

Mr. Buck., He defired me to printic : And.he.
faid, Becaufe it was not done fooner, it had done
the King Ten thoufand Pounds Damage. F

Mr., Coniers. Did he make any Alteration in
them afterwards ¢

Mr. Buck. No, only alter’d the Miftakes of the,
Prefs.

Mr, Att. Gen. Was that Book printed by his.
Order ?

Mr, Buck. Yes.

W. Fuller., My Lord, I will not give thefe Gen-
tlemen the Trouble to prove it 3 I own it was writ -
by me.

Mr. Att. Gen. Do you own the other Book
too? Mr., Buck, look on that Book {then tiic other
Book was fhewn him]. By whofe Order was that
printed ?

Mr, Buck. By Mr. Fuller’s Order.

Mr. Fuller. My Lord, if it be the Book I pub-.
lith’d, I will own it, [Then it was fhewn him. ]
Yes, my Lord, it was printed by my Order. -~

L. C. . Holt. Read the Ticle.

Clerk. Original Letters from the late King James,
(e, Publifhed by Command.

L. C.¥. Hdt, By whofe Command was it pub-
hfl'd ? |

Mr. Ait, Gen. By Fuller’s,

L. C. ¥ Holt. His Order is a Command, 1t_
{eems,

Then fome Paragraphs were read.

Mr. Att. Gen. If Mr. Fuller will produce this
Fones, to make good what he fays, he will do a,
oreat Piece of Service; otherwife, he deferves to,

be feverely cenfured.
L. C. #. Holt. Read the other Part,

Theu the Clerk read the Tutle.

William Fuller. Pray read the whole Title.

L.C. ¥. Holt. Heisin Love with 1t,

Clerk. [Reads the Title} Tawenty fix Depofitions
of Perfons of Quality and Worth, with Letlers of
the late Queen, Fatber Corker, and Mrs. Mary-
Grey, &c. Publif’d by Command.

Mr, Aut. Gen. Read the reft,

Clerk., Mr. Fuller’s Aufwer 1o the chief Obyeltions
made againft bim, &c. — Mr. Jones sade Oath,
that be bas paid 5000 I, more to feveral Perfous by
the late King’s Order, that be mght compleat my
Ruin, and tnvalidate my Evidence for ever, &c.

Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, we have provedd his
publifhing of thefe Books. We will now hear what
he can fay for himfelf, |

IV. Fuller, My Lord, I humbly beg you will,
hear what I have tofay.

L. C. 5. Holt. Yes, yes, Have you any Coun-
cil ¢

W, Fuller. No my Lord, I have none; I have
no Money to procure Council. I have put my
Thoughts in Writing, and I beg Ieave to read 1.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Bur you muft {peak to the Tur-
pofe. What do you fay concerning the -publiltung,
thefe Books ? .

V. Fuller. That is what I have to offcr.

L. C. . Holt. But can you make It appear
that they are true ¢

W. Fuller. My Lord, I hope I.:{hall.

L.C. %. Holt. Have you any Witneffes ?

1. Fuller. 'T have none here at prefent, But if
your Lordfhip will pleafg to hear the Terms upon

Llla2 which
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which the. Witnefles would have come in, I can
produce them : If your Lordfhip will grant your
Warrant for Fones, 1 will forfeir my Life if he ap-

pear not.
L.C. 7. Holt. You might have had Subpand’s

for your Witneffes againft this Day.
W. Fuller. My Lord, I did endeavour 1t 5 bue

I had not Money to bear their Charges.

L. C. F. Holt. You made the fame Excufe be-
fore the IHoufe of Lords and Commons.

V. Fuller. If 1t can be made appear that T had
any Affiftance from the Houle of Lords, or the
Houfe of Commions, I own I am 1n the wrong.

L. C. 7. Holt, What Affiftance would you have
had from them? Or what would you have from

me ¢
1. Fuller. The Houfe of Lords fummoned me

bafore them 3 and I delired—

L. C. f. Holt. 1f you take on you to write fuch
Things us you are charged with, it lies upon you
to prove it at your Peril,

Mr. An. Gen. My Lord, he did appeal to the
Lords : and they gave him from Time to Time
to produce his Wimefies, and he could not do it.

L. C ¥ Holt. I you have any Witnefles, I
will hear them; but to hear you make a Speech,
it is to no Purpolc.

W, Fuller, My Lord, I hope you wiil believe ic
to be to the Purpole, 1f you pleafe to hear me.

Mr, Coniers. What fignifies your Belief ?

V. Fuller., Why am I not to be believ’d ?

L. C. . Iolt. What? Becaufe you have ftood
in the Pillory for an Impoltor heretofore,

Mr. Serj. Darael. 'The whole Nation do not be.
lieve you 3 for the Lords and Commons did not,
who reprefent the whole Nation,

W. Fuller. -The Lords did not think fit to put
it to the Trial, Thefe Gentlemen charge me to
have abufed feveral Perfons: 1 would be glad to
know who thefe Perfons are,

Mr, At Gen, 1 cannottell who they are ; your

Book promifes to make that appear.
W. Fuller. 1t 2 Man of an il Charaéter abufe

the Nation, I hope I thall not fuffer for that.

L. C. 7. Holt. How came you to write thefe
Books, that are not true?

W. Fuller. My Lord, I believe they are all true.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Produce the Original Aflidavits
made by Fones, which you caufed to be printed.

Mr. Serf. Darnel.  Produce the Receipts for
the Money, which you fay you have; and then you
will do fomething.

W, Fuller. Do’ fay 1t ?

Mr. Serj. Darnel. Yes, if that Print be yours.

W, Fuller. 1 wonder a Man of your Gravity
fhould affert fuch an Untruth in the Court,

L. C. §. Holt. 1t you have any Witnefies, pro-
duce them,

W. Fuller. My Lord, I prefume you cannot
but remember, that in Crone’s Cafe I behaved my

{elf honourably, and was owned to have done the
Nation good Service.
L. C. . Hols. That was formerly, and fignifies

nothing to what you do now.
W, Fuller, 1 ventur’d feveral times into France,

and back again : Shew me a Man that ever did fo

befides ?
Mr. A, Gen, If you had made out the Dif-

covery you pretended to make, 1 fhould have

commended you.
W. Fuller.  After I had made that Difcovery,

the Court at St, Germains did what they could to
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ruin me, ‘There have been a great many Bool-
lately printed, toprove the Legitimacy of the Pres
of I7alzs, and none of them taken notice of.

L.C. 7. Holt. You charge a great many Pe;.
fons with correlponding with France, and canney
prove It.

V. Fuller, 1 charge none, my Lord.

L. C.J. Holt. You charge all that are intimate
in the Books. The tame Mur. Foires will prove by
undesiable Demonftration, that he diftributed more
than 18c000/. by the French King’s Order 1o fe.
veral Perfons employed under the Government.
Now thefe Perfons are {candalized 5 for you pro-
duce no Proof of what you charge them with : Ang
you fay, I had thic Original of this from Mr, Yons,
&c. Where are they ?

W. Fuller, 1f your Lordfhip will pleafe to grane
me your Warrant, I will produce them,

L. C. }. Holt. If yon take on you to make good
thefe Things, you cannot n Juftice require my
Warrant to fetch in others to prove what you fay ;

you muft prove i,
. Fuller. By his own Cenfeflion, he has been

auilty of High-Treafon 5 and therefore will not
appear without a Warrant.

L.C., 7. Holt. You cannot pretend to have a
Right to any Warrant,

W. Fuller, If your Lordthip pleafe to give me
Leave to fay fomething in my Defence—

L. C. }. Holt, Yes, ifir be to any Purpofe.,

W. Fuller, 1 am unacquainted with the Laws,
and have not—

L.C.}. Helt. What is that to the Purpofe ;
You are not to make Libels, nor traduce Mini-
fters of State, What have you to fay to that ?

W, Fuller, When 1 bad printed this Book, I was
fummoned before the Lords ; and after that was
committed to the Fleer, My Friends were all cal-
led before the Lords; and by my Lord Feffrews
and other Lords, there were fuch Queltions afked,
as I believe were never afked before — .

L. C,F. Holt. "This is not to be endured ; you
do but aggravate your Crime,

W. Fuller. This is not what I would offer.

L. C. 7. Holt. If you can offer any Matter to
prove what you have writ, let us hear it.

W. Fuller, Mr, Fones has confefs’d himfelf guil-
ty of High-Treafon, and therefore cannot appear.

L. C,¥. Holt. Where is he? Where did he
make this Confeffion ?

W. Fuller, In the Country.

L. C. }. Holt. Bzfore whom ?

W. Fuller. 1do not know that 3 I was not with
him when he did it.

L. C. . Holt, Where is the Man ?

W. Fuller, 1f your Lordfhip will pleafe to give
me your Warrant, I will produce him.

L. C. 7. Holt. Shall I make a Bargain with
you? Why have you not produc’d him a.l this
while, before the Houfe of Lords, and the Foufe
of Commons?

W. Fuller. Mr. Attorney did fay I-appealed to
the Lords, I was called before them ; 1 made no
Application to them, but was called by the Order
of the Houfe,

Mr., Ait. Gen. But you was there,

W. Fuller. 1 was there 5 and there were Three
Letters read of mine in the Houfe, and I defire

they may be read here,
L. C. ¥. Holt. What is that to the Purpofc?
Can you produce your Witnefes ?

W, Fuller, My, Fonesis now in Hamppbire.
L.C. 7.
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L. C. . Holt. Have you not had Time enough L. C. . Holt. Gentlemen of the Jury, you hear
{0 Procure him ¢ what the Purpofe of this Information 13, und you

1V, Fuller. My Lord, I cannot force him. I'was  hear how itis proved ; and you hear the Witnet
with the Secretary of Seate, and told him, Fomes ~ fay, He brought thefe two fcandalous Books to
will not come in voluntanily 5 if the Lords will the Prefs, and that he correéted them ; and he
grant & Warrant, he may be brought. I offe’d owns, he was the Publither of them : And if you
this to the Houfe of Commons too, but it was Dbelieve he did fo, you are to find him Guilty.
not grantedd. T could nat force him.

Mr., Serj. Darnel, The Secretary of State fent The Fury brought bim in Guilty, without goirg
one or two far him. from the Bar.

V. Fuller. He fent no body. '
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CLXXIV. The Tryals of Colonel Ricuarp KirkBy, Captair
Joun ConsTABLE, Captain CooPER WADE, Captain
SAMUEL VINCENT, and Captain CHRISTOPHER FoGG, af
a Court-Martial 1z Jamaica, for Offences againft the Ar-

ticles of War, Oltob. 8, 9, 10, 12. 1702. 1 Ann,

i T a Court-Martial held on Board her  fence falling under the 33d Article of War, the
2XEN0G) Majelty’s Ship the Bredab, in Port- faid Jobn Arthur thould be carried from Ship to
S1A I‘k‘f'l Royal Harbour in Famaica 1 Ame-  Ship in a Boat with a Halter about his Neck, the
o, soergee rica, the 8thy gth, roth and r12th, Provoft-Marfhal declaring his Crimes ; and all
PRI Days of Ocfoler, 1702, Prefent, his Pay, as Gunner, to be muld’d and forfeited

to the Chelt at Chatbam 3 and bz render’d unca-
The Honourable /#iam Vhijfon, Lfq; Rear- pable of ferving Her Majefty in any other Em-

Admiral of FHer Majefty’s Ships for the /2.  ployment.

India Squadron, Prefident,

Olonel Richard Kirkby, Comman.

Samuel Vincent, William Ruffel, der of the Defiance, was tried be- O 3, 9.
Fobin Hartioll, Bairrow Harris, fore the aforefaid Court, (except Captain Samuel
Chiiftopher Fozg, Hereules Mitchell, — Vincent, and Captain Chriftopher Fygg, who ap-
Fobu Smith, Philip Bovee, peared as Witnefles for the Queen,) on a Com-
Fobit Redman, Charles Smith. plaint exhibited by the Judge-Advacate on the Be-
George I alton, half of Her Majefty, of Cowardice, Neglect of Du-

ty, Breach of Orders, and other Crimes commit-
Ariold Browne, Elq; Judge-Advocate. ted by him at a Fight at Sea, commenced the rgth

of Auguft, 1702, off St. Murtba, in the Latitude

Who being all duly fworn, purfuant to the A& of Ten Degrees North, near the main Land of
of Parliament, proceeded to the Trial of Fobn Ar-  America, between the Honourable Fobn Benbow,
0a g tbur, Gunnerof the Defiance, ona Com- Efg; Vice-Admiral of the Blue Squadron of Her
© 7 plaint exhibited by Francis Knighton, Majelty's Fleet, and Admiral and Commander in
Third Lieutenant of the Deflance, and George Fofo  Chief, &c. on Board Her Majefty’s Ship Bredab,
ter, Gunner of for hiding and con-  Chriftopher Fogg, Commander, and Six other of
cealing Forty three Barrels of Powder in the Wadd- Her Majelty’s Ships, wiz. the Defiance, Richard
Room, and covering them with Wadds and Coins, Kirkly Commander 5 the Falmouth, Samuel Vin-
&e. when a Survey of Her Majelty’s Stores of cent Commander 5 #andfor, Jobn Conftable, Com-
Ammunition after an Engagement was ordered 3 mander 3 Greenwich, Cooper IWade, Commander
and denying to the Surveyors, that there was any  Ruby, George WWalton, Commander 5 and the Pen-
more Powder on Board, than was in the Powder-  dennis, Thomas Hudfon, Commander: And Mon-
Room and Gun-Room, wiz. One Hundred ; fieur Dx Caffe with Four French Ships of War :
which, upon a fecond Survey, were difcovered. Which continued until the 2 4th of Augs/f inclufive.
It was proved alfo, That he had Two Keys tothe ~ The Witneffes that were fivorn in Behalf of the
Powder-Room ; and that having loft or miflaid Queen 5 wviz.
his own, he, without making any Application to ~ The Honourable John Benbow, Efgs Admiral.

the Commanding Officer then on Board, who kept ' o Caplains.
the other Key, prevailed with 7#1/liam Baker, Car- 8 Lieutenants.
penter of the faid Ship, to break open the Door, 5 Mafters,

In Mitigation of his Offence, he alledged, That g Inferior Officers.
examining into the Powder-Room, he found Three —
Barrels that had received wet, which caufed hisre- - 21

moval of the Forty Three Barrels; but had little
to fay for his concealing them from the Surveyors, ~ Who depofed, That the faid Colonel Richard -
Whercupon the Court adjudged, That the faid Of-  Kirkby, the Van in the Line of Battle, the 1gth of

' | Augufl,
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Auguft, about Three in the Afternoon, the Signal of
Battle being out, the Admiral was forc’d to fend his
Boatun Board of Kirkby, and comtand his making
more Sail, and get a-brealt of the Enemy’s Van,
for that he was refolved to fight them. About Four
the Fight began; but the faid Kirkby did not firc
above Three Broad(ides, then luffed up out of the
Lane, and out of Gunfhot, leaving the Admiral en-
gaged with Two French Ships till darle, and the
faid Kirkby receiving no Damage : That his Be-
haviour caufed great Fear of his Defertion, At
Night the faid Kirksy fell a-{tern, leaving the Ad-
mira] to purfuc the Enemy.

That the 20th, at Day-light, the Admiral and
Ruby were within Shot of all the Enemy’s Ships ;
but Colonel Kirkby was near Three or Four Miles a-
ftern. The Admiral chen made anew Line of Bat-
tle, and took the Van himfelf, and fent to each
Ship, with a Command to the {aid Kirkby to keep
his Line and Station; which he promifed to do, but
did not ; keeping T'wo or Three Miles a-ftern, tho’
the Signal for Battle was out all Night, The Lrench
making a running Ifight, the Admiral and Ruly
plicd the Enemy with their Chafe-Guns all Night.
'T'hat the 2 1ft Day, at Light, the Admiral wason
the Quarter of the Second Ship of the Enemy’s
Rear, and the Ruby on the Board-fide,
very near, who plied him warmly, and met the
fame Return 3 by which he was {o much difabled,
tho’ the Admiral came in to his Afliltance, that he
was forc’d to bz towed off 1 And this prevented the
Admiral’s Defign of cutting off the Fnemy’s {tern-
molt Ship. This Action lafted Two Hours 5 dur-
ing which Time the faid Kirkby lay a Broadfide of
the Sternmoft Ships as did alfo the 27indfor, Fobn
Confluble Commander, The Admiral then com-
manded the faid Kirkby to ply his Broadfides on him.
But this having no Effe, the fecond Timehe com-
mancled the fame 5 but he fir'd not & Gun : Nuy,
his own Boatfwain and Seamen repeated the Adm-
ral’s Coinmand to himy but were feverely uyd,
and threaten’d that he would run hts Sword thro’
the Boatfwain, And had the faid Kirkby done his
Duty, and Captain Conflable his, they muft have
taken or deftroyed the faid French Ships. The Ad-
miral, tho’ he receiv’d much Damage in his Sajls,
Rigging, Yards, {5¢. yet continued the Chafe all
Night, That the 22d in the Morning at Day-light,
the Greenwich was Three Leagues a-ftern 5 and the
Defiance, Colonel Kirkby, with the reft of the Snips,
Three or Four Miles, the Falmouth excepted,
whole Station was in the Rear: That the faid
Captain Samuel Vincent, fecing the Behaviour of
the fad Kirkdy, and the reft, came up with the
Admiral, and fent his Lieutenant on Board, de-
firing Leave to affit him, which was accepted :
The {aid Kirkby never coming ups; and by his Ex-
ample the reft did the fame, asif they had a Defign
to facrifice the Admiral and Falmouth to the Ene-
my, or defert. The Enemy were now about a
Mile and an half a-head, ftanding into the Shore
with a fmall Breeze at 27, tetched within Sambey,
the Admiral firtng at the Sternmoft till Night, and
continuedd the Purfuic; and a Flemifh Ship that
was in Monfieur Du Caffe’s Company, on Board of
which was all the French and Spauifh new Gover-
nors and other Officers, made her Kfcape, That
the 23d, in the Morning, at Day-light, the Enc-
my bore North-Weft, diltant about Four or Five
Miles, the Admiral and Falmoeuth purfuing ; but
the faid Colonel Kirkby, wirh the reft of the Ships,
being Three or Yeur Miles a-ftern ; (tho' there

was not a Ship but, before and after the Battle, fzil:
ed better than the Admiral.) About Seven in the
Evening, it having been {ome time calm, a Gyle
of Wind fprung up, the Admiral and Falmeysp
were about Two Miles from the Enemy ; and g
Eight, the faid Kirkby and his {eparate Squadron
was fair up with the Admiral ;. And this Day the
Admiral {entaway the difabled Ruby, Georye 174/
ton Commander, to Port-Royal ; and under his Cop.
voy the Anna Galley, retaken from the French,
That the 2.4th, in the Morning, about Two of
the Clock, the Admiral came up with the Stern-
moft of the Enemy within Call, and the Falmont)
pretty near 5 but the faid Colonel Kivkby, with the
reft of the Ships, according to Cuftom, were Three
or Four Miles a-ftern. The Admiral and Falmonth
engaged the faid Ship 5 and at Three the Admiral
was wounded, his Right Leg being broke, but com.
manded the Fight to be vigoroully maintained ;
and at Day-light the Enemy’s Shup appeared like
Wreck, her Mizen-Maft fhot by the Board, her
Main-yard in Three or Four Pieces, her Ioretop-
fail .yard the fame, her Stays and Rigging all thot
to Pieces. Soon after Day, the faid Kirkdy, with
the reft of the Ships, being to Windward of the fiid
difabled Ship, he the faid Kirkby, with the reft of
his feparate Squadron, fired about Twelve Guns at
the faid Ship 5 and fearing a fmart Return from
her, he lower’d his Mizen-Yard, his Topfails on
the Caps, fet his Spricfail, Sprieful Topfail, and
Foretopfail Stayfail, and having waired his Ship,
fer his Sail, and ron away before the Wind from
the poor difabled Ship, thereft following his faid
Example ; tho’ they had but Eight Men kill'd on
Board them all (except the Admiral), The other
Three French Men of War were at this Time of
Action abour Four Miles diftant from their maim-
ed Ship 3 whereupon the Enemy {zing the Cow-
ardice of the faid Colonel Kirtby, and the reft of
the Englifh Ships, in a Squale bore down upon the
Admiral, who lay clofe by the difabled Ship ; and
having got in their Spritfail Yard, gave him all
their Fire ; and running between him and the dif-
abled Ship, remann’d her and tock her in, The Ad-
miral’s Rigging being very much fhatter’d, was
oblig’d to lie and refit till Ten a-Clock, and then
continued the Purfuit 5 and the reft of the Flect fol-
lowing 1n the greatelt Dilorder imaginable, the
Admiral commanded Capt. Fogg to ftand a-breaft
of the Enemies Van, and then to attack him, and
having then a fine fteady Gale, the like not hap-
pening during the whole Engagement ; and fur-
ther ordered that he fhould fend toall the Captains
to keep the Line of Battle, and behave themfelves
hike Engliftmen 3 and this Meflage was fent by
Captain /Zade then on Board the Bredab. That the
faid Colonel Kirkby on the Receipt of this Mef-
fage, and feeing the Admiral’s Refolution 1o en-
gage, came on Board him, who then lay wound-
ed in a Cradle; and without common Refoeét of
enquiring after his Health, he the {aid Kirkoy ex-
prefled thefe Words following, That be wonderd
that the Admiral fhould offer 10 eigage the French
again, it being not neceffarv, fafe, nor convemicit,
baving bad Six Days Trial of their Strength ;3 and
then magnified that of the French, and leffencd
that of the Euglifh, But the Admiral being fur-
prized at his Speech, faid it was but one Man's
Opinion, and that he would have the reft of the
Captains 3 and accordingly ordered the Signal to
be made for all the Captains to come on Eoard 3

and at this Time the Admiral and the reft of hthﬂ
Ships
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Ships were to Windward, and within Shot of the
Enemy, and had _the faireft Opportunity that in
fx Days prefented, to chafe, engage, and deftroy
the Enemy. . .
That the faid Colonel Kirkby had endeavoured
to poifon the reft of the Captains 3 forming a Wri-
tine under his own Hand, which was cowardly
and erroneous : The Subftance of which was, Not
to engage the Enemy any more. He the faid Co-
lonel Kirkby brought it to the Admirdl,” who re-
proved him for i, faying it would be the Ruin of
all :+ Upon which he the faid Colonel Kirkby went
away, but writ another in the following Words,

At a Confirltation beld on board ber Majefty’s Ship Bre-
dah, the 24¢h of Auguft, 1702, off of Cartha-
aena, on the. main Gontinent of America,

It is the Opinion of us whofe Names are under-

written, o
1. Of the great Want of Men in Number,

Quality, and the Weaknefies of thofe they have.
2. The general Want of Ammunition of moft

forts. *
2. Each Ship’s Mafts, Yards, Sails and Rigging,
being all in a great Meafure difabled.

4. The Winds are fo fmall and variable, that
the Ships can’c be governed by any Strength : Each
Ship

5[. Having expertenced the Enemy in Six Days
Battle, following the Squadron confifting of Five
Men of War and a Firethip, under the Command
of Monfieur Du Caffe 5 their Equipage confifting in
Guns from 60 to 8o, and having a great Number
of Seamen and Soldiers on Board for the Service of
Spatit, :

IFor which Reafons above-mentioned, we think
it not fit to engage the Enemy at this Time, but to
keep them Company this Night, and obferve their
Motion ; and if a fair Opportunity fhall happen of
Wind and Weather, once more to try our Strength
with them. *
Richard Kirkby, Samuel Vincent, Fobs

Conflable, Chriftopher Fogg, Cooper
Wade, and Thomas Hudfon,

That during the Six DaysEngagement, he never
encouraged his Men 3 but by his own Example of
dodging behind the Mizen-Maft, and falling down
upon the Deck on the Noife of Shot, and denying
them the Provifions of the Ship, the faid Men were
under great Difcouragement,  That he amended
the Mafter of the Ship’s Journal of the Tranfactions
of the Fight, according to his own Inclination.

All which being proved aforefaid :

ThefaidColonel Richard Kirkby denied the whole,
excepting the pretended written Confultation
Which being fhewn to him, he own’d his own
Hand and Name too. He brought feveral of his
Men to give an Account of his Bebaviour during
the Fight ; but their Teftimonies were infignificant ;
and his Behaviour to the Court and Witneffes
moft unbecoming a Gentleman. And being par-
ticularly afk’d by the Court, why he did not fire
at the Enemies Sternmoft Ship, which lay point-
blank with him the 21ft of Augnft 2 He replicd,
Becaufe they did not fire at him, for that they had
a Refpect for him : Which Words upon feveral
Occalions, during the Trial, he repeated Three
everal Times,

honour of the

Where, upon due Confideration of the Premifes,
of great Advantages the Englifh had in Number,
being Seven to Four, of Guns 122 more than the
other ;5 with his Aéts and Behaviour as aforefaid, and
more particularly his 1ll-timed Paper or Confulta-
tion.as afore-recited, which obliged the Admiral
for the Prefervation of her Majefty’s Fleet, to give
over the Chafe and Fight, to the irreparable Dif-
Queen, her Crown and Digpity, and
come to Port-Royal, Famaica: For which Reafons
the Court was of Opinion, That he fell under the
11th, 12th, 14th, and 20th Articles of War; and
adjudged accordingly, That he be fhot to Death :

But further decreed, That the Execution of Col.

Kirkby be deferred till Her Majefty’s Fleafure be

known therein ; but be continued 2 clofe Prifone
till that Time, ’

Aptain Fobun Conftable, Commander of the
Windfor, was Tried before the aforefaid Courr,
on a Complaint exhibited by the Judge Advocate on
the Behalf of the Queen, for Breach of Orders,
Neglect of Duty, and other ill Praétices commit-
ted during a Fight commenced the 1gth of Auguf,
1702, as aforefaid, (Refer 10 Colonel Kirikby’s
Trial,) .

The Witneffes fworn on the Behalf of the Queen
were,

2 Captains,
7 Lieutenants,
5 Maflers,
2 Other Officers.
Tbe Hononrable John Benbow, Efg;
Admiral.

et

17 Wilnefes.

e,

Who depofed, That Captain Fobn Conftable
never kept his firftnor fecond Line of Battle, but
acted in all Things as Colonel Kirkby had done.
That the Admiral had fired Two Guns to command
him into the {fecond Line of Battle. That he did
{fer more fail in order to come into the Line, and
his Station 3 but upon Colonel Kirkdy's calling to
him to keep his Line, he accordingly did, That
the Admiral fent his Licutenant Landpridge to com-
mand him the faid Conflable to keep his Line of
Battle within half a Cables Length of the Ship be-
fore him, which was twice verbally delivered, And
that he figned the Paper, Confultation, as is In
Colonel Kirkdy’s Tral aforefaid 5 twending to the
Hindrance and Differvice of Her Majefty, €% and
was drunk during the Fight, (.

All which being fully proved as aforefaid ; the
faid Captain Fobu Conflable, denied his Breach of
Orders, or Negle& of Duty ; but owned the fign-
ing the Paper, or Conlultation prepared by Colo-
nel Kirkby, and did it at his Requeft, and for
that he bad received Damage in his Mafts and
Rigging ;3 and own’d no other Article to be true,
but that he had fign’d to. He called feveral Witne!-
fes to his Behaviour during the Fight 3 who all
declared he kept the Quarter-Deck during the
Engagement, and encouraged his Men to fight ;
and that fometimes he gave them Drams of Rum;
and that Verbal Meflage delivered by Lieutenant
Landgridge, was delivered him in fome Heat and
Paflion, and was underftood to be, to keep the
Line within half a Cable’s Length, and to follow
Kirkby, which he did,  That he {o undcrﬁo;gl it

1n-



